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.. klmn T. Shepley. 

City Clerk 

Roger T. Oreh<:r 

City Manager 

Gary J. Maycrhofer 

October 13, 2008 ·· 

City of Crystal Lake 
10(} W. Woodstock Street 
·Crystal Lake, IL 6(}014. 

(815) 459-2020 

Honorable Mayor AaroaT_ Shepley 
Members of the City Council · 
Citizens of the City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 

City Council 
Ellen Brady Mueller 
.Ralph M. DaWson 
C..thy A_ Ferguson 

David Gos$ 
Brett Hopkins 

Jdney T. Thorsen 

State law .requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the· 
dose of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in cotiformitj with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance· with generally 
accepted auditing standards by a firn1 of licensed certified public accountants. Pillsuant to that · 
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Crystal 
Lake for the fiscal year end,ed April30, 2008. 

This report consists of management's representationS concerning the finances of the City of 
Crystal Lake_ Con5equently, management ~sumes full. responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability. of all of the information presented in this report~ To provide a reasonable basis. to 
make. these representations, management of the City of Crystal Lake has. established a 
'comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's 
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 

·preparation of the City of Crystal Lake's financial statements in conformity with GAAP_ 
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Crystal 
Lake's coniprehensive framework of internal con,trols has been designed to provide reasonable 
rath~r than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material 
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief,. this 
financial report is ~omplete and reiiable in all material respects_ . 

. , .. ' ' ' 

The City of Crystal Lake's financial statements have been audited by Selden Fox, Ltci., a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants_ The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable· assurance that the financial statements of the City of Crystal Lake for the fiscal year 
ended April 30, 2008; are free of material misstatement_ The independent audit involved 
examitiirlg, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosur¢s in the. financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles , used and significant estimates made · by 
management, and evaluating the . ovetall financial statement presentation; The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the ·audit, that there was a reasonable basis . for rendering an 
unqualified opimon that the City of Crystal Lake's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
April30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report 
is presented as the first co~ponent of the financial section of this report_ 

. . 

The City of Crystal Lake is not required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the 
provisions of the single Audit .Amendments of 1996 and the u_s_ Office of Management and 
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Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local Governments. Therefore, such information is 
not included within this report. 

The,- City of Crystal Lake's financial presentation reflects_ GASB Statement No. -34, Basic 
Financial-Statements - andManagenient's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) -for state and 
local govemrrients

1

• The comprehensive :mnual report- preseJ!-ts the MD&A, basic financial 
statements and reqOired supplemental inforination. The MD&A provides an analytical overview 
of the City's financial ·activity. fucluded in the basic .fmancial statements· are the government-

-wide financial statements, fund financial statements and- notes to the financial ·statements. The __ 
required supplementary information presents the budgetary -comparison sc:hedp.les and other -
schedules~ This letter <;f transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and- should be read in 

_ c<mjtinction with it. The -City of Crystal Lake's MD&A can be fourid hmnediately following the 
report of the independent auditors. The City of Crystal Lak:e haS met the requirements. of 

--Statement df Auditing Standards 112 as it relates to internal financial reporting. -

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CRYSTAL LAKE 

The City ~f Crystal Lake; incorporated- in i914, is _located in tlle southeastern portion of 
McHenry County, which is the furthest northwestern_ county in the Chicago metropolitan -region. 
McHenry County. was recognized as the fastest growingcounty in the state oflllinois in the 1990->· 
cens~s. _ This particular development trend is most prevalent in the southeastern portion of -
McHenry County, which includes the Crystal Lake area. The_ 2000 Census further substantiated 
this experience. The City of Crystal Lake currently occupies a land ·area of 18 3/4 square miles 
and serves a certified population of 39;788. _The City_of Crystal Lake is empowered-by State 
Statute to extend_ its corporate -limits by annexation, _Which. ~ccurs periodically when deemed _ 
appropriate by the City Council. 

The City of.Crystal Lake has operated under the Council-Manager form··of goveinment since. 
i957. Policy:·making and legisla~ive authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the .·. 

·· Mayor ,and six other member's. The Ci:ty-_Council is responsible~ among other things, for passing 
. ordina.tices, adopting the budget, appointillg,. conunittees,. and hiring of the City Manager; · The 

City Manageris responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for 
overseemg the day:-to~day operations of .the government~ and for' appointing the. heads of the 

_ various departniertts, including the City Attorney. The City Council is eleCted at-large on a non-
partisan basis. -CoUhcil members serve four-year staggered tenils. . . 

. This report encompasses allfunds of the City of Crystal Lake. The City of Crystal Lake 
provides a full range of _services, inCluding police 'and_ fire protection; construction. and 

- . maintenance of highways, streets, <l!ld infrastructure; maintenance of the public storm drainage 
system; water, . samtary. sewer service and wastewater treatment; and growth management, . 
plaiming and development control through· the activities, of the Engineering and Building 
J:)epartment, and. the ·Plann.lng and Economic Development Department.· fu ·addition to- these· 
general· governmental activities, the City has certain information relative to· the public library (a 

· discr:etely presented component unit) and police and fire pension systems {blended component 
units); Therefore, these activities have been included- in the City of Crystal Lake's financial 

- reporting entity. However, as separate governmental entities,. the Crystal Lake Elementary and . 
High School Districts, the Crystal L3:ke Park District, and the _Crystal Lake Civic Center 
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Authority have not met the established criteria for inclusion- m tlie reporting entity and, 
accordingly, are excluded from this report. 

··The annual budget serves as the foundation-for the City 9fCrystal Lake's financial planning and 
control. All agencies .of the- City of Crystal Lake aie required to submit requests for 
appropriation to the City Manager. The City Manager and Director of Finance use these requests 
as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Manager then presents- this 

_proposed budget to the Council for review. The Council is required to hold public hearings ori 
the proposed budget and_ to adopt a final budget by no later than April 30th, the close of the City 
of Crystal Lake's fiscal year. The appropriated budget 1s prepared by fund and department. 

-Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund 
f()r which an appropriated annuru bud~et has been adopted. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CO~ITION 

The information presented in the financial statements -is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader persp-ective of the specific enviroinnent within which the City of 
Crystal Lake operates. - · 

LOCAL ECONOMY 
' - ,. 

The City of Crystal Lake currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local indicators 
. point to continued stability. The region has a varied manufacturing arid industrial base that adds 
- to the relative- stability of the unemployment' rate. The largest single source of revenue is sales 
tax, which has remained stable. - -

-Development management represents a significant challenge arid pnonty for the City.­
Utilization of impact fees -and sophisticated policies requiring development to fund its own 
infrastructure cost illustrates the fact that the City has maintained growth managementiriitiatives. 
The City's impact fees and- growth-funded infrastructlire requirements have ensured that the 
City's taxpayers are not burdenedbydevelopment. - ' - , 

The non-resideritial sector ofeconomic activity haS continued to be built out, but not at the same 
pace as prior years. The City's property valuation growth haS remained constant over the past 
year through the addition of new non-residential development and the continued increase in the 
value_ of existing non-residential properties in the City.·- This is evidence ofthe City's continued 
strong economiG activity level and further underscores the City's strong lion-residential tax base. 

: ' - .· ·.- ' :- - - ·. -

Despite substantial competition that has occurred from commercial growth in many of the areas­
sniTounding Crystal Lake, the difficult retail enviroirment for- certain players in the very 
competitive Chicago arena, and state retail sales showing a decline from prior years, the City's 
retail sector has remained stable over the past year: The City has continued to mmntain strength 
as a retail base for ser\ring the regular commercial needs for the immediate City population, and 
has continued asaTegionaJ pouit for COmmercial activities. 

-iii-



Route i 4- serves as a retail corridor for the City of Crystal Lake, -highlighted- by Crystal Point 
Shopping Center, Crystal CoUrt; Shopping Center and The Commons Shopping Center. The 
Bohl Fann-Marketplac.e, consisting of nearly 400,000 sq. ft. of retail space; anchors Kohl's 
department stqre, Linens-ri-Tbings,. a Target store, and a Dcmunick~s Fresh Foods store,­
including other national tenants such as PierOne;- Barnes an:d Noble, and Chili's restaurant. 

The Archway Eastceriter development includes a Portillo's restaurant, TGI Friday's restaurant, 
Comer Bakery, Sports Authority, Mario Tricoci, a recently expanded Menards -and three 
additional small independent retailers. Chipotle Mexican 'Grill, Noodles & Company, Culver's, 
Fast Eddie's 'Car Wash, the Village Squire Restaurant; and the" Showplace Theaters _are all 
located near this center. Construction of- an 84..:unit Staybridge Suites hotel is currently 

-underway for a projected opening in 2009.- A four-story; one hl.mdred thirteen-unit Fairfield Inn -
wili be under cons"truction during 2009~ 

The downtown sector of the City~ which has continued to show substantial strength, exhibits a 
very low yacancyrate and continues to be a viable colimlercihl destination. AStarbuck'sand art 

-- independent ice creani shop· are located in the Downtown area, as well as a number of unique 
fJp_e diiring establishments including Benedict's La Strata, Williams ;Street Public House, and 
Cpcina Bella Due. -. Downtown Crystal Like is also home to Finn McCool's restaurant'. _ Th~ 
do\Vlltown district is home to the Raue Center for the Arts,- which is an 800-seat theatre that is _ 

_ one- of the finest examples pf restored art and decor in the nation. The Raue Center: provides a 
-, unique draw for the downtown area as the largest perfo:mring arts theat~r in McHertry County: 

Porter's pys_ter Bar has reopened under new management and expanded With the addition of the. · 
Yellowtails Sports Bar & Grill.. In addition~ Fox River Grove caterer 1Jrree Chefs Catering has. 
recentiy announced that it will be expanding through their location of a new catering faciiity on 
Route 14. · . - · · · 

Anderson Motors, a major a11to retailer of BMW; Volkswagen, .and Mazda vehicles, located on· 
North Route 31, has expanded their_service facilities andindoor display areas. In addition, Pauly 
Toyota has reloci:tted their auto dealetship to the Lutter Center at fue.intersection of Route 31 and 
Rakow Road, near the .new Super Wal-Mart. Crystal-Lake is also home to Viking Dodge, 
Briiliance Honda, and Extreme Ford. · · · 

us Granite -has 'purchased an existing 100,000 square foot manufacturing facility to consolidate 
four. divisions of granite and. marble stone _purchasing, cutting and finishing. US Granite Sales,. 
Marble Tech, Natural Stonework, and US Granite Machinery will be occupying the facilityby 
·the end of 2008, bringing 80 job~ and $10 million in annual sales·to Crystal Lake: 

Other new additions t~ Crystai Lake during the- current fiscal year include Kids R Kids Daycare 
facility, CVSPharinacy, 2nd Wind, AI &Joe•s:Deli, and Infinity Day Spa. -. · · · . . _ 

The City of Crystal Lake is fortunate to have two Metra train stations within our cm:porate limits. 
The second station; 2,000 sqtiare foot Pingree Road Metra Station:, was completed in the wi:riter 
of 2005 at a cost of $2.1 million .. Metra funded the construction of the Pingree Road Station as 
well as recent renovations to the Downtown Train Station, which were completed the stl:m:mer of ' 
2006. _ Metra pl;ms to expand parking at the Pingree Statio:r1 at some point in the near future. 
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· Once again, the City has continued to have a very low property tax rate for municipal services 
compared to o-ther municipalities in southeastern McHenry County: The- continued development 
of- the City's non-residential tax base and the stable retail sector of the community have 
facilitated this position. ·The City's retail base helps defray the cost of inost -General Fund 
supported services, such· as police protection, street maintenance, brush and leaf pickup, and 
other services. · · 

LONG TERM F1NANCIAL PLANNING 

A humber of.potential futUre projects may significantly impa~t the City's future financial 
planning. These projects include the extension of sewer and water to the City's far northwest 
border. This utility extension is funded through Special·Service Ai-ea Number 45, as part of the 
Bryn Mawr residential development. These improvements are projected to stimulate additional. 

. _development on the City's northern and northwest boundaries; · 

Another future project that is currently under construction is a Waste Transfer Station. Host. 
benefit fees associated _with the Waste Transfer Station will provide increased revenue for the 
City. - . . 

· The City currently has four active Tax Increment Financing Districts (TIF). The: TIF District for 
Downtown Crystal Lake, which expires ·in 2008, has driven redevelopment of that area. 
Roadway improvements and streetscape elements were funded with TIF funds. The original 
1985 equalized assessed valuation (EAV) for the Downtown TIF was $3,640,512. · Upon· 
.completion 'of redevelopment, it_ is estimated that the EAV will be in excess of $100 milli9n in 

. 2008. 

The other three TIF Districts include the Virginia Street Corridor, Crystai Lake A venue and 
Main Street, and Vulcan Lakes.- The 2003 EA V for the Virginia Street Corridor TIF is 
$10,829,922. It is estimated that the EAV will be in excess of $26 million in 2003 dollars upon 
completion of redevelopment. The Virginia Street Comdor TIF as approved will fund the 
installation of str:eetscape elements, such as pavers, sidewalks, and decorative pedestrian 
lighting, as well as utility pole relocation aild facade improvements. ' 

- The 2004 EAV for the Crystal Lake Avenue and Main Street TIFis $3;:284,612. It is estimated 
that the EAV will be in excess of $108 million in 2004 dollars upon completion of 
redevelopment. The Crystal Lake A venue and Main Street TIF District is contiguous to the 
original Downtown TIF .. The revitalization plan includes a continuation of streetscape elements 
found throughout the Downtown area, as well as relocation of the Main Street railroad spur, 
parking, environmental remediation and . potential major redevelopment· of key under-utilized· 

. parcels at the Crystal Lake A venue and Main Street intersection. The north leg of the · 
intersection of Main Street and Crystal Lake Avenue is anticipated to be completed by fall of 
2008 . 

.The2005 EAV forthe Vulcan Lakes !IF is$4,506,145. Itis estimated that the EAV will be in 
excess of $96 million in 2005 dollars upon completion of redevelopment: The revitalization of 
the Vulcan Lakes project area envisions the creation of a vibnmt activity center with recreational,·. 
residential and commercial activities complementing the lakes. It . anticipates commercial 
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·• activitie,s along U.S. Route 14; ··such as restaurants and entertainment venues. A mix of 
commercial uses is planned ·for. South . Main. Street; . and the interior quarry area will include ·a 
marina, fishing piers, beaches, trails and nature areas. fu ·addition to the recreational uses, a mix · 
ofresidential uses would provide an opportunity to create residences with unique ~enities. 

' Finally, the City's pro-active economic development program will continue to recruit additionai 
new businesses. A new 210,000 square foot Wal-Mart Supercenter opened in October 2007 and 
the former site anticipates the opening of a new J.C Penny Department Store very soon~ T}]ete 
is also the potential for additionahetail establishments as well as the relocation of tWo additional 
automobile dealerships to the Route 31 corridor.· Pauly Toyota relocated a new $40- millioh 
facility in October 2007. The adoption of the new TIF Districts wiil- result in red-evelopment and 

. rehabilitation of existing properties and wj.ll add to the interest of private development in these . 
corridors.. · · · · 

CASH MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 

Cash temporarily idle d~ng the_year was invested in the lllinois State Treasurer's pool.(lllinois 
Funds), Money Market Funds; U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies and Certificates of Deposit. The 
funds invested in the Illinois .Funds and Money Market Funds are immediately available. State· 
law also" allows" the pension trust funds to invest up to 45% of the fund's assets in equities.-

. Crystal Lake's Police and Fire Pension Funds invest in separate insurance accounts and mutual 
funds. The City~s investment policy details the cash management objectives and guidelines for 
investing City cash. The.City's investment policy is to. minimize credit and iuarket risks while 
maintaining a competitive yield ori ~ts portfolio. fu addition, funds on deposit :in excess of FDIC 
limits inust be secured by collateral held in safekeeping by a third party. . 

"RISK MANAGEMENT 
. . 

Since joiriing the_IntergoverruhentafRisk Managel1lent Agency (IRMA) in July 2004, ·the City. 
· · has been active in its risk management and loss control focus,. As a member 'of IRMA, the City 

receives liability, property anq workers' _compensation insurance. Since IRMA maintains a 
deductible for each event, the City budgets for potentiallosses in the General Food. :The City's 

·risk management program is driven by two goals outlined in the CitYs loss prevention policy 
and purpose s_tatemeilt: 'The primary, goal of the Progra.nlis to safeguard the physical well­
being of the City's residents and employees. In. addition; the Program seeks to prevent or reduce· 

· damage to City properties and mitigate the monetary losses due to accidents." . The City 
. particip~lted in IRMA's Managemcmt AssessmentPrognim (IMAP), which is a thorough audit of· 
the City'~) personnel policies; safety proced,U.res, and training activities related. to loss control, 
scoring the highest-out of all participating members._ Because of the IMAP, the City established 

·-loss prevention goals and consequently Unproved many of its internal loss, prevention functions, 
including safety committees, facility safety inspection; aiid the creation of personriel policies. _-· 
Moreover, IRMA provided an assessment of the City;s exposure to certainhazards, such a.S fire, 
.electrical, and equipment. The City's risk managenientprogram also values employee training. 
During this past year, the City organized training related to the City's Emergency Action Plan, 
which provides guidelines in the event. of: a disaster or workplace traillna. ·Furthermore, the 
City's Police, Fire Rescue, aild Public Works Departments require specific training to keep their · 

-vi-



employees abreast. of the latest workplace safety procedures. Overall, the City hopes its risk 
management and loss control efforts lead to lower insurance pool contributions and greater 
employee productivity. 

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

The C~ty of Crystal L3.ke sponsorsa single-employer defmed benefitpension plan for its public.· 
safety employees. As a matter of policy, the City of Crystal Lake fully funds each year's aruiual 
required contribution to. the pension plan as determined by an independent actuary. 

The City of Crystal Lake also provides post-employment health and dental care benefits (18. 
months after retirement) for certain retirees-and their dependents at their cost. As ofthe·end of 
the- ci.ment fiscal year, there. were six (6) retired employees rec~iving these benefits, which are 
billed to the retiree on a monthly basis. . · 

Additional information on the City of Crystal Lake's pension arrangements and post-
employment benefits can be found in the notes to the financial statements. . 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Offic~rs Association (GFOA) awarded· a-Certificate ofAchievement 
for Excellencein Financial Reporting to the City of Crystal Lake for its comprehensive ari,nual 

. financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended. April 30, 2007. This was the eighteenth 
consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. · fu order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easi}y readable and efficiently organized 
CAFE.. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. , 

. . . ' ' 

. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievem~nt Program's requirements and we eire 
submitting it.to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report would not have ·been-possible wi_thout the efficient and dedi~ated 
services _of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation 
to all staff members who assisted and contributed. to the preparation of this report. Without the .. 
support given by the Mayor and the City Cooocil for their unfailing conunitment to maintaining· 
the highest standards ofprofessionalism In._ the managementof the City- of Crystal Lake's 
finances, this report would not be possible. Recognition· and acknowledgement of the essential 
nature of their support and commitment to effective and responsible local government financial: 
operations, which has enabled a report that is believed to meet the requirements of the GFOA 
Certificate of Acliievement Program again this year, is an appropriate -conclusion to this year's 
report. 

y J. Mayerhofer 
City Manager 

. .. 

Mark F. Nannini 
_Director of Finance 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT-



630~954-1400 
630-954~1.327 FAX 

Selden Fox,. LTD. 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
619 Enterprise Drive 

Oak Brook, Hlihois 60523-8835 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of th~ City Council 
Crystal Lake,lllir10is 

email@seldenfox.com 
www:seldenfox.com 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
acUvities, the -discretely presented component unit, each major fund, . and the aggregate 
remaining fund information, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements and the 
schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and actual for the 
G~neral and major Special Revenue Funds of the City of Crystal Lake, Illinois as of and for 
the year ended April 30, 2008, CIS listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial 
statements are. the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibiiity is to express an 

. opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. ' . 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted iri the United 
States oLAmerica. Those standards require that We plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
iri the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
the significant estimates made bY management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basjs for our opinion. _ 

_ In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to ·above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type · 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Crystal Lake, Illinois as of April 30,. 2008, and the 
respective changes in financial position and· cash flows, where applicable, and the budgetary 
comparison_ for the General and Major Special Revenue Funds for the year then ended, in 
conformity with accounting -principles generally accepted in th~ United States of America. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis, and the pension plans' schedules of funding 
progress and employer contributions, as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no 
opinion on it. · 



· Our:· audit was -made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial $tatements 
taken as a whole. The accompanying financial .information listed as supplementary information 
and other financial scHedules in the accompanying table of contents is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis, and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statern_ents of the City of 
Crystal Lake; .lliinois. Such information has been subjected to_ the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic finandalstaternents taken as a whole. · · 

We did not audit the introductory and statistical information listed in the table of c.ontents and, 
therefore, e?<press no opinion thereon~ · · 

~~rf<U. 
October 13, 2008 . 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



-··· -- ----------

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Crystal Lake (Clty}, we offer readers of the City's .financial 
statem-ents this narrative overview and· a.;talysis of the fi~ancial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended April 30,2008. We _encourage readers of this document to considerthe ·information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of 
transmittal, which can be found on pages i ·to' vii of this repoR:. -All amounts within the 
management's discussion and analysis~ unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands 
ofdollars. - · - - -

Financial Highli_ghts 

• The ass-ets of tlie City- exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$233,565 (net assets). Of this amount, $41,543 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to· 
meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. . -

• _The City's total net assets increased by$2,166. This reflects an increase in receivables for 
property taxes and value of construction in progress. _ . .-

• ·As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds report combined 
ending fund balances of $42A96, an increase of $1,168 in comparison with the prior year. __ 
Approximately 90.9% of this total amount, $38,599, is available for spending at the City's 
discretion (unreserved fund balance). -

• At the end of the current- fiscal year, unreserved- fund balance for the general fund was 
$19,765 or 92.4%percent of total general fund expenditures. - -

• The City .total debt {bonds and notes) decreased by $1,099 (3.2%) during the current fiscal 
year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

_ This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 

1) Government-wide financial statements 
2) Fund financial statements 
3) Notes to the financial statements. 

This report also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic -
- -

· financial statements themselves. 

· Government-wide financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with- a broad 
overview of the.City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business: 

The statement ofnet assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,, increases or decreases in 
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of- the City is 
improving or deteriorating. · 
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Overview of the Financial Statements (cont'd) · 

GC)vernment;-wide financial statements (cont'd) 
' ' • I ' ' • 

The statement of activities -presents information showing how the City's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon- as the 
underlying- event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related qash flows. 

· Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result· 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods· {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave),-·-- · · 

- ' . . . 

Both of the government-wide financial ~statements distinguish functions of the City that are :· 
princip~lli supported by taxes and intergovernmental·· revenues· (governmental activities): from 
other functions ihat are intended to recover all or a. significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business;..ty{ie activities). The governmentar activities of the -City included 
-general gov~rnrnent, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation. The 
business-type activities of the City include waterworks and sewerage. 

The government-wide financial st~tements include not only the City itseif (known as the prima,Y 
government), but also a legally separate· library for which ~he City is. accountable. This 
·component unit is reported ·separately_ from· the financial infonnation · presented for the- primary 
government -itself. · · 

The government:-wide financi~l statements cari-b~ found on pages 13-16 of this report~-

Fund financial-statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources tha.t have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, 
like 'other state ·and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure- and demonstrate 
compliance with finance;..related legaltequirements. -All 6f the funds ofthe City-can be divided 
into three categories:' governmental funds, proprietary funds,' and fiducia·ry funds. . · 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used· to account for e~sentially' the same 
. functions reported as governmental activities in the :government-wide financial. statements, 

however governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the encf or' the -
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements~ · · · · 

Because the_ focus of governmental funds is nam)wer than th-at of the government-Wide financial · 
· - statements,. it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in. the government-wide .financial statements. ' 
By doing so, r13aders. may better understand the long.:temiimpact of the· government's near-term 
financing -decisions. Both the governmental fund balanee sheet and the governnientcid fund 
~tatement of revenues·, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
·facilitate this comparison· between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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Overview ofthe.Financial Statements (cont'd) 

Government-wide financial statements (cont'd}. 

Governmental funds (cont'd) 

· The City maintains twenty-nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented. 
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in .the governmental funds statement of · 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the- general, the motor fuel tax, the 
Illinois. Municipal Retirement and the fire rescue funds, all of which are considered to be· major 
funds. Data from the other 25 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation, lndivi<;Jual fund data for each .of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. · 

Th.e CitY adopts an annual appropriated budget for itS. general fund. A budgetar1 comparison 
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17 - 22 of this report. · 

Proprietary . funds. The City maintains one proprietary. fund. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type. activities in the Government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to ·account for its waterworks and 
sewerage activities. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information ·as the government-wide financial 
·statements, only in .more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the waterworks ·and sewerage fund, which· is considered to be a major fund of 
the City. · · · . 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 26 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. · Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for. the benefit of . 
parties outside the government. .Fiduciary funds are· not_ reflected in the government-wide 
financial statement because the ·resources of those funds are not available to support the City's 
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary.funds is much like.that used for proprietary 
funds. ·· . .. 

. . . . ' . 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 - 28 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 
· to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. ·The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29 - 64 of this report. · 
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

Other information. · In addition to the basic financ.ial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning· the City's progress 
in funding 'its obligation to 'provide pension benefits· to its employees, as well as 'budgetary 
comparison schedules for certain major funds. Required supplementarY infom:iation can_ be 
found on pages 65,- 72.of this report. 

, The .combining ~tatem'ents referredt~ earlier in connection witti nonmajor governmental funds 
~-- are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions. 

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 73 of 
this report. . 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over- time as a usefui indicator of .-a government's 
firiaricial position. In the case. of the_ City, assets exceeded liabilities by $233,565 atthe close of 
the most recent fi$cal year~ . - · 

Consolidated Statement of Net Assets 
__ As of April 30, 2008 

{In thousands) 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
Activities. - Activities Government 

2007 2008 2007 2008- 2007 2008-

··Current and 
other assets $ 54,385 $ - 57,430 -$ 6,697 $ 6,596'• $ 61,082 ', $ 64,026 

Capital assets 153,492 155,285 70,984 69,384 224,476 224,669 

Total assets ' 207,877. - 212,715 - 77,681 75,980 285,558 288,695 

Long:..term liabilities 20;025 20,375 17,812 - 16,717 -_ 37,837 _37,092 
Other liabilities- 14,469 ' - 16,141 1,853 1;897 ,· 16,322 ,18,038 

Total liabilities 34,494 36,516- 19,665 18,614 54;159 - 55,130 

Net assets: 
· Invested capital asset 

net of related debt 1a6,111 139,029 52,830 - 52,187 189,54'7 191,216-
Restricted 1,263' 806 1,263 806 
Unrestricted 35,403 36,364 •' 5,186 5,179 '40;589 ' 41;543 

Total net assets $173,383 . $ 176,199 . $ 58,016 $ 57,366 $231,399 $233,565 
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------- ···------------

Government.:wide Financial Analysis (cont'd) 
~ ' . ' . -

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (8_1.9 percent) reflects its investment in eapital 
assets (e.g.; -land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt 

.·.used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.- The City uses these eapital_assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. · 

. . 

Although the City's investment in its capitai assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed- to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, sinGe 
the capital assets themselves cannot be-used to liquidate these liabilities~· ·- · 

City of Crystal Lake Net ASsets 
' . .. . . ' . 

An additional-portion of the City's net assets (OA percent) represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they inay be used. The remaining balance of. unrestricted net 
assets ($41,543) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

' . . - . - ' 

At the end of the current fiscal.year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate 
governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

There was. a decrease 'of $456 in restricted net assets reported in connection with _the City's 
governmental activities. This decrease resulted mostly from the pay-down of City debt. · 

The government's net assets increased by $2,166 during the current fiscal year. This refleCts 
an increase in receivables for property taxe;:> and V<31Ue of construction in progress for annual 
road programs. The remainder of this growth largely reflects rate increases, increases in 

·operating grants, and investment earnings. ·· 
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City of Crystal La~e Net Assets (cant' d) 

ChangesJn Net ASsets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Onthousarids} · 

. Govemmerital Activities .. Business-type Activities Total Primary Goverrimerit 
2007 2008 -'2007 . 2008 2007 . 2008 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Grants and contributions: 

$ 4,606. $ 4,130 $ ,· 7;71!;1 ·. $ 7,389 .. $ 12;325 $ 11;519 

· Operating 
Capital 

General revenues: 
Property · 
Other·taxes 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
. Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety . 
Highways and streets 

.. · Culture and recreation 
,Interest on long-term debt 

Business:.type activiti.es v · 

· waterworks and sewerage 

Total e~penses· 

. Revenues over (under) 
expenses · · 

Transfers 

1,425 

9;t87 
17,n5· 
. 3 536 

36,529 

7,411 .· 
17,181 
6,100 

252 
646 

31,590 

4,939 

(6,616) 

1,320 

10;~65 
. 18,115 

- 3,116 

37,046 

8;124 
.11.132 

7,251. 
- 299 

791 

33,597 

3,449 ·' 

(633) 

242 

7,961 

8,605· 

8,605 

(644) 

6,616 

233 

7,622'' 

. 8;905. 

8,905 

{1,283) 

633' 

1,425 

. 9,187 
17;775 
. 3,778-

. 44,490 

7,411 
11,1e1 
6,100 

252. 
646 

8:665 

4,295 

1,320 

10,365 
18,115 ... 

3,349 

44,668 

8,124 
17,132 

7,251 
299 
791 

8~905 

. 42,502 

2,166 

,. 

Chang~ innetassets (1,677) 2,816 5,972 (650) 4,295 2,166 

Net assets - beginning of year 175,060 -173,383 52,044 . 58,016 227,104 231,399 

Net a5s~ts- ending of year ·$ f73,383 $ 176,199 $ 58,016 . $ 57,366 $ 231,399 $ 233,565 .. 

Governmental Activities:. 

Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $2,816. Key elements of this 
. increase are as follows: 

• Property taxes increased by $1,178 ( 12.9 percent) during the year. 
• . Governmental Activities interest incqme (not required in the schedule abt;>ve) deClined from 

last year$108,238 (not in thousands}. · -
• Public SafetY expenditures in the -General Fund increased over prior year by $556. The 

decrease in the Public Safety expenditures is attributable to decreased capitai in Fire 
Rescue. 



City of Crystal Lake Net Assets (cont'd) 

Business-type activities. Business-type. activities decreased the City's net assets by $650. 
Key ele~ents of this decrease are as follows. · 

• Charges for services· for business-type activities decreased by 4.25 percent. The 
Waterworks and Sewerag·e Fund accounts for a significant portion of this decrease with a . 
rainy summer season. . . · · - . . 

• _ Operating expenses increase is due to increases in costs of electricity and chemicals. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds· 

As noted .earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
.finance-related legal requirements. . · 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing- the City's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the ·· 
fiscal year. · 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund .. balances of $42,496, an· increase of $1,167 in comparison with the prior year. · 

·Approximately 90.9% of this total amount, $38,599 C:onstitutes unreserved fund balance, which 
is- available fo.r spending at the, government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is 
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending b~calise it has already been 
committed to. pay debt service or is reserved for prepaids an(j.inventories. 

The general.fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the.current fiscal year, 
·unreserved fund balance ofthe general fund was $19,765, while total fund balance reached 
$22,421. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund 

. balaf1ce represents 92.4% of total actual general fund expenditures, while total fund balance 
represents 104% of that same amount.· · · 

' ' . . 

The fund balance of the City's 9enerai fund increased by $2,022, during the current fiscal year. . 
Key factors in this growth are as follows: · 

. . . ~ ' . ' . 

• Insurance claims lagging into future years, $383. 
• Public Safety storage building postponed $375~ 
• The general fund interest income increased signifiGantly by $512 ... 

The motor fuel tax fund has a total fund balanCe of$9,770, all of which is set aside for street 
improvements. The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the motor fuel tax 
fund was $608 .. This is due mainly to timing of completion of major- road projects. 

_g .. 



Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds· (ront'd) . 

· The fire rescue fund has a total fund balance of $3,788. -The net increase in- fund balance 
during the current year in.the fire rescuefund-was $1,177. This is due mainly to an increase in 
number of billable caUs. 

The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund has a total fund balance of $7 45, all of which i~ · 
unrestricted. The. net increase in fund .balance during the current year in the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund was $323. This is ·due to property taxes and other revenues exceeding current 

· year-contributions to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund. 

Proprietary funds~ The City's proprietary fund provides_the same type of information found in · 
· the govemment~wide financial statements, butin more detaiL · -

Unrestricted net assets of the waterworks and sewer~ge fund at the end of the year amounted _ -
- _to $5, 178; The net assets decreased by $650 from the prior year. -·Factors Concerning the 

finances of this fund have already been addressed iri the discussion ofthe City's business-type 
_activities. · - · · -

General FundBudgetaryHighJights 

General Fund-BudgetaryHighlights.-
{In· thousands) -

.Origin~l Final-

Revenues and other financing sources: 
Budget· Budget Actual 

Property taxes . $ 1~930 $ 1,930' $ 1,929 
'Other taxes - 17,476 17,476. 18,115 
Other 2,889 2,889 ~ 3,462 

-· Total revenues 22,295 22,295 23,506 

'Expenditures ·-. 22,994 22;994 21,411 

Other financing uses ,.... transfers out _ - {743) (743) (73) - -

Net change in fund balance $' {1,442} '$ ~1,442~ $ 2,022 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights (cont'd)· 

During the year, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures were less than 
budgetary· estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw upon existing fund balance. The budget 
was: not _amended during the year. General government expenditures made up the largest 
portion of expenditure savings versus budget; these savings were spread across nearly· all 
departments under the general government classification as all departments closely monitored 
their costs. · · · 

· Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

·Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental. and business-type 
.activities as of April 30, 2008, amounted to $224,669 (net of.accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes land, construction· in progress, infrastructure, buildings, 
improvements, and machinery and equipment. The total increase in the .City's investment in 
_capital assets for the currentfiscal'year was 2.3 percent. · · 

Capital Assets at Year End, Net of Depreciation 
(In thousands) . 

Govenimerital Activities · Business-!J'~e Activities · . ··Tolai.Prima!l: Government 
2007 2008 2007. 2008 2007 2008 

. Land $ 100,558 $ ~02,443 $ .· 628 $ 628 $ 101,186 $ 103,071 
· Construction in progress 946 1,309 7,013 5,529 7,959 6,838 

Buildings·and improvements 20,375 19,648 13;088 12,454 33,463 32,102 
Machinery, equipment and 
vehides 3,688 3,774 2,201 2,109 . 5,889 5,883 

Infrastructure 27,615 28;111 48,054 48,664 75,669 '16,775 

Total $ 153,182 $ 155,285 $ 70,984 $ ·69,384 $ 224,166 $ 224,669 

·Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:··· 

· • A Variety of street constru.ction projects including widening and expansion projects 
· for existing streets and utility related ·projects totaling $2,149. · 

• Purchase of land for Vulcan Lakes TIF $1,800~ 
• Several vehicles were purchased at a east of$379. 

Additional information on the City's capital asset~ can be found in Note LE.3 and II.C, of this 
report. · · · · · 
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C~pital Asset and Debt Administration (cont'd) 

long-term debt. At the end of the current- fiscal year, the City had totai bonded debt 
outstanding of $21,355. Of this amount, $12,220 comprises debt backed by the full faith and 
credit of the government and $9,135 is special assessment debt for which the ·City is liablt3 _in 
the evemtofdefault bythe property owners subject to the assessment -

• I • • 

·Long-Term Deb.t at Year· End_­
(In thousands) __ 

Balance, Balance, 
Ma}' 1, 2007 _ -Additions Deletions A~ru 3o, 2oo8 

General obligatjor. bonds $ 13,315 $ $ 1,095 $ 12,220 
SpeCial service area bonds 8,435 750 50 9,135 
Notes payable _ 13;179 704 12,475 

$ 34,929 $ 750 $ 1,849 $ 33,830 

' ' - ' 

The ~City's total deqt decreased by '$i ,099 (3.15 percent) even with the issuance of $750 for 
- SSA#44. - - -- -

--The City maintains an ~Aa3" rating fro111 _Moody's for general obligation debt. 

- Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found ih Note ILE of this report 

Economic Facto.~s ·and Next Year's Budgets and R~tes _ 
- ' 

• The unemployment rate for the City is currently4.0 percent, which is a decrease from a rate 
o{4.3 percent a year ago. This compares favorably-to the state's average unemployment 
rate of 6.8 percent and the national average rate of 6. t percent. - - - -

-• The occupancy rate of the- government's central business district has remained at 96.5 
percent for the past three years. _ _ - -

• Inflationary_ trends in the region compare favorably to national i_ndlces. 

--All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2009 fiscal year. 

Both the_ water and-sewer rates were increased for the 2008 budget year. · __ The water and sewer 
rates were.increased by an average of 5.0 percent for all customers. These rate increases were-
necessary to operational needs for the-waterworks and sewem:ige fund~ .. 

Requests for Information -
• • • I • • 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe City's finances for all those -
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions ·concerning any of the information 
provided in. this report or requests for additionai financial· information should be addressed to 
Mark F. Nannini, Director of Finance, 100 W. Woodstock, Crystal Lake, Illinois 60014. 

- 12 :"' 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Assets 

Cash and investments 
Receivables, net: 

Property taxes 
Accrued interest 

Ac<:ounts 
Internal balances 
Due frorri fiduciary funds _ 
Due from primary government 
Due from other governments 
Inventory 
Prepaid items and other assets 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent:-

Deferred bond issuance costs 
Capital assets (net of 
-aceumulated depreciation): 

Land 
Construction in. progress 
Buildin~s and improvements 
Machinery, equipment 

and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

(cant' d) 

City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
·.·Statement of Net Assets 

April 30, 2008 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

$ 39,583,927 $ 6,017,445 

11,011,168 -
484,891 
771,791 492,897 

49,978 (49,978) 
. 213,248 

3,880,645 
50,597-

. -1,075,429 135,921 

57,121,674 6,596,285 

308,207 

102,443,500 628,095 
1,309;579 5,528,739 

19,646,729- 12,454,193 

-3,774,055 2,109,413 
28,111,486 . 48,663,904 

155,593,556 - 69,384,344 

$212,715,230 $ 75,"980,629 

- 13-

Component 
Unit -

Crystal Lake .c 

Public 
Total Library 

$ 45,601,372 $ 2,630,299_ 

11,011,1~8_ 3,760,533 
48.4,8.91 

. 1 ,264,688_ 

213,248 
235 

3,880,645 
50,597. 

1,211,350 

63,717,959 . 6,391,067 

. 308,207 

1 03,07_1;595 661,569 
6,838;318 

32,100,922 . 5,927,251 

5,8_83,468 75,186 
76,775,390 

224,977,900 . 6,664,006 

$ 288,695,859 $ 13,055,073 



-· 

' 

City -of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Statement of_ Net Assets (cont'd) 

April 30, 2008 

· Governmental Business-type 

: 
Activities __ Activities 

Liabilities 

<:;urrent: 
AccountS payable - $ 1,721,601 $ 446,680 
Accrued liabilities 196,517 25,190 

·. RecaptureJeespayabfe- . __ 1 ,678,632 
Due to component unit 235 _ .. 
. Unearned property tax revenue - 11,011;168 
Deposits payable 16,646 116,580 
Interest payable 207,531 169,027 
General obligation bonds- payable 550,000 335,000 
Speciarservice area· bOnds payable 130;000 
Notes payable ·: _ - 721,810 
-.Compensated absences_ payable 628;329 82,302 

Total current lial,lilities 16,140,659 -·. 1,896,589 

Noncurrent: 
Compensated absences payable 3,988,568 626;708 
Claims and judgments- _ - 87,885 12,874 
Bonds payable: 

General obligation 7,010,0QO 4,325,000 
Special se,Yice area 9,005,000 

Notes payable 11,753,089 
Net pen$ ion oblig~tion 284,133 -

Total noncurrent liabilities 20,375,586 - 16,717,671 

Total liabilities 36,516,245 18,614;260 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 139,028,556 52,249,445 

Restricted for. 
. Working cash 

Debt servic~ 806,392 
Unrestricted 36,364,037 5,116,924 

Total n~t assets $ 176,198,985 $ 57,366,369 

·See accompanying notes. 

- 14-

Component 
Unit 

Crystal Lake 

Public 
Total" Library 

,· '!L. 

$- 2,168,281 $ ' 63·,345 
221,707· 58,000 

1.678,632 
235 

11,011,168 3,760,533 
133,226 "•:.. 

376,558 
8'851000 '' 
130,000.' 
721;810 125,000 
ft0,631' 66,612 

'18.;037 ,248 4,073,550 

4;615,276 473,051_-
--

100,759 

11,33S,OOO 
9,005,000-

11,753~089 500,000 
284,133 

37,093,257 973,051 

s5,13o,5o5 5;046,601: 

191,278,001 - 6,039,006 

52,189 
806,392 

41,480,961 1,917,277 

$ 233,565,354 " $ 8,008,472 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Statement of Activities 

, Forthe Year Ended'April30, 2008 

Functions/Programs 

Governmental activities: 
General and administrative 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Culture a'"'d recreation 
Interest on lo11g-term debt 

. Total governmental activiti.es 

Business-tYpe activities - Waterworks and Sewerage-

Expenses 

$ 8,124,338 
17,132,484 

7,250,516 
299,181 
791,215' 

33,597,734 

·8,905,333 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and· 
Services Contributions 

$ 1,344,296 
2~565,009 

220,544 

4,129,849 

. 7,388,908 

$ 113,286 
56,491 

1,150,479 

' :-1,320~256 

Total primary government $ 42,503,067 ' $ ' 11,518;?,57 $ 1,320,256 

Component Unit:- Crystal Lake Public Library . 

See ~ccompanying notes. 

$ 3,423,176. $ 146,314 $ .50,171 ....._ __ _,.:,. __ 

- 15-

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property 
R_eplacement .: 
State sales 
Auto rental · 
Income 
Franchise fees - cable 
Telecommunications 

.·Hotel 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Gain on disposal of 
. capital assets 

Transfers 

· Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of the year 

Net assets, end ofthe year 



. Capital -.. 
Grants and 

Contributions · _ 

'$ 

-

$.-

·$ 

Net (Expense) R,evenue and 
Changes in. Net Assets 

Governmental Business-:type _ 
Activities Activities Total 

$ '(6,666,756) $ $ (6,666,756) 
-(14,510,984)- (14,510,984) 
' (5,879,493)" - (5,879,493) 

(299,181) (299,181) 
(791 ,215} '(791;215) 

(28, 147,629) (28,147,629) 

- (1,516,425.) -- (1 ,516,425) . 

(28, 147,629)' ·_ (1,516,425) (29,664,054) 

-

' - . -10,364,823 10,364)123 
171,107 171;107 

11,471,956 - 11,471,956 
26,807-- 26,807_ 

3;748,680 3,748,680 
433,134 433,134 

2,022,417 2,022,417 
241,208 241,208 

1,794,262 - 222,720 2,016,982 
1,321,860 - 9,586 1,331~446 

1,598 
--

-1,598 
~632,796} 632,796 

-
. 30,963,458 866,700 - 31;830,158 

2,815,829 (649,725) 2,166,104 

173,383,156 -- 58,016,094 231 ,399,250- -

$'176,198,985 ._ $ 57,366,369 $ 233,565,354 

-16-

Component Unit .­
Crystal Lake · 

Public 
Library 

$" 

----

(3,226,691) -

3,552,304 

- -

-
147,91_7 
88,041 

3,788,262 

561,571 

7.,446,901 

$ 8,008,472-

L_ ________ _:___ __________________ __ 



City ofGrystal Lake, Illinois 
Balance Sheet -Governmental Funds 

April 30, 2008 

Cash and investments 
Receivables: 

· Property taxes, net 
Interest 
Other. 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Inventory - · 
Prepaid items· 

Total assets 

Assets 

$ 

$ 

General 
·Fund· 

16,308,587 

2,114,579 
.· 391 472 

1 . 

212,369 
2,492;655 
3,791,577 

50,597 
626,834 

25,988,67.0 

Special 

Motor 
· FueiTax 

_Fund 

$ 9,708,516 

44,591 
27,061 

89,068 

$ 9,869,236'. 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: -
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Recapture fees payable 
Due to otherfunds 
Due to component unit _ 
Deferred property tax: revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
. Reserved for: 

Inventory _ 
· Prepaid items 

._ Debt service -· _ 
- Long-term loans receivable 

Other postemployment benefits 
Unreserved, reported in: -­

General Fund 
Capital Projects Funds 
Special Revenue Funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

See accompanying notes. 

$ 1,304,791 
140,003 

601 
6,770 

235 
2,114;579 

3,566,979 

50,597 
626,834 

1,800,000 
179,436 

19,764,824 

$ 98,739_ 

98,739 

9,770,497 

. ?F2~.6_~~ . 9,770,497 

~ $ 25,988,670 $ 9,869,236 

-&e0C:ft!... ~LD-~ 7--J-'1 ut'Y,1£1LP ·. 
_ -

17
-- kb0~ fx\.i> ~ 't1'i I ?Jcr0 



Revenue Funds 
_Illinois 

·Fire Municipal Other Total · 
Rescue · , Retirement _Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund. - Funds Funds-

$ 3,405,524 $ 745,052-- $ 9,41"6,248 $ 39,583,9~7 

. 5,518,199 1,894,571 1 ,483;819 11,01.1,168--
-- . _48,828 '-484 891 . -

. ' 
232,293 300,068 771,791 

- 34,189 2,526~844 
3,880,645 

50,597 
434,922 - 13,673 -- 1,075,429 

$ 9,590,938 $ . 2,639,623 $ -~ 1 ,296,825 $ - 59,385,292 

$ 230;771 $' - $ 103,946. $ 1,738,247 
.. 54,019' . - 2,495 196,517 

1,678,031 1~678,632 

·2,256,848 2,263,618 
- 235 

5,518,199 1 ,894,571 - ' 1 483 819 
' ' 

11,011,168 

5,802,989 1,894,571 -5,525,139 •'16,888,417 : 

_.._ - 50,597 
434,922 1,061,756 

-806,392 806,392 
-1,800,000 

179,436 

19,764,824 
.. -2,437,586 2,437,586 

-3;353,027 _745,052 '2,527,708 16,396,284 

3,787,949 . 745,052 5,771,686 42,496,875 

$ 9,590,938 · __ '$ 2,639,623 $ 11,296,825 $ 59;385,292 

-18-
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. City ofGrystaLLake, Illinois 
· -Reconciliation of Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds· 

· . ·. · to .~he Stat~ment ot'Net Assets . 

April 30, 2008 

Total fund balance- governmental funds (page 18) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
. . 
of net assets are different because: 

capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial . 
. ' ~ . . . . 

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 
' : . . . . . . 

. . 

·Bond issuance costs are amortized over the life of the issue 

for governmental activities, put expensed h the period .paid in 
the 'go':'emmental funds. · 

. ' . 

. Some liabilities reported in the Statement of Net Assets do -riot .. 

require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are 
not reported as liabilities in governmental funds. · These liabilities-

. ,, "' . ' 

consist of: 

General obligatiqn bonds payable 

· Special service area bonds payable 

Corripe_nsated absences payable 
Claims and judgments-

Net pension obligation 
. Interest payable ·. 

Net assets of governmental activities (page 14) 

See accompanying notes. 

_. 19-

$ 42,496,875 

155,285i349 

308,207 

. (7,560,000) 
. ' (9, 135,000) 

(4,616,S:97) 
(87,885) 

'(284,133) 
(207,531) 

$ . 176, 198,985 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chan.ges 

. in Fund Balances -.Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Revenues: 
Charges for_services 
UceiJses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Fines and forfeitures 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

·Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
·Current: 

General government 
Publ.ic safety 
Highways and streets -
Culture and recreation.. 

Debt service: · 
Principal retirement 
.Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over {under) expenditures 
before other financing sources {uses) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bonds issued -
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances; beginning of the year· 

Fund balances, end of. the year 

See accompanying notes. 
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$ 

$ 

General 
.Fund 

685,719 
639,507 
- 96,966' 
501,930 

1,929,135 
18,115,309 

938,000 
598,981 

23,505,547/ 

6,019,055 
9,762,988 
4,334,819 

25S,OOO 
·168,801 
869,846 

,21,410,509 

- 2,095,038 

77,967/ 
{150,655) 

(72,688) 

2,022,350 

-20,399,341 

22,421,691 

Special 

Motor 
Fuel Tax 

Fund 

$ 

1 '150,479 

422;730 
{604) 

1,572,6051 

626,273 

337,518 

.963,791 ' 

608;814 

~ 

608,814 

9,161,683 

$ 9,770,497 



Revenue Funds 

_.Fire 
-_ Rescue·· 

Fund 

$- 1,983,229. 

16,320 

5,087,046 
-

69,594 
45,939 . 

. 7 ,202,1281 . 

; - : 

5,951;9.11 

145;376 

.. 6,097,287 

1 ~104,841 

$ 

-150,610J' 
. (77,967) 

72,643 

1,177,484 

2,_610,465 -

$ 3,787,949 $ 

· llliriois 
Municipal 

Retirement 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

·Funds 

- . $ 541,731 
220,544 

1,821,144 1,527,498 
56,491 

47,498 316,440 -
327,358 

2,990,062 -

711,552 625,574 
. 259,188 . 86,-()03 
276,154 153,511 
299,181 .-

575,000" 
624,954 -

4,638,462 

1,546,075 -6,703,504 

- 322,567 (3,713,442) 

·.750,000 
. - 6413 

-. ' 
(6,368). 

750,045 

3_22,567 . (2,963,397) 

422,485 8,735,083 

745,052 $- '5,771,686 

-21 -

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,210;679 

$ 

860,051 
·1,263,765 

·.: 501,930 
1 0,364,823 
18,171,800 
. 1,794,262 

:~71,674-

'" 7,356,181 
16;060,090 
5,390,7~7 
- 299;181 -

--
830,000 
793,755 .. 

: 5,991;202 -

36,721 ,166 ; 

- 417,818 

750,000 
234,990 

-· (234;990) 

750,000 

1,167,818 

41,329,057 

42,496,875 . 
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. City of C.-ystal Lake, Illinois 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures and Changes i~ Fund Balances of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

· ··.For the Year Ended April30; 2008 

Amounts r~ported for governmental activities in the statement.ofactivlties­

(pages 15 arid 16) are different because:. 

Net change in fund b~lances ~ total governmental funds (page 2'1) 
. . ,. . '. ··' 

. . . 

· Governmental. funds report capital outlays as expenditures, 
.• however. they are capitalized and depreciated in the 
statement of activities. 

·. Depreciation on capital assets is reported_as an expense in the 

statement of activities~ 
' 

The net effect ofvarious miscellaneous transactions involving 

capital assets (i:e .• sales, trade-ins) is to decrea·se net assets, , · 

The issuance .of long-term debt is reported as an other' financing 

source· _in governmental funds but as an increase of piincipal 
outstanding in the statement of activities. 

The repaym~nt of long-term debtis reported as an expenditure 
when du-e in governmental funds_but as a reduction of principal · 

outstanding in the statement of activities. 

. . 

Governmental funds report the.effect of issua~ce casts,. 

premiums. discounts. ~nd similar items when debt is first .. 

issued, whereas these ainounts are deferred and amortized 

.in the statement ofactivitles. 

Some expenses reported in the statein~nt of activities do not require · 

the use of current financial resources and. therefore. are. not' reported 

as expenditures in governmental funds. These.activities consistof: 

Increase in compensated absences payable 

Decrease in claims and judgments 

Decrease in interest payable 

_Increase in net pension obligation 

Change in.net assets of governmental activities (page 16) · 

See accompanying notes. 
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$ 1,167,818 

4,166,627. 

(1,973,859) 

. (88,697) 

(750,000} 

830,000. 

{2,652) 

(446,177} 
62,176 

.• .2.?38 
(151,945) 

$ 2.815;829 



City ofCrystal Lake, Illinois 
Proprietary Fund -Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 

. Statement of Net Assets . 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables - accounts 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 

.Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

April 30, 2008 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:­
Land 
Constructi.on in progress 
Building improvements. 
Machinery and equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total noncurrent assets -

Total asse~ 

-Liabilities 
-Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Deposits payable 

-Accrued payroll 
Interest payable 
Due to other funds 
General obligation bonds- current 

· Notes payable . 
·. Compensated absences payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences payable· 
Claims and judgments 
Notes payable · 
General obligation bonds - noncurrent 

Total noncurrent liabilities · 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested incapital assets, net ofrelated debt. 

· Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

- . 
See accompanying notes. 
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$ 6,017,445 
492,897 

6,770-
'135,921 

. 6;653,033 

628,095 
5,528,739 

. 12,454,193 
2,109,413 

48,663,904 

. 69,384,344 

76,037,377-

446,680 
116,580 

25,190 .· 
.. 169,027 

-56;748 
335,000 
721,810 

82,302 

1,953,337 

626,708 
12,874 

11,753,089 
4,325,000 

16,717,671 

18,671,008 

52,249,445 
. 5,116,924 

. $.57,366,369 .. 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Proprietary·Fund M Waterworks and Sewerage ·Fund 

Statement of Revenues, ·Expenses and _Changes in Fund Net Assets 
For the Year Ended April30,.2008 

Operating reveoues: 
. Charges .for services 
·Miscellaneous · 

Total operating revenues 

. ' 

. Operating expenses - excluding depredation 

Operating income.before depreciation 

Depreciation 

.. Operating loss 

Nonoperating revenue (expense): 
Gain on :sale of capital' a~sets 
lnterestincome · 

. : Rental.income 
Interest expense . 

_Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 

Loss before capital contribution 

Capital contribution . ' 

. Change in net assets · 

- Total. net assets, beginning of.the year 

Total net assets, _end of the year' 

See accompanying notes. 
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$ 7;224,427 
9,586 

. 7 ;234 ,013 <(-'·· 

·. 5,858,640 .......-

·_1,375,373 

. ---~-
... As28.613;:}J · 
-~~---" .~ ' 

(1,153,240) 

1,598 t.--
222,720~ 

. 164,481 \--• 
·(518,080)/ 

(129,281). 

(1,282,521) . 

-632,796 

(649,725) 

58,016,094 

$ 57,366,369 



City of Crystal Lake; Illinois 
Proprietary Fund -Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 

· Statement of Cash Flows 
· For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

' ' 

Cash flows from ope-rating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments. to employees 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from-capital ahd related financing activities: 
Capital assets purchased . 

.. Proceeds from sale of capital.assets 
Principal.paid on general obligation bonds 
Principal paid on notes payable 
Interest paid on general obligation bonds and notes payable 

Net cash from capital and 
related financing activities 

Cas_h flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Advances from (to) other funds 
Rental in<;:ome 

Net cash from noncapital 
fio~mcing activities . 

Cash flows.from investing activities­
interest and dividends 

Net increase in cash and 
cash equivalents 

Bal~nce, beginning of the year 

. Balance, end of the year 

Noncash transactions - capital contribution 
· received from governmental funds 

(cont'd) 
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$ :7,402,043 
(2,949,679) 
(2,973,975) 

1,478;389 

(233,795) 
'1,598 

(315,000) 
. (703,854) 
(527,805). 

(1 ,778;856) 

(481,060) . 
164,481 

(316,579) 

,· "' 222,720 

(394,326) 

- 6,411,771 

'$ 6,017,445 

$ 632,796 



·City o_f Crystal Lake, lllinoi.s 
Proprietary F-uild ~ Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows (coilt'd) · 
·For the Year EndedAp'dl30, 2008· 

~econdliatioil Of operating lOS$ to net cash provided 
' by operating activities: ' 

Operating. loss 
Adjustments to reconcile 'operating income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
Amortization or' loss on refunding 
Decrease in receivables -
Increase in prepaid items 
Increase in accounts pa-yable 

· -· Increase in deposits payable-
. Increase in accrued payroll _ .. 

Decrease In claims and judgments payable 
'--:Increase in compensated absences payable 

• · Net cash from operating activities 

See accompanying notes. 
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$ ( 1,153,240) 

' 2,528,613 ' 

168,030 
19,263 

(69,284) 
11,317 
(6,371) 
(8,961) 

(10,978) 

$ 1,478,389 



City of Crystal Lake,_lilinois .­
'.Fiduciary Funds.- Trust an~ Agency Funds 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
April 30, 2008 

Assets 

Cash 
Investments:_ 

Illinois Funds Investment Pool 
Money market acco~nts 
U.S. government and agency securities 

- . ' 

Insurance contracts 
Mutual funds - bonds 
M lJtual funds - stocks 

Interest receivable 
Other receivable 

Total assets -

Liabilities 

_Accounts payable 
Recapture fees payable 
Du_e to other funds 

Total liabilities 

-Net Assets · 

Restncted for pension benefits 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes. 

--
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$ 

Pension 
_Trust 
Funds 

218,698 

216,014 
575,469 

,17,779,908 
1,199,293 
1,054,369 

12,559,514 
198,113 

$33,801,378 

$ 3,949 

195 

4,144-

- 33,797,234 

$ 33,801,378 

$ 

.$ 

$ 

$ 

---·-------

Agency 
··Funds 

128,567 

621 

129,188 

(83,865) 
213,053 

129,188 

129,188-



. City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . 
Fiduciary Funds -.. Trust and Agency Funds 

Statement of Revenues,_Expensesand Changes in Fund Net Ass~ts 
_For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Contributions: 
"_Employer 
·Participant 

· Additions 

· lnvestrnent income: . - . 
Net depreciation in fairvalue-ofinvestments 
Interest income 

--Less investment expenses 

Totafinvestmerit income -

- Total additions- --

Deductions 

Pension benefits and r~funds -
Administrative expenses 

· Total deductions _ 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets, beginning oftheyear 

Total net assets, end of the year 

See accompanying notes. 
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·$ .1,929,136 
742,541 

2,671;677 

- (487,7"62) 
1;799,963 
(126,191) 

1,186,010 

3,857-,687 -

1,598,750 -
-_ 15,015 

1,£13,765 

. 2,243,922 -

31,553,312 

_- $33,797;234 -



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
.N.otes to the Financial Statements 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Crystal Lake, Illinois (City) was incorporated in 1914. The City is a home-rule 
community operating under a Council-Manager form of government and provides services 
ttiat include: police, fire, water and . sewer utility, street maintenance, community 
development, and general administrative services. 

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in 
.the United States of America as applicable to governments. The· Governmental Accounting -
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The following is a summar-Y of 

· the more significant accounting policies: · · 

A. The Reporting Entity 

.As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by GASB, th~ 
financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as component units·. 
which are legally separate organizations for which elected officials of -the . primary 
government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as: 

. . ' 

·1. · Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (a) the 
.ability to ·impose will by the primary government, or (b) the possibility that the 
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on 
the primary government; or 

2. Fiscal dependency on the primary government. 

Discretely Presented Component Units- The City's component unit is reported in.a 
.. separate oolumn to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City... · 

. . 
The Crystal Lake Public ·library (Library) is governed by a nine-member Board of 
Trustees appointed by the Mayor of the City. The Library is financially accountable to 
the .City, as the City's approval is· needed· for the Library to issue bonded .debt. The 
Library:s fiscalyear:..end is the same as the City's. Separate financial statements for the· 
Library are not available. 

Other Governmental Entities - Several other governmental entities hav~ operations· 
within the City but are separate legal entities. These entities· include School District 
Nos. 47 arid 155, Crystal lake Civic Center Authority, and the Crystal Lake Park District. 
-The City is not financially accountable for these entities, and they are, therefore, not 
included in the City's reporting entity. ··In addition, the City does not believe that it is a 
component unit of any other entity. · 
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.City of Crystal Lake~ Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (confd) 

.I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (confd) 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - · 

The government-wide Statement of Net Assets a~d Statement of Activities .report the 
overall financial activity ofthe City. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double -
counting of internal activities of the City. The financiar activities of the City consist of 
governmental adivities, which are primarily supported by ~axes and int~rgovernmental 
·revenues, and business-type activities, which rely ·ta·a significant extent on fee$ and 
charges for services. - · 

. The ·statement of Net ASsets_ presents the City~ non-fidliciar)t assets and liabilities with 
the difference reporte9 in three categories: · - - -

- - . 
Invested in capital assets. net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of ·· 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding_ bal~nces for bonds and 
other debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or Improvement of 
those. assets. - . . -

' .. ·. ' - . \ . . 

Restricted- net assets result when constraints placed on. __ net asset use are either 
. ext~mally: imposed by creditors, grantors. contributors, and the like, or imp-osed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. . -

Unrestricted net assets c6nsist of net ass~ts that do not meet the criteria 6f the 
two preceding categories. 

. . . I 

, The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct ~xpenses of a 
given function (i.e, generc:ll government, -public safety etc.) are offset by program-

. revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clear1y identifiable with .a speCific lunctioh. · 
Program revenues include {a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services 
offered by-the programs (includ_ing fines and fees),.and {b) grants and contributions that 
are -restricted to meeting the operational requirements -of -a partiCular program. 

• Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented 
- -as general revenues.- -

Fidubiary fu11ds are excluded 'from the government-wide financial stateme~ts. ··. 

Fund Fi.nancial Statements:· Separate· finarJCial statements are. provided for 
.. · · gov~rnmental funds, proprietary fun-ds C~rid fiduciary funds, even though the latter are 
· · excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The fund finanCial statements 

provide ·information about the City's funds~ The· emphasis of fund financial statements is 
bn major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. The City has the 
following major governmental funds: . - · 
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City of Crystal Lake, .Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cant' d) 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 

. "~ . 

B.. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (cont'd) 

General Fund - This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except 'those' required to be 
accoun.ted for in another fund. The services which are administered. by the City 
and accounted for in the general fund inClude general government, public safety. 
and public works. · · · ·· · 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund -This fund accounts for the maintenance and various 
street improvements in the City .. Financing is provided by the City's share of 
Motor Fuel Tax allotments. State statutes require those allotment~ to be used to 
maintain streets. 

F-ire Rescue Fund ~ This fund accounts for revenues ·and expenditures related 
to .fire protection, ambulance response, and emergency rescue operations. 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund- This fund accounts for revenues derived 
· · from a separate property tax levy and disbursement of these funds for 

· contributions to the state-sponsored Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.· 
J • • ' ' 

All re~aining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as ~onmajor govern­
mental funds. 

The City administers the following major proprietary fund: · 

. Waterworks and Sewerage Fund -·This fund ·accounts for the provision. of 
water and sewer services to the residents of the City. All activities necessary to 
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, included but not limited. to, 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service; and 

· billing and collection, -
. . 

There are no other enterprise funds. 
. ' - . . 

Additionally, the City administers fiduciary (pension trust and agency) funds for assets 
held by the City ih a fiduciary capacity. Included are the City's Police Pension Fund and 
Fire Pension Fund that accumulate resources for retirement annuity payments to sworn 
police officers and· firefighters. ·In addition, the· City reports. one agency fund, the Special 
Assessment fund, which accounts for the collediori. of special assessments from 
property owners and payment of tbe related special assessment liabilities. 
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City of Crystal Lake, rllinois 
· Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

I. · Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corit!d) 

C. Measurem~nt Focus, Basis of Accounting :and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using. the econo~ic resources .· 
measurement focus and the aCcrual basis of accounting,' as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are reco~ded when earned and expenses are recorded 
at the t'ime liabilities are incurred, regardless· of when the related cas.h flow takes place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in .which the City gives (or receives) value without directly 
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include various taxes, state shared 
revenues and various state, federal and local grants. On an .accrual basis, revenues 
from taxes are recognized when the . City has legal claim to the resources. .Grants, 
entitlements, state shared revenues and similar items are recognized in the fiscal· year in 
which all eligibility requirements imposed bythe provider have been met. 

Governmental funds are Teported using the current financial resources measurem~nt 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available .. Revenues are considered to b.e available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter .to pay 
liabilities of the current period~ For this purpose, the City. cOnsiders revenues to be 
available if they are cOllected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal year (60 days 
for property taxes). ·· · · ·· · · 

. Significant revenue· sources. which are susceptible to accrual include. property taxes, 
· other ·taxes, grants, charg~s for services, and interest. · All other revenue sources are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash i~ received. ' . 

. · Expenditures generally are recorded when the lia.bility is. ·incurred, as under accrual 
acC:ounting .. However; compensated absences are recorded only wheri payment is due 
(upon· employee retlremE:mt or termination).· ·General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental.funds.. · · · 

Private-sector stand~rds . of accounting and financial ·reporting . issued prior to 
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary 
fund .financial s.tatements to the extent that those standards do riot conflict· with or 

· contradict guid~n'ce of the Governmental Accounting St~ndards Board. 
. . . 

· . The .proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing servi~s in 
connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed: ' 
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City of Crystal Lake, .Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 

D. Budgets 

. Budgets are adopted on a - basis con~istent with generally accepted accounting -
principles. Annual appropriated_ budgets are adopted for the General Fund, Sp~cial 
Revenue Funds, certain Debt Services Funds, ·certain Capital Projects Funds, the 
Enterprise Fund and the Pension Trust Funds. All annual appropriations ·lapse at fiscal 
year end. · -

. . '' 
- -

During the current year, budgets were not adopted for the following funds: 

Debt Service Funds 

Special Service Area Nos. 4-18 
Special Service Area No. 19 -
-Special Service Area Nos._ 21-.31 
Special Service Area Nos. 32-39 
Special Service Area No. 42 _ 
2001 Special Se-rvice Area No, 44. 

· .2007 Special Service Area No. 46 

E ~sets,_ Liabilities and Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City's enterprise fund considers all 
_highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when 

- _purchased to be cash equivalents, including amounts in the Illinois Funds Investment 
~~. - . 

Investments 

Investments are reported at fair value. Fak value is based on quoted market prices. -
Under Illinois law, the City· (and Library) are restricted to investing funds in specific 
types of investment- instruments. The following generally represents the types of 
.instruments allowable by state law: _ -

• Securities issued or granted by the United States. 
• lnter~st bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and time 

deposits for banks and savings and loans insured up to $100,000 by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
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.C.ity of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statemen-ts (cont'd)-

' . ' 

I. Summary 9fSignificant Accounting Policies (cont'd). 

E. Assets, liabilities and Equity (cont'd) 

1. Deposi.ts arid Investments (corit'd) 

Investments (cont'd) 

• Short-term obligations {less than 180 days) of U.S. corporations with. 
assets over $500,000,000 rated in the highest classificatiol') by" at least 
·two rating agencies. _ 

· • Insured acCounts .of an Illinois credit union chartered under United. States 
or Illinois law~ 

• . Money market mutual funds with · portfolios of securities issued or · 
guaranteed by the United ·states .or agreements to repurchase these 
same types of obligations. ' ' 

• The Illinois Funds Investment Pool. -
. ' ' ' . . . . . . . ' . . 

• Repurchase -agreements that meet instrument transaction requirements 
of Illinois law. ' ' 

In addition, Pensio"n Trust Funds are also . pennitted to ·invest in the following 
. instruments: ·_. · 

' .' .. G~neral accounts of Illinois-licensed. life insurance cOmpanies. · 
• Separate accounts of Illinois-licensed insurance compani~s invested in 

'stocks, bonds, and real estate, _limited' to 10% of the fund's investments. 
• .. Interest-bearing bonds ·of .the s·tate .of Illinois, and ·bonds or tax 

anticipation warrants of any tounty; township,-or municipal_ corporation of 
- the state of Illinois~ · · . . · ... 

• . Mutu~l funds which meet the_.following requirements: (1) managed by an 
investment company as defined under the Federal Investme-nt Company · 

. 'Act of 1940 and registered under the Illinois Securities Law of 1953, 
(2) mutual fund has been in operation for 5 years,· (3) mutual fund has 
assets of $250 million of more, (4) niutual fund is comprised . of stocks, 
bonds, or money _market instruments, (5) limited to 35% of net present 

• 
assets. -
Common and preferred stocks which meet the following. requirements: 
(1) investments must be made through an. investment advisor, (2) stocks 
of U.S. corporations . that have .. been in . existence for five years, 
. (3) corporations· not· in arrears. in payment of dividends in last five years. 
· {4)" market value of stock .in any one corporation does not exceed 5% of 
cash and invested assets of pension fund, (5) stock in any one 
corporation does not exceed · 5% .of total. outstanding stock in the · 
corporation, {6) stock' listed on national securities exchange or quoted in 

. NASDAQNMS, and (7) limited to 35% of net present assets .. 
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. City ofCrystal Lake, Illinois 
· Notes tothe Flmincial Statements (cont'df 

' . 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd~ 

E. Assets, liabilities and Equity (cont'd) 

. 1 .. Deposits and Investments (cont'd) 

Investments (cont'd) 

The City of Crystal Lake's investment policy (excluding the Pension Tr1.Jst Funds) 
further restricts what it may investin to the following types of investment instruments:· 

• U.S. Government obligations, U.S. Government. agency obligations, and 
U.S. Government instrumentality obligations, whic~ have a liquid market 
with a readily determinable market value: 

• Interest-bearing savings accounts, interest-bearing certificates of deposit 
or interest-bearing time deposits or any. other investment constituting 
-director obligations of any bank· that is insured by the Federal Deposit 
lnsurahce- Corporation. - .. _ - · _ _ -. 

• Local government investment pools, either state-administered or through 
joint powers statutes or other intergovernmental agreement legislation. 

' . : 

The investment policies of the Police and Fire Pension Funds place no_furtherlimits 
on investments beyond those authorized by state statute. -

2. Inventory and Prepaid Items 

-·. Inventories are accounted for at cost, using ·the first-in, first~out method. Inventories 
are-accounted for under the consumption method, whereby acquisitions are recorded 

· in inventory accounts initially and charged as exp_enditures when· used. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable_ to- future- accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items. 

3. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, infrastructure (streets, bridges), buildings, wat~r 
mains and vehicles, are reported in the applicable g_overnmental or business-type 
activities columns· in the government-wide financial- statements.' Capital· assets are 
defined as assets· with an· initial, individual cast of more than $1 0,000 in the General 
Fund and an- initial, individual cost of more than $25,000 in the Waterworks arid 
·Sewerage Fund,- and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. The City 
capita-lizes all vehicle additions due to the City's intent to- monitor their use and 
existence. Additions or improvements that significantly extend the useful life of an 

-asset, or· that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized . 
. Expenditures for asset acquisitions and improvements are stated -as capital outlay 
expenditures jn the governmental funds. ' 
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City ofCrystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

L Summary ofSigriificant Accounting Policies (cont'd} 

E. Assets, .Liabilities and Equity (cont'd} 

3. Capital Assets(cont'd} 

As of. May 1. 2003, the City compf~t~d an inventory of all capital assets, including all 
infrastru~ture, regardless of the acquisition date. These assets have. been valued at 
their estimated historical cost, or for donated assets, at their estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation. All capital asset additions subsequent to Mc:tY 1 '. 2003, 
are recorded at cost, or fair market value as of the date donated, as applicable. 

. ' ' ,· . ' . . ' ' : - . . ' 

Interest incurred during the . construction ph as~ of enterprise fund capital asset is 
. reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest·earned on 
. the invested proceeds over the same period. . 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend the assets' lives are not capitalized. . . 

Depreciation of · capital ·assets is record~d in ··the . Statement of Activities with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of N.et Assets and is· provided 
oii the straight-line basis· over the following. estimated useful· lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Machinery, equipment arid vehicles . 
Infrastructure ....... streets and bridges 

. Infrastructure·:- water and sewer system 

Years 
25-:50 

3-15 
50-80 

. 60 

Gains or ·losses from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in the 
operations· on the Statement of Activities. · 

4. Vac;ations and. Sick Leave 

The liability for compensated absences reported in the . government-wide financial 
statements·· consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation; and vested sick leave 
balances for City employees. 
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City of Crystal Lake, Ulinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

I • • • ." ' 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 

E.. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont'd) 

4. Vacation and. Sick Leave (cont'd) 

Vacation and sick leave are recorded in governmental funds when due (upon 
employee retirement or termination). The General Fund is typically used to liquidate 
these liabilities. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of proprietary fUI1ds is 
recorded as an expense and liability of those· funds as . the benefits accrue to 
employees. ··No liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick 
pay benefits. However an · expenditure/expense is reported and a liability is 
. recognized for that portion of accumulating sick leave benefits that is estimated will 
.be taken as "terminal leave" at retirement. · -

5. Long~Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and .· proprietary fund financial 
... statements, long-term debt. and. other long-term obligations, including compensated 
absences and net ·pension obligation, are reported as .liabilities in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities . and proprietary fund Statement ·of Net 
Assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, if any, are 

.· deferred·and amortized over the. life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized. over the t~rm 

. of the related -debt · · · 

In ·the.fund financial statements. governmental funds·recognize.bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the. current period. The face 

-.amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are. reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, Whether or not 
withheld frqm. the actual debt proceeds .received, are reported as debt services 
expenditure$. . - · · 

., . . ' 
' . . ' ' 

Debt services funds ~re specifically estabiished to account for and service_ the long­
term obligations for the governmental funds debt. Enterprise funds· individually 
account . for and serviee the appiicable debt that ·benefits those funds. Long-term 
debt is recognized as a liability in a governmental fund when due. or when resources 
have been accumulated for payment early in the following year.· ' 

· 6. Reserved Fund Balances and Restricted Net ASsets . 

Reserves and restrictions represent those portions of individual fund balances/net 
assets not appropriate for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. 
Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial 
resources.·· 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Fimlndal Statements (cont'd) . . . . 

L Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 

E:. -Assets, liabilities and Equity-(cont'd) 

6. Reserv'ed Fund Balances and Restricted-Net Assets (cont'd) 

Individual Fund Reserves and Restrictions 
.·. - - . 

Gem!ral Furid -The City has reserVed certain fund ·balances for .inventoiy 
and prepaid items. - - -

Debt Service Funds .:____ Fund balances for. debt services funqs are reserved . 
-· for the payment of principal· and interest on outstanding debt. 

. ·Pension Trust .~Funds - TheiCity has restricted net assets for employees' 
. - retirement commitments within the Police and Firefighters' Penston Funds. 

Restricted N~t Assets :.___ Governmentai.Activities · 
. ,'' ' 

_ Restricted for debt service -----: Represents net asset restrictions imposed by 
-- . bond covenants. 

Restricted for. working cash "-- Represe11ts net assets restricted through 
state of Illinois compiled statutes. - · -

7. CapitaiContributions · 

Capital contributidns. reported in the-governmental_ and proprietaiy funds 'represent 
capita'! assets donated from outside. parties, prinCipally developers. 

8~ Accounting Estimates -

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity- with generally _accept~d 
acoounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported' amounts of assets and liabilities _and disdosures of contingent -
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount 
of revenues arid expenditures/expenses during the period. Actual results could differ 
·from these estimates. 
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· City ofCrystal Lake; Illinois 
. Notes to the Financial Statements (cant' d) 

I.. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (cont'd) 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (cont'd) 

9. lntertund Transactions 

The City has the following types of transactions between funds: 

Loans ~ Amounts provided with a requir13ment for. repayment. lnteliund loans are 
reported· a~ due· frorn other funds in lender funds and due to other funds in borrower 
.funds for short-term borrowings and advances to ·other funds in lender fund and 
advances from other funds in borrower funds for long-term borrowings. Amounts are 
reported as internal balances in the government-wide statement of net assets. 

Services provided: and used - Sales ·and purchases of .goods . and services. 
between funds for a price ·apprmdniating their external exchange value. lnteliund 

. set;vices provided .. and used are reported as revenues in seller funds and 
expenditures or expenses in. purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as due 
to/from other funds in the fund balance sheets orfund s·tatements of net assets. 

Reimbursements - Repaymen~s from the funds . responsible fcir · particular 
expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements 
are reported as expenditures in the reimbursing fund. and as a reduction of 
·expenditures in the reimbursed fund. 

Transfers ~ Flows of assets (such as cash or.goods) without equivalent flows. of 
· assets in return and without a requirement for .repayment In governmental funds, 
transfers are reported as other financing uses in. the funds making transfer~ and as 
other .financing sources · in the funds receiving transfers. ·. In proprietary funds, 
transfers in/out are· reported as a separate category after non-operating revenues . 
arid expenses. 

10. Claims and Judgments 
' .· ·' . ' . ' . . ' . . 

Liabilities resulting from claims and judgments have been reflected in· the financial 
statements in accordance with NCGA Statement 4 and SFAS 5 provisions. -

11. Unbilled Services _ 

Unbilled water revenue of the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund is recognized as 
earned when the water is torisumed. 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes tci the Financial Statements (cant' d) 

II. petailed Notes Fo"r.AU Funds 

A. .·Deposits and i~vestntents 

The .City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use ·by. all funds . 
except the pension trust funds, which are held separately. In addition, investments are 
separately held by several of the City's fund::; ... Income from pooled investments is 
allocated to the funds based on their proportional share of the. investment balance. · 

. . . . : 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ()f a 
bank failure, the ·City's deposits may _not be returned to it. The City's deppsit policy 
requires that funds on deppsit ·in excess .bf FDIC limits be secured. by some fonn of 
collateral The CitY shall enter into a callateral agreement with the financiaf institution; 
and the agreement shall outline the types of assets that may be utilized as Collateral, the . 
amount of collateral required, andthe-methodology. The amount of collateral provided 

.... -would not be less than 1 00% of the fair market value. of the net amount of public furids 
secured. Pledged collateral will b~ held by the ,City of Crystal Lake or In safekeeping 
and e_videnced by a written agreement. If collateral is held in safekeeping, it must be 

· held_ at an independent third party institution. A collateral agreement will preclude the 
release of the pledged assets, without an authorized: signature from the City of Crystal 
·Lake, but the agreement will alloW for an exchange of collateral of like value. The City 
will.-acceptany of the following assets as collateral: - . . -

' . . I 

-,a. Negotiable obligations of the United States Government · 
-. b, Negotiable obligations of ariy agency or instrumentality of the United 

States· Government guaranteed by the full Jaith ·and credit of the United 
States· Government -

.. 

Investments - As of April 30, 2008, the City had the folloWing investments and 
- maturities. 

. lhvestmentType · 

u.s. Treasury . 
·Securities · 

Fixed Income Money 
MarJ<et Funds · 

· GNMA's 
OtherAQency · _. · 

Securities 
Certificates of 

deposit·. 
Mutual funds* 
Illinois Funds · 

Investment Poor 

Totai Investments 

Investment Maturities (In Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 

$ 4,275,941 . $ . 

·575,469 
102,682 

22,624,265 . 

18,461,246 
13,613,883 

14,895,478. 

- $ 

575,469 
12,601 

2,228,609 

13,826,485 
13,913,883 

3,717,451 

·19,424,443 

4,634,761 

14,895,478 ---------,--------

6-10 
More Than 

.· 10 

$ 558,490 '$ 

806,743 

90,081 

164,470 

$ 74;548,964 $ 45,152,525 $ 27,776,665 $ 1,365,233 $ 254,551 

*Weighted average m~turiiy of the F~nd/Pool is less than one year. 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
·· Nptes to the Financiai_Statements_ (cant' d) 

IL Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd) 

A. Deposits and Investments (cont'd) 

Interest Rate Risk - The City does not have a forina_l investment policy that limits 
. investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates. The Fire Pension Fund has· the following limits on its 
investment maturities: 

0-5 .. 
6-1 iJ . 
10-20 

Maximum%· 

100% 
15% 
50%. 

· Credit Risk - State law limits investment. in commercial paper and corporate bonds' to 
the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized· statistical rating organizations 
(NRSROs), The City's policy pl53ces no further limits beyond those required by state law. 

As of April 30, 2008, the City's investments were rated as follows: · 

Investment Type . · 

Fixed Income Money Market Funds 
OtherAgency Securities -
Illinois Funds.lnvestment Pool 

NR= Not Rated 

Fair Value 

$ 575;469 
22,624,265 
14,895,478 

· · Standard & Poors 

NR 
-·AAA 
AAA 

Custodial Credit Risk ~-For an Investment. custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the· 
. -event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able-to recover the value of its 
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
City's policy requires that all security transactions, including collateral for repurchase 
agreements, be held by an independent third party custodian _designated by the Finance 
Director and evidenced by safekeeping receipts and a written custodial agre~ment. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The. City places no limit on the amount the City may 
invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the City's investments (excludes the 
Pension Trust Funds) are in- FHLMC, FHLB, FNMA and Federal Farm Credit Bank 

. securities. These investmentsare 10.76%, 7.16%, 5.38% and 5.37% respectively, of 
the City's total investments. Concentration risk disclosures for the Police and Fire 
Pension. Funds are in Note Ill. D. 

Other Information...,. The-Illinois Funds Investment Pool (Pool) is not registered with the 
SEC. The Illinois State Treasury administers the pool and oversight is provided by the 
Auditor General's Office of the State of Illinois. The fair value of the positions in this pool 
is the same as the value of the pool shares. ·· -
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . 
Notes to the Fimmcial Statements (cont'd) 

,JI. .Detailed Notes For All Funds (cpnt'd) 

A Deposits and Investments (cont'd) 

Component Unit...., Crystal Lake Public Library · 
. . ·. ·. . ',' . .. ' . ' '·, - . ' - ' . ' ' .· . . . 

At year end, the Library had investments in the Illinois Funds Investment Pool with a fair 
. value of $2,283,767. The weighted average ·maturity of the pool is Jess than one year. 

The Illinois Funds Investment Pool was rated AAA by Standard & Poors rating service. 

B. Property Taxes 

The City's property tax is levied .each- calendar year on all taxable real property located 
. in the City. Because the .20071evy is. intended to fund the operations of fiscal year2009, 
the_ 2007 property.· tax _levy is recorded as a ·-receivable -and the· 2007 _property ·tax 
revenue is deferred. · 

The township assessors are respqnsible for assessment of all taxable real property 
within McHenr:Y County except for certain railroad property that is assessed-directly by 
the state. The County Clerk cOmputes the annual tax of each parcel .of real property and 

- ; prepares tax books used by the County Collec~or as a basis for issuing .tax bills· to all 
taxpayers in the county. · · 

' . . ' 

-Property taxes are collected- by th~ County Collector and are _submitted to the County-
- Treasurer, who remits to the units their respective share of the collections. Taxes levied 

in 200Tbecome due and payable in two installments .in June- 2008 and September 2008. 
The City must file its tax levy by the last Tuesday of December each year. The owner of -
real- property on January 1 in any year_ is liable for taxes ofthat year. The lien date for_ 
delinquent taxes is the second week in November each year. 

_ -Property taxes receivable is shown net of.· ari _allowance .tor doubtful_ accounts. The 
propertY tax receivable allowance is equal to 1.0% of the most recent property tax levy.-
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City of Crystal Lake, IUinois 
_Notes ,to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

II. Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd) 

c. Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities 

A summary- of changes in capital assets for governmental activities of the City- for the 
year ended April 30, 2008 is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
May: 1 ·Additions Deletions - Apri130 _ 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital assets not being 
dep·reCiated: 

Land $ 100,557,771 $ 1,885,729 $ . $102,443,500 
Construction In progress 945,717 518,850 154,988 1,309,579 

101,503,488 2,404,579 154,988 103,753,079 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
- _.Buildings and improvements 24,309,702 24,309,702 

Machinery, equipment and 
vehicles 9,552,339 809,658 456,614 9,905,383 

Infrastructure 39,315,531 1,107,378 40,422,909 

73,177,572 1,917,036 456,614 74,637,994-

Less accumulated depreciation 
for:-

Buildings and improvements 3,935,079 . 727,894 4,662,973 
Machinery, equipment and 

vehicles 5,864,591 634,654. 367,917 6,131,328 
Infrastructure - 11,700,112 611,311 .12,311,423-

21,499,782 1,973,859 367,917 23,105,724 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, ·net 51,677,790 {56,823} 88,697 51,532,270 

Governmental activities capital 
_ assets, net_ $ 153,181,278 $ 2,347,756- $ 243,685 $ 155,285,349 
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City ofCrystal Lake, Illinois . 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) · 

It DetailedNotesForAII Funds (cont'd) 

C. Capital Assets (cont'd) 

Business-type Activities. 
. . 

· A summary of ~hanges in capital assets for· busin'ess-tYpe a~tiviti~s of tne <;ity ·for the. 
year ended April30, 2008 is as follows: . . 

' . ~ . 
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· City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

Depreciation was. charged to functions/activities as follows: 

General and administrative 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Culture· and recreation 
Waterworks and sewerage 

$ 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 
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533,623 
616,001 
824,235 

$ 

2,528,613 

$ 

Component 
Unit 
Public 
Library 

188,536 
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City of Cljstal Lake, Illinois 
No~es -to the Financial Statements (cant' d) 

II. Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd) 

D.- lnterfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

The following interfund receivables: and payables as of April 30, 2008 are expected to be 
liquidated in the next year during the normal.course of operations:' 

Receivable Fund · Payable Furid Amount 

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 2,222;790 
General Fund WateiWorks and Sewerage Fund 56,617 
General Fund Pension Trust Funds . 195 

· . General Fund ·. · Agency Funds 213,053 
· Norimajor Governmental 

Funds Non major' Governmental· Funds· ;34,058 
· Nonmajor Governmental 

Funds Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 131 
, WateiWorks and ~e'-Yerage .. . ' 

Fund · General Fund 6,770 

$ 2,533,614 
. ' . ' . 

. - .. ' 

. The interfund balances represent amounts- deposited into one fund but recorded as 
revenue in: another fund, or expenditures paid on behalf of one fund by another fund, for 
which reimburs~ment has not yet taken place.· · --

Receiving Fund' · 

General Fund 
Fire Rescue Fund 
SEECOM Fund 

_ Special service Area No. 42 
Capital Projects Fund -

Paying Fund 

Fire Rescue Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Special Servite Area No. 42 

Debt Service Fund 

-Amount 

$- 77-,967 
-150,610-

45 

6,368 

$ 234,990 

The tr~nsfers betwee~ the General Fund to the Fire Rescue Fund .are related to the · 
purchase· of· capital a_ssets. The _transfer from the Special- Service_ Area No. 42 Debt 
Serviee to Capital ProjeCts Fund was the leftover balance in the Debt Setvice Fund after 
·the related debt issue was fully retired .. The transfer from the General fund to the 

- SEECOIYJ Fund was to eliminate a deficit fund balance and close out the fund. 
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City of Crystal lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

II. Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd} 

E. Long-term Obligati~ns 

Governmental Activities 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the City associated with 
governmental activities for the year ended April 30, 2008: -

Balance Balance_ 
Ma:£1 _ Additions Deletions A~ril30 

City: 
- General obligation bonds $ 8,340,000 $ $ 780,000 $ 7,560,000 
- Special service area 

·bonds 8,435,000 '750,000 50,000 -, 9,135,000 
Claims and judgments 150,061 2,376,740 2,438,916 87,885' 
Net pension obligation* ' 132,188 1,933,586 1,781,641 284,133 
Compensated absences" 4,170;720 2,202,122 1,755,945- 4,616,897 

$ 21,227,969 $ 7,262,448 $ 6,806,502 $ 21 ,683,915 -

Crystal Lake Public Library: 
J -- Notes payable $ 1,000,000. $ $ 375,000 $ 625,000 

Compensated absences 
' ' 

504,062 212,645 176,983 539,723 

$ - 1,504,062 $ 212,645 $ 551,983 $ 1,164,723 

* The General Fund is typically used to liquidate these liabilities. -

Business-:-type Activities 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activities for the City associated with 
business-type activities for the year ended. _April 30, 2008. _ -- · 

Balance Balance 
Ma:£1 - Additions _Deletions April30 

General obligation bonds $ -4,975,000 - $ $ 315,000 $ 4,660,000 
Notes payable 13,178,753 703,854 12,474,899 
-Ciaims and judgments 21,835 348,310 357,271 12,874 
Compensated absences*-- - 719,988 265,607 276,585 709,010 

$ 18,895,576 $ 613,917 $ 1,652;710 $ 17,856,783 
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. City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . . 
Notes to the Financial Statem'ents (cont'd) 

IL Detailed N'otes For All Funds (cont'd) 

· E. Long-termObligations (cont'd)' 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and 
. construction of major capital facilities ... General obligation bonds are .direct obligations 
and pledge the full faith and credit o( the City. Genera·! obligation bonds currently 
outstanding and the current year activity are as follows: .· 

Issue 

. 1997 General Obligation 
Bonds, original principal 
$2;000,000, final anriual 
installment of $250,000 
due January 15, 2008: 
interest at 4,90% payable 
semi-annually on July 15 
andJariuary 15. . 

1 ~98 Gene~al Obligation 
Bonds, original. principal 
$8,345,000 (partial 
WateiWorks and TIF 
alte'iilate revenuf:) source), 
due in annual instalhnents 
of $410,000 to $625,000 
through· Janua,Y 1, 20t9; 

.. interest at 420% to 4. 75% 
payable_ semiannually on 
July 1 and Januaiy 1 .. 

2004 General Obligation 
Bonds, original principal 
$7,825,000 (partial. 
.WateiWOrkS and TIF . 
alternate revenue source), 

· due in annual installments 
of $450,000 to $650,000 

. through DE;~cember 15, 
2019; interest at 3.00%.to 
3.90% payable semi- .· 
anm~ally on June 15 and 
December 15; 

General Obligation Bonds 

Reported in: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities· 

Fund Debt 
Retired by 

RoadNehicle 
License Fund 
and Debt 
Service Fund 

. General a·nd 
Debt Service 

Waterworks 
and 
Sewerage · 

General and 
Debt Service 

Waterworks 
and 
Sewerage 

Balance 
·May 1· Issuances 

$ . 250,000 ·. $ -

3,770,000 

2,170,000-

4,320,000 

2,805,000. 

$13,315,000 ..;:;$__,.; __ 

$ ~.340;000 $ 
.4.975,000 

$13,315;000 . ..;:;$ __ _ 
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Retirements 

$ :?50,000 

255,000 

140,000 

-275,000 

175,000 

. ·$ 1,095,000 

. $ 780,00_0, 
315,000 

$ 1,095,000 

$ 

B~lance 
April30 · 

3,515,000 

2,030,000 

. 4,045,000 . 

2,630,000 

Due 
Within 

One Year 

$ 

265,000 

145,000 

2a5.ooo 

190,000 

$12,220,000 . $ 885,000 

$ 7,560;000 . $ 550,000 
· .. 4,660,000 335;000 

$12,220,000 $ 885,000 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

.- .J ' . . 

II. Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd) 

E. Long-term Obligations (cont'd) 

Special service area bonds, included within the gove·rnme"ntal activities, outstanding and 
. the current year activity are as follows: 

Due 
Fund Debt Balance· Balance Within 

. Issue Retired b:t May 1 Issuances . Retirements AJ::!ril30, One Year 

Special Service Area No. 
45 Bonds, Series 2006 -
original principal 
$5,945,000, du~ in annual 
installments of $80,000 to 

. $435,000, commencing 
February 2009 through . 
February 2031; interest at 

· · ·4.40% to 5.50% payable 
'semiannually on ' Capital 
August 1 and February 1. Projects $ 5,935,000 $ $ $ 5,935,000 $ 80,000 

. Special Service Area No. 
46 Bonds, Series 2007 -

· original principal 
$2,500,000, due in ·annual 
installments of $7,000 to 
$240,000, commencing 
March 201 0 through March 
2Q36; interest at5.75% 
payable semiannually on Capital 
September 1 and March 1. Projects 2,500,000 2,500,000 

Special Service. Area No; 
44 Bonds, Series 2007-
original principal · 

'$75,000, due in annual 
installments of $50,000 
commencing March 2010 
through March 2036; 
interest at 4.10% to 4.75% 
payable annually on capital 
December 1. Projects 750,000 50,000 700,000' 50,000 

$ 8,435,000 $ ·750,000 $ 50,000 $ 9,135,000 $ 130,000 
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. City of Crystal Lak~, Illinois 
Notes· to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

' ' ' . ' 

II. Detailed Notes For All Funds (cent' d) 

E. Loilg-term Obligations (cont'(j) 

Notes payable; included within the business-type activities, outstanding and t_he current 
year activity are as follows: · 

•, Due 
Fund Debt Balance . Balance . Within 

Issue. . · Retired b~ , Mal 1. · ··Issuances Retirements A~ril30. One Year 

Notes payable due in 
. annual installments . Waterworks· . · · 

· begkming February 1, . and 
.2003; interest at 2.535%. sewerage '$ 13~ 178,753 $ $ ·' 703,854 $ 12,474,899 $ 721,810 

' ' ' 

. The annual requirements to retire all governmental activities.debt outstanding of the City .. 
. as of April 30,2008 are as follows: - : · · · 

Fiscal 
Year General Obligation Bonds SSA Bonds 
End Principal · · - _Interest·. Principal _- . Interest 

2009 $ 550,000' $ 291,309 $. 130,000 ·$· 477,683 
2010 550,000 272,324 142,000 479,113 
2011 580,000 ,' 253,154_ 220,000 475,921 
2012 600,000 232,421 234,QOO 470,021' 
2013 620,000-. 210,906 .243,000 '463,271 

2014-2018 3,465,000 685,541 1·,434,000 2,195,402 
2019-2023 1,195,ooo 65,921 1,812,000' 1,936,756 
2024-2028 '2,208,000 1,6,24,479 
2029-2033' 2,047,000 1,265,682 

'2034-2036 665;000 743,488 ' 

$ 7,560,000 ''• $ 2,011,576 $ 9,135,000 $ ' 10,131,816 

! - ' ' ' ' ·. - - - -
·. - ' ' 

The annual requirements to retire all business-type activities debt out~tanding of the City . 
as of April30, 2008 are ·as follows: .. 
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II. 

City of Crystal. Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

Detailed Notes For All Funds (cont'd) 

E. L()ng-term Obligations (cont'd) 

Fiscal' 
. Year . General Obligation Bonds Notes Payable · 

.. End PrinciQal Interest · PrinciQal Interest 

2009 ·$ 335,000 $ 184,292 $ ·721 ,810 $ 311,693 
2010 340,000 171,807 740,224 293,279 

·2011 360,000 159,089 759,107 274,396 
2012 360,000 145,402 778.472 255,030 
2013' 385,ooo· 131,637 .798,332 235,171 

2014-2018 2,150,000. 421,423 4,307,740 859,773 
2019-2023 730,000 39,817 . 4,369,214 281,548 

$ 4,660,000 $ 1;253,467 $ 12,474,899. $ 2,510,890. 

The Crystal Lake Public ,Library entered into a $1,000,000 promissory note dated 
December 17, 2006 and maturing December 17, 2014. The Library will make annual 
principal payments of $125,000 commencing December 17, 2007. Interest is payable 
monthly at 4.50%. The note is secured by a oonstruction mortgage and assignment of 
rents·, dated December 17, 2006. During the· current year, the Library repaid an 
additional $250,000 in principal. The annual requirements to retire this promissory.note 
are as follows: 

. Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

2009 $ 
. 2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

$ 

PrinciQal 

125,000 . 
.125,000 
125,000 
125,000 

.125,000 

625,000 

Interest 

. $ 26,250 
20,625 
15,000 

9,375 
3,750 

$ 75,000. 

. Ill. Other Information 

. A. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets;. errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. · 
The City accounts for and finances its uninsured risks of lo.ss in the General, Waterworks . 
and Sewerage (Enterprise), and Fire -Rescue {Special Revenue) funds. These funds 
provided c;overage for Group Health and Dental Coverage up to $50,000 per claim. 
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_ City-of Crystal Lake,minois. 
·Notes to the Financial. Statements (cont'd) 

IlL Other Information (cont'd) · · 
' . . 

: . 
A. Risk Management (ccint'd) 

. The City. purchased commercialinsurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by 
· the Funds and for aU other risks of Joss. There have .been no signifiCant reductions in" 

insurance coverage during the current year~ SetUed claims have not exceeded this 
commercial coverage. ir:i any of the pas! three years. · · 

.. The City .also participates in the· Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) . 
. JRMA is an organization of muniCipalities and spec:;ial districts in Northeastern. Illinois that 
have formed an association under the Illinois ~ntergovernmental Cooperation's Statute to 
pool their risk· management needs. The agency .. administers a mix of self-insurance· and 
'commercial services; unemployment daim administration; extensive risk managemenV 
loss · control consulting and ·training programs; and a risk information system . and · 

· financial reporting serviee for its members. The City's payments to IRMA are displayed 
on the finanCial statements ·as expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each 
member ass.umes the first $2,500 of each occurrence and IRMA has a mix of self­
insurance and comniercial insurance at various 'amounts above· that leveL 

. . - . ,· . ' 

- ' .. 

The City b~ses its self--insurance liability on its estimates of the_·City's. histo.Y.of claim · 
payments, Which inCludes an ·estimate of the incurred but not reported claims. · 
'·' I ' • ' ' ' ' 

A re.conciliation of the total claims liabilitY for the current year and that of the two 
· preceding years is reported below: _ · - · 

Unpaid claims' liability:.... 4/30/05 

·Claims incurred --fiscal year2006- · 
'Claims paid ~fiscal year 2006 · 

Unpaid Claims liabilitY~ 4/30/06 

Claims incurred """" fiscal year 2007 
Claims paid - fiseal year ~007 

Unpaid claims liability ~ 4130107 

Claini~ incurred - fiscal year 2008 
. Claim~ paid- fiscal year 2008 

Unpaid.cl~lims liability- 4/30/0B 

B. Other Post-employment Bene,fits 

$ 288,700 

$ 

1,489,735 
(1,666,H~1) .-

-112,274. 

. 2,168,638 
{2,109,016} . 

171;896 

2,725,050 
. (2,796; 187) . 

100,759 

. . 

· The city provides post-retirement health care and dental benefits to qualified retirees and 
the.ir. dependents. Retirees pay their .entire premium amount with no co-pay by the City. 

-Approximately 7 retirees received these benefits in the year ended.April30, 2008. . 
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City of Crystal ·Lake, IUinois 
Notes to .. the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

Ill. Otherlnformation (cont'd) 

C. Contingent liabilities 

Litigation- The City-is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits is not presently· determinable, it is the _opinion of the City's attorney that the 
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the City . 

. Grants -Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subjectto audit and-_ 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a lii:~bility of the applicable 
funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor, 
cannot be determined at thistime although the· City expects· such amounts, if any, to be -

· immaterial. -

D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Illinois Municipal Retirement 

Plan Description - The City contributes to-. the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
(IMRF), a defined- benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement·system 
that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governmemts and 

. school ·districts in Illinois. All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the 
prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in lrv1RF as partidpating members. 
Pension benefits vest after eight years of service. , Participating members who retire at or 
after age 60 with. 8 years of service are entitled tp an annual retirement benefit, payable 
monthly for life, in an .amount equal to 1-2/3% of their final rate (average of the highest 
48 consecutive months earnings during the last 1 0 years) of earnings •. for each year of 
credited service up to 15 years, and 2%for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides 
death and disability benefits. The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit 
provisions of the plan that cari only be amended by the- Illinois General Assembly~ 

The City .does not issue . stand:..alone- financial reports for its participation in IMRF. 
However, IMRF issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not for individual 
employers. That report can be obtained from IMRF, 2211 York Road, Suite 500 Oak 
Brook, Illinois 60523 - -
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. City of Crystal lake, Illinois · 
Notes to the Financial Staten;Jents (cant' d) 

Ul. Other information (cont'd) 

[). Defined Benefit Pension Plan (cont'd) · 

Illinois Municipal Retirement (cont'd) 

Funding Policy ...., Participating employees are required to contribute 4.5% of their 
annual . salary· to IMRF. .·. The City is required io contribute the remaining amounts · 
necessary to fund the· benefits of· its . own employees in the ·System, using the aCtuarial 
basis specified by state statute (entry age nonnal); for calendar 2007 the rate was g, 95% . 
of col,l'ered payroll. · The employer contribution requirements are established and may be 
amended by the IMRF Bt)ard of Trustees. IMRF's unfunded.actuarial accrued liabilitY is 
being. amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll_on · a closed ·basis· ( overfunded 

· liability amortiZed on ari open t>asis) ... The amortization period at December 31, 2007 
·. was 25 years. . . - . 

Annual Pension Cost and Net -Pension Obligation ....: For calendar· year 2007, ·the 
CitY's· annual pension cost of $986,799 was equal to the City's required ·and actual 

. contributions, Therequired contributions were determined as part ofthe December 31, · 
2005 actuarial valuation usingthe entry age actuarial cost method. For a description of 
the significant actuarial assumptions, see page 61. · 

Pol,ice Pension 

. Plan Description - Police sworn personnel are' covered. by. the Police Pension Pl~m. 
which is .·a· defined benefit single-employer pension plan. Although this is a single-' 
employer pension .plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer contributions 
levels are governed ·by Illinois Compiled Statues and may be amended only by the 
'Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. The plan 
does not issue a stand-alone financial report. . 

At April30, 2007 _(C::Onsisterit with the ~ctuarial valuation date), the Police Pension Plan .· 
·. membership consisted of: · · · · · · 

· Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
· benefits·and terminated employees entitled to 
benefrts but not yet receiving them 22 

Curre[lt employees:. 
Vested 32 · 
Nonvested 26 

Total 80 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . . 
Notes to the Financial Statements.(confd) 

Ill. Other Information (cont'd) 

D. Defined Benefit ~ension Plan (cont'd) 

Police Pension (cont'd) 

Plan Description (cont'd) 

·Tile Police Pension Plan provides retirement·benefits as well as death.disability benefits. 
Employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service . 
are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one;-half of the salary attached to .· 
the rank held on the last day of service; or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is 
greater. The pension is increased by 3.0% of such salary for each additional year of 
service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75% of such salary.· Employees 
with at least 8 years but less than 40 years of credited service may retire at or after age 
60 and 'receive a reduced benefit. · 

The monthly pension of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after 
January 1, 19Ti is increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement 
and· paid. upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the amount of the pension 

· · payable at the time of the increase. · 

Funding Policy- Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base 
sala•Y' to the Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less 
than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without 
accul:'flulated interest. The City is required to ·contribute the remaining amounts 

·.necessary to ·finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. By the 
year 2032, the City's contributions must accumulate to the point where the past service 
cost for the Police Pension Plan is fully funded. Actuarial valuations are performed 

· bi-annually. ·. 

Current Year Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset - The . City's annual 
pension cost was $1,113,556~ The annual pension cost is based on an actuari~ll 
valuation performed as of.April30, 2007. The City's actual contribution was $1,073,638. 
For a description of the significant actuarial assumptions see page 61. 

The net pension liability of $65,238 was comprised of the following: 
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City ofCrystal Lake, Illinois .. 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

Iii. Other Information (cont'd) 

D: Defined B.enefit Pension Plan (cont'd) 

Police Pension (cont'd) 

-Current YearArmual Pensi~n Cost and Net Pension Asset (cont'd) ·_ 

. Annual required. contribution 
lnt~re~t on the netpension asset 
Adjustment to the ARC 

Annual pension cost 
.2007 contribution 

Increase in pension liability 
· Net pension.liability atApril_30, 2007 

- - ' 

Net pension liability at April 30, 2008 · 

$ 1,112,920 
1,772 

{1,136) 

1,113,556 
1,073,638 

'39,918 
25,320 

65;238 

The City has recorded the . ne~ pension obligation of $65,238 in ~he government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets. 

_ Reserves and Concentration of.Jnvestments -.There are no assets legally reserved 
for purpqses other than the payment of plan member benefits.. There- are no long.,.temi -
contracts -for contributions. --The following investments. (other than those issued or 
guaranteed by the U.S. government, mutual fw1ds, and other pooled investments)-
represent 5% or more ofnet assets available for benefits: -_, . -

Investment Type 

FFCB 
. FFLMC 

FHLB 
FNMA 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois· 
. Notes to the Financia(Statements (cont'd) 

Ill. Other Information (cont'd) 

D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (cont'd) 

Firefighters' Pension 

·Plan Description ...:. Fire sworn .personnel are covered by the· Firefighters' Pension Plan, . 
which is a defined benefit single-employer .pension plan. Although this is a single-' 
employer pension plan, the defined benefits, as well as the employee and employer. 
contributiqns levels, are mandated by Illinois Compiled Statutes and may be amended 
only by the Illinois legislature.· The City· accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. 
The plan does not issue a stand.:.alone financial report. 

. ' ' . 

At April 30, 2007 (oonsistent with the actuarial valuation date), the Firefighters' Pension 
Plan membership consisted of: · 

' . . ' 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and terminated employees entitled to 
benefits but not yet receiving them 6 

Current employees: 
Vested 19 
Nonvested . 32 

Total ··57 

The Firefighters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits . as well as death and 
disability benefits. Employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of . 
creditable service are entitled to receive a monthly retirement benefit of one-half of the 

· monthly salary attached to the rank held in the fire serviee at the date of retirement The 
monthly pension .is Increased by .one-twelfth of 2.5% of such monthly salary for each· 
additional month over 20 years of serviCe through 30 years of service to- a rria:idmum of 
75% of such monthly salary. · Employees with at least 1 0 years but less th~m 20 years of 
credited serviee may retire at or after age· 60 and receive a reduced retirement benefit. 
The monthly. pension of a firefighter who retired with 20 or more years of ser-Vice after 
January 1, 1977 is increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement 
and paid upon reaching at least the age of 55, by 3% of the amount of the. pension 
payable at the time of the increase. · · 
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City of Crystal lake, Illinois · 
Notes to the Finaliciai·Statements (cont'd) 

• ' ' I ' 

IlL Other Information (cont'd) . 

' 

· D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (cont'd) 

firefighters' Pe~sion (cont'd) 

Funding Policy- Covered employees are: requir~d to contribute 8.455% of their salary 
to the Firefighters' Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less--

. than 20 years (>f service, 'accumulated employee Contributions may be refunded without 
interest. The City is required to contribute the 'remaining amounts necessary to finance ' 
the plan as· aduarially determined by an· enrolled actuary. By the year2032, the City's 
contributions must accumulate to- the point -where the past service cast for .'the 
Firefighters' Pension Plan iS fully funded. Actuarial valuations are performed biannually. 

-- · Current Year Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset :.....·The City's annual 
pension cost was $820,030. The annual pension .cost is. based on the actuarial vah.Jatiori . 
. performed as of April 30, 2007 .. _ The City's actual contribution was $708,003. For a 
description of the significant actuarial assumptions, see page 61. · 

The net pension liability of $218,895 W<lS. comprised of the following: 

Annual required contributions (ARC) 
Interest on the net pension asset· 
Adjustment to the ARC 

Annual pension cost 
2007 contribution 

Increase in pe11sion liability·. . 
Net pe~sion liability e3t April 30, 2007 

Net pension liability at April 30,-2008 

$ 817,343_ 
7,481 

' (4,794) --

820,030 
708,003 

112;027 
'106,868 '' 

$ 218,895 

The CitY has recorded the_ net pension obligation of $218,895 in the government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets. - - - · - -

-58~ 



City of Crysial Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

IlL Other Information (cont'd) · 

D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan {cont'd) 

Firefighters' Pension (cbnt'd) 

Reserves and Concentration of Investments--: There are no assets legally reserved 
for purposes other than the payment of plan member benefits, There are no -long:.term 
contracts for contributions. The following. investments (other than those-issued or· 
guaranteed by the U.S. government, mutual .funds~ and other· pooled investments) 
represent 5% or more of net assets available for benefits: 

Investment Type % of Net Assets 

. FNMA 9.82% . 

. . 

Summary of SignificanfAccounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters 
.' ' ' . 

Basis of Accounting -The finanCial statements are prepared using ttie accrual basis of 
accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the 
contributions are due. Employer contributions · are recbgnized when due and the 
employer has made a formal commitment to provide .the contributions. Benefits· and . 

. refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
' ' ' ·. ' . 

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, 
which app~oximates fair value .. 

Administrative costs for both the Police and Firefighters' Pension Plans are financed 
primarily through investment earnings. · · 

: - :_ ' - - . . 

Pension Plan Statements- The following page contains the individual pension fund. 
statements for the year ended April 30, 2008. 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois. 
Note~ to the Financial Statements (cont'd) 

IlL Other Information (cont'd} 

D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (corit'd) 
. . 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (cont'd) 

Pension 'Plan Statements (cant' d) 

._ ' ' ' ' 

Statement of Plan· Net Assets 
Assets: 

· Cash 
Investments: 

Illinois Funds 
.Money market accounts 
U.S. government and-agency securities· 
Insurance 'ton tracts 
Mutual funds - bonds·· · 
Mutual funds- stoCks 

Interest re.ceivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable. 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Pian net assets held in trust for pension benefitS 

·.Total liabilities and plan net assets 

Statement of Ctiang~s in Plan Net Assets 
Additions: 

Contributions:. 
Employer 
Meml:!ers 

Investment income: . . 
Net appreciation (depreciation)in fair value of investments 
Interest income · 

· tess investment expenses 

Total additions 

Deductions: . 
Pension benefits and refunds 
Administrative expense 

·Total deductions-

Change in net assets 
Beginning net assets held in trust for pension benefits 

Ending _net assets held In trust for pension benefits . -

-60-

$ 

$ 

.$ 

Police 
-.Pension 

8,645 

94;245 . 
- 419,825 

10,687,300 

1.054,369 
8,699,769 

115,276 

. 21,079.429 

177 
97 

274 

21,079,155 

21,079,429 

Police 
Pension-

.1,111,640 
404,840-

1,516,480 

(507,797) 
1,026,721 

(83,498) 

435426 
.1,951,906 

1,230,880 
8,617 

1,239,497 .· 

712,409 
20,366,746 

.21,079,155 

$ 

$ 

Firefighters' · 
Pensiori 

.210,053 

121;769 
155,644 

7;092,608 
1.199,293 

3,859,745 
82,837 

12,721,949 

3,772 
98 

3,870 

12,718,079 

12,721,949 

· Firefighters' · 
Pension 

$. . 817,496 
337,701 

$ -

1,155,197 

20,035 
773,242 
(42;693) 

750;584 
1,905,781 

367,870 
6,398 

374,268 

.1,531,513 
11,186,566 

12,718,079 



. City of Crystal Lake. Illinois 
-N~9tes to the FinariciaiStatements (cont'd) 

' • 1 ..• ' 

··Ill. Other Information (cont'd) 

D. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (cont'd) 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions 

The information presented in the notes and the required supplementary schedules was 
determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional -
information as ofthe latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Actuarial Valuation Date 

Actuarial· Cost Method 

.. Significant Actuarial 

. Assumptions: 
.(a) Rate of Retuin on 
· Investment of Present 
.and Future Assets 

,:(b) Projected Salary Increases 
- Attributable to Inflation 

(c) Additional Projected Salary 
Increases _,·Attributable to 
Seniority/Merit 

. : ' 

(d) Pos~retirement Benefit 
Increases 

Method Used to Determine 
· Actuarial Value of Assets 

.Amortization Method and .· 
Remaining Period · 
' . 

Trend Information 

Illinois Municipal 
Retirement 

December 31, 
2005 

Entry age 
. Normal 

. 7.50% 
compounded 

annually 

4~00%-

0.40% to 10.00%, 
depending on age 

and service 

3.00% 

Five-year 
. smoothed market 

·:value 

Level 
percentage of 

projected payroll, 
· closed basis, 

25 years 

Police Pension 

April 30, 2007 

Entry age 
Normal 

'7.00% 
compounded 

annually 

5.50% 

. Firefighters' 
Pension 

April 30; 2007 

·Entry age 
Normal 

7.00% 
compounded 

annually 

·5.50% 

(Note: Separate information 
for (band c) not available} 

3.00% 

Three-year 
smoothed market 

·value 

Level. 
percentage of 

projected payroll, 
closed basis, ' 
· .· 26 years 

3.00% 

Three-year 
smoothed market 

value. 

Level 
. percentage of 
projected payroll, 

·closed basis, 
26 years. 

Employer annual required contributions (ARC), actual contributions and the net pension 
obligation (NPO) are as follows .. The NPO is the cumuiative difference between the 
ARC and the actual contribution made. · 
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City of Crystal Lake,' Illinois 
Notes -to the Fi'nancial Statements.(coilt'd) 

"• 

Ill. Other Information (co'nt'd) 

D. Defined Ben-efit Pe-nsion Plan (cont'd) _ 

Trend Information (cont'd) 

Illinois 
Fiseal .. Municipal Police Firefighters' · 

. Year Retirement 'Pension- Pension 

Anf1Ual pension cost . ': 2003 $ 404,043 $ $ 
2004 "566,965 696;732 . 466,858 
2005 775,783' 696,732. 466,858 

-2006 872,700' 735,256 543,254 
2007 940,438 .· 967,919. 711,840 
2008· 986,799 1,113,556 820,030 

Actual contributions 2003' $ 404,043 $ $ 
2004 566,965 
2005 775,783-. 
2006 872,700 ' 735,907 541,367 
2007 940,438 .. 966,026 707,944 
2008 . 986,799 1,073,638 708,003 

Percent contributed 2003 % 1oo % % 
2004- 100 101.0 97.0 
2005- 100' 10L3 97.4 
2006' 100 100.1 99.7 
2007 - 100 99.8 99.5. 
2008 100 :96.4 86.3 

Net pension obligation 2003 $ $ $ 
2004 (24,078) (101,085) 
2005 ·. . (24,078) (101 ,085) 
2006 (23,427) (102,972) 
2007 (25,320) (106,868) -. 
2008 (65;238) (218,?95) 

·' .... 

E. Construction Commitments-

The City had commitments under construction contracts -ofapproximately $3,000,000 
outstanding at April 30, 2008; . · · · · 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (conrd) 

Ill. Other Information (cont'd} 

F. Joint Venture- SEECOM 

The City is a founding member of SEECOM .....: Southeast Emergency Communication. 
SEECOM is a municipal corporation and public body politic and corporate established 
pursuant to the Constitution of . the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois, as amended (the Act). · SEECOM is a 
cooperative joint venture organized for the purpose of providing the equipment, services 
and other items necessary and appropriate for t~e establishment, operation and . 
maintenance of the joint public safety communications system for the mutual benefit of 
the members of SEECOM. The founding members of SEECOM consist of the City of 

.. Crystal Lake, Illinois, the VIllage of Algonquin, Illinois and the Village of Cary, Illinois, 

SEECOM is governed by ari executive· board.established.with the three voting members 
consisting or the Village· ManagerNillage Administrator/City Manager,. or their respective 
staff designees, frorri the three founding communities. · Two non-voting members also 

. consist of one member from the Fire. Services Advisory Board and one member from the 
Law Enforcement Advisory Board. ·These non-voting Board members represent other 
user communities. Each member of the Executive Board is entitled to one vote. 

. . . 

Each of SEE COM's three members paid an initial entry fee as determined and agreed to 
by SEECOM's Board and the three members .. Each rneniber also pays a portion of the 
initial capital cost financed by the issuance of a bond. Each member's portion of the 
initial capital costs is based on the actual capital cost multiplied by the. member's 

· proportionate share of the number of calls for services from the preceding year. Each 
member pays a percentage of the operating costs of SEECOM as determined by the 

. total operational cost less contracted services. by each member's proportional share of 
.the calls for service handled by SEE COM. Calls for service are one year in arrears. 

All property: real and personal, acquired by SEECOM is owned in common by the 
members und~r the intergovernmental agreement Each of the three members under 
the intergovernmental agreement is liable for the debts and liabilities of SEE COM. The 
intergovernmental agreement establishing SEECOM is in effect for a period of 15 years 
froin the effective date of December .2002. Thereafter, it is automatically renewed with 
no affirmative action by·the three members for successive 5-year periods commencing 
May 1 until notice of termination is given. Any terminating member shall remain liable for 
their share of the capital expenditures incurred prior to the effective date of their 
termination. Upon termination by any member, SEE COM shall reimburse the terminated 
niember for its share of the un-depreciated value of SEE COM's capital assets.· · 

SEECOM is located at 100 West Woodstock Street, Crystal Lake, IL 60014. A separate­
audit report for SEE COM is available through their office. 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Financial Statements (cant' d) 

Ill. Other Information (cont'd) 

F. joint Venture- SEECOM (cont'd) 

The City reports its activities . in SEECOM as a governmental joint venture. In 
accordance with the joint venture -agreement,_ the Village remitted $1,126,549 to 
SEE COM during fiscal year 2008 . 

.G. New Governmental Accou-nting Standards 
- ·-

- The Governmental Accounting Standards Boc;~rd (GASB) recently issued the foliowing -
statements: - -· 

' - ' - - ' - - -

_ Statement No .. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post 
Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, establishes standards fo"r the measurement, _ 
recognition, and display ofOPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), 

__ note. disclosures, and if applicable, required supplementary information. The City is 
required to implement this Statement for the year ending ApriL30, 2009. 

Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution- Remediation 
-_ -- Obligations, provides guidance on how to calculate and report the :costs and obligations 

associated- with pollution cleanup efforts"' The .City is required_- to implement this 
Statement for the-year ending April 30, 2009. -

Statement -No. 50, _Pension -Disclosures, more _Closely ali~ris _ the financial reporting 
, requirements {or pensions with those for other postemployment benefits, The City is 
required to implement this Statement for the year ending Apri130, 2009. 

- ' ·' -. - - ' - ' - ' ' ~ ' - - ' -

.Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, establishes 
accounting and financial- reporting requireme_nts for intangible assets including 
easements, water rights, timber rights, patents. trademarks, and eomputer software. 

-The City is required to implement this Statement for the year ending April 30, 201 t. 

· · Management has· not yet completed its assessment of these statefTlents, however they 
are _ not_ expected to · have a material effect .on the overall financial statement 
presentation. - ·. · 

J -

Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges' of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-
Entity fransfersofAssets and Future Revenues, establishes criteria that governments 

· will use to_ ascertain . whether certain transactions should be regarded as • sales or as 
-collateralized borrowings, and includes "disdosure requirements for future revenues that 
are ledged or sold. The City was_ required to implement the requirements of this 
statement in the current year. · · · 
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City of Crjstal Lake, Illinois 
iilinois Municipal Retirement Fund . 

· - Required Supplementary info(matlon -
Schedule of Funding Progress_ 

April 30, 2008 

Actuarfal 
Accrued - ·UMLasa 

Actuarial Actuarial ·Liability 'Unfunded Percentage 
Valuation Value of· (ML)- ML Funded . Covered of Covered 

Date Assets-· Entry Age - (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

12/31/07 - $ 23,938,555 $ 26,951 '188 $ 3,012;633 88.82 % $ 9;917,574 30.38 .%, 

12/31/06 22,917,309 25,094,454 2,177,145' 91.32 9,302;054 23.40 

12/31/05. 20,976,856 23,367;856 . 2,391,000 89.77 9,414,245 ·25.40 

'12/31/04 . 19,256,697 .. 21,534,880 2,278,183 89.42 8,815_;720 25.84 

12/31/03 17,623,579 18,596,385 972,806 9477 8,122,706 11.98 

·' 
12/31/02 16,710,668 16,884,423 173,755 ~8.Q7 .7,681,434 2.26 

12/31/01 . 16,737,467. 15,496,324 (1,241 '143) 108.01 7,347,415 . (16.89) 

See- independent auditor's report. 
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ACtuarial Actuarial 
V~tu·ation Value of 

Date Ass~ts. 

-., 12/31107 $ 20,366,745 

12/31/06 ·18,189,042-

12/31/05 15,830,954 

"12/31/04 -14,650,126-

12/31/01 12;407,344-

12131/00 11;449,720 

12/31/99 . 10,634,239 
' -

Gity of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Police. Pension Fund 

·Required Supplementary Information -
-Schedule ofFunding Progress· 

_ ApriiJO, 2008 . --

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability Unfunded 
(ML)- AAL Funded 

-__ -Entry Age (UML) Ratio 

$ 33,981 ,410 $ -13,614;665 - 59.93 % 

30;682,017 12,492,975 _59.28 -__ 

28,204;041 12,373,087 :· 56.13 

25,475,775 -10,825,649 57.61 

19,684,809 .7,277;465 63.03 

18, 120.~46 6,670,526 63.19 

16,186,249 ~ -5,552,010 65.70 

See independent auditor's report. 
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UAALasa 
-Pertentage _ 

covered . of Covered _ 
Payroll Payroll 

$ ·3,950,211 344.66 _%-

- 3,949,442- 316.32 

3,662,402 337.84 

3,39!:},984 3J8.40 

2,763,297. 263.36 

2,675,733 -249.30 

_2,432,248 22827 

;, ' ' 
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CityofCrystal Lake, Illinois 
· ~Firefighters' Pension Fund 

Required Supplementary Information • 
. Schedule of Funding Progress 

April 30, 2008 .·. 

Actuarial 
Accrued UMLasa 

Actuarial Actuarial. Liability Unfunded Percentage 
Valuation Value of (ML)_-_ ML _Funded .covered ,_. cit Covered 

nate Assets Entry Age (UML)-- Ratio - Payroll· ·· Paxroll 

12/31/07 $ 11 '186,566 -_$ 16,690,125 .. -$. 5,503,559_ 67.03 % $ 3,344,163. 164.57 % 

12/31/06, 9,841,460 14,929,757 - 5,088,297 . 65.92 "3,036,863 167.55 

12/31/05. 8,184,906 13,194,759 5,009;853 62.03 2,693,675 .• 185.99 

12/31/04 7,331,686 11,451,905 4,120,219 64:02- 2,307,887_ 178.53-

12/31/01 5,613,547 7,517,01-3 ' 1,903_,466 74.68 -1,751,896 108,65 

-12131/00 '· 4,910,047 6,684,293 :1,774,246 73A6 '1 ,500,165- _.·_118;27 

12/31/99 _.' 4,287,625- -·_ 5,749,499_ _1 ,461,874 74.57 1,380,060 . '105.93 

See independent auditor's report: 
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City ~f Crystal Lal<e, lllinoi~ ·- . 
_ ~General Fund·. 

· Schedule of Re.venues, Expenditures and Chang.es in 
Fund Balance'~ Budget and Actual ~ Major Fund~ 

For theY ear Ended April 30, 2008 

Revenues: _ _ . 
· Charges for services- -
Ucen~es and permits · 
Intergovernmental' · 
Fines a'nd forfeitures -. 
Property taxes · 
Other-taxes.-

_ Investment incam'e 
-Miscellaneous 

$ 

Original 
~nd Final 
Budget 

569,150. 
581,400 
228,226 
800,000 

> 1,930,263 
- 17,476,300 

425,000 
284,487 

Actual 

$. 685,719 
-639,507 

96,966 
. 501,930 
1,929,135 

18,115,309 
938,000:_ 

., 
598,981 

Val-iance· 
Positive. 

(Negative) 

$ __ · 116,569 
58,107 

(131,260) 
(298;070) 

(1,128) . 
. 639,009. 

513,000. 
·. 314,494 

Total revenues · 22;294,826;. 23,505,547/ --. - 1,210,721 

Expenditures: 
Current:· 

General government 
Public· safety 

. Highways and streets 
- Capital outlay· · 
··Debt service: 

Principal· 
· Interest and fees --

,_ 

· Total e~penditures · 

Rev~nues over (under)­
expenditures befpre other · 

- firi~u1cing source~ (uses) · 

dther financing sour.ces.(uses): 
Transfer in · 

-Transfers out 

Total other financing 
sources_ (uses) 

Net change in-fund balance 

-F:und bala~ce, beginning of the year: -

Fund balance·. end of the year 

See independent auditor's report. 

- 6,953,16~ 
10,249,600 
4,249,542 
1;117,714 

255,000 -
168,801' 

22,993;824 

(698,998)'. 

77,967../ ... 
. (820,610) . 

(742,643) 

$ (1,441,641) 

6~01-9,055 
. 9,762,988 . 

4,334,819 
. 869,846/ . 

255,000-:--
168,801/ -

21,410,$09' 

2,095,038 .. 

,·-

77,967-<-
(1501655) 

{72,688) 

·2,022,350 

-. 20,399,341 

:.$ 22,421,691 . 

-_68-

934,112 
486,6'12 

. (85,277)··. 

. 247,868 

-------....,._---
1;583,315 

2,794,036 

669,955 

. $ 3,463,991 



C~ty of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 

'Schedule ·of Reveriues, Exp~nditures and Changes in_ 
Fund Balance M Budgetanci.Actual- Majo(Funds 

· _ For the Year Ended April .30, 2008 

·-Revenues:­
lntergoverninental 
Investment income. 

-Other 

- Total reven·ues 

Expenditures - current . 
Highways and street: .. 

CO'ntractual .services 
Supplies and materials 

Capital outlay - streets 

. . 

Total expenditures -

.... Netchange in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of the year 

Fund balance, end ()f the year . ·. 

See independent auditor's report.·· 

Original 
and Final 

··Budget· 

$ 1,137,936 
450,000 

1,587,936 

945,023 
200,000 
-949,660 

- 2,094;683 

$ (506,747) 

~ 69-

.$ 

-$ 

Actual· 

1,150,479 .· 
422,730. 

(604) 

1,572,605. 

318,726 . 
307,547 

. 337,518 

963,791 

608,814 

9,161,683 ' . 

9,770,497 

Variance 
· . ·Positive_ 

(Negative) 

$ . - -12,543 
·.-(27,270) 

{604) 

(15,331) 

626,297 
(107,547). 
612,142 

. -.1,130,892 

$ 1,115,561_·. 



City _of C,.Ystal Lake, lllinoh~ 
- · Fire Rescue Fund · 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
. _ Fun_d Balan~e ·Budget and Actual-

. Forth~ Year Ended April 30~ 2008 

Original 
and Final 
Budget ActuaL 

Revenues:-
Charges for services $ 1,568;758 $' 1,983,229 
lntergover~Jmental 36;800 16,320 

_ Property. taxes -5,092,223 . 5,087,046-c' 
_ Investment income 62,500 69,594 
Other .18,250. '45,939 

, Total revenues 6,778,531 -7,202,128 

·-Expenditures: 
· . Publicsafety: _ 

Personal services 5,377,698. 4~887 ,568_ . 
- Contractual services -_- 917,360 815,790-
_Materials and-supplies - . 250,130 248,553 -

·Capital outlay. 150,610 1.45,376 

_ Tot<11'expenditures _. 6,695,798 6,097,287 

-Revenues -over expenditures 
before other financing :-

- sources (uses) .82,733 1,104;841 
. --

dther financ;ing sources (uses): 
Transfers in - 150,610 150.,610 

- Transfer5 out (77,967) (77;967) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 72,643. _72,6.43 

Net c::hange in fund balance $ 155,376 1,177,484 

_ Fund balance, beginning_ of the year . 2,610,465 

Fund balance, end _ofthe year $ 3,787,949 

See independent auditor's report._ 

-.;, 70-

_Variance 
Positive·· -

(Negative) 

$ - '414,471 
(20,480) 
_(5,177) 
7,094 

27,689 

"423,597 

·_490,_130 
-101,570 

1,577 
: 5,234 

598,511_ 

~.022,108 

$ 1,022;108 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

Schedule of R~venues, Expenditures and Changes in -
Fun~ Balance- Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended- April 30, 2008_ 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 

-Other taxes --: replacement 
Investment .income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - current -
- Personal services: -

General gov~rnment 
Public safety 

.- Highways and streets . -

-·Culture and· recreation. 

Total expenditures _ 
' - ' ' ' ' 

- Net changejn fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of the year 

Fund balance, end of the year . 

S~e independent auditor's report. 

Original 
and Final 
Bu_dget Actual 

$ - 1,821,736 $ 1,821,144 

4;789 47,498 

1,826,525 1,868,642 

889,217 711,552 
291-,111 259,188 
310,167 276,154 
336,030 299,181 

1;826,525 1 ,546,075 --

_$ 322,567 

422,485_ 

$ 745,052--

-- 71· _: 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ (592) 

42,709 

42,117 

177,665_ 
31;923 
34,013 

.-36,849 

280,450 

·$ -322,567 



- r • • 

City_ of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Notes to the Required Supplementary lnfo~niation 

Budgetary lnf~rmation 

Ttie City coJ-ncil follow~dhese procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financiaLstatemerits: - - - -

- A The City Manager- submits to the .CitY Coun-cil a proposed operating" budget for -the fiseat -
year commencing -the following May 1. - The operating budget -includes proposed 

: expenditures and- the- -rneans of: financ_ing them. - -The budget is prepared on a ~basis 
consistent with'.accounting principles- generally accepted in .the United States ofAmedca -
(GMP), except depreciation is not budgeted in the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. -

' ' ' - ' :• .. 

B. · A public hearing is _GOnduded to- obtain taxpayer (X)mments: : 

C. Prior 'to· May- 1, the budget is legally enacted for theG€meral Fund; Special Revenue Funds, _ 
, Debt Services Funds (exceptions: noted in Note J.D.), Capital Projects Funds (exceptions 
_ n6ted in Note 1.0.), Enter-Prise Funds and Pension Trust Fuhds. 

- -

_D. Expenditures may-not legally: exceed the(total approprfated amounts-fdr e~ch fund.- The-City_-­
Manager Is authorized -to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within_ any fund;­
however, expenditures in excess- of t!Je total appropriated amount must be approved ·by the 

- City Council. No budget modificatiOns were made for the year ended April 30, 2008. The 
-Library approved supplemental appropriations. - ' 

As of April 36, 2008, the following funds had an excess of actuaf expenditures over budget~ _ 

Fund Naine ·--

Foreign Fire Insurance Fund _ _ 
- _Crystal Heights Oebt Service_Fund 

· 2006 Special ServiC:e Area No. 44 Debt Service Fund 
Virginia Street Corridor TIF Construction Fund 
Police Pension Fund -_ - -
Firefighters' Pension Fund 

-72-

Ex~ess 

-$ 30,906 
,90,099 

;3,000 
79.'084 ---

257-123 - ., ., 
- 62,632 
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City of Crystal-Lake, Illinois 
General Fund-· · 

Schedule of Revenues .;. Budget and Ac.tual 
Forth~ Year Ended April_307 2008 _ ---

Charges for ~er-Vices: 
Zoning and .subdivision f~es 
Plan review fees 

__ Parking· 
-Police revenue · 

- _ Annexation Jees __ -
-Other fees 

- Licens.es ~nd permits:. 
Liquor licenses 
Miscel.laneous licenses and permits 

· Building permits 
Occupancy permits 

· Intergovernmental- grants -_ 

Fines and forfeitures: 
Police fines 

·_Adjudl_cation fines 

Property taxes· 

(cont'd)-

$ 

Original. 
-and F.inal_ 

Budget 

24,150 
238,000 
260,000' 

9,000 
14,000 
24 000' ' -

569,150 

-8o,ooo 
40,000--

456;150 
5,250 

-581,400 

'228,226 

·700,000 
-100,000 

- -

800,000 

- 1,930,263 

--73-

$ 

Actual 

10,994 
154,840 
233,183 

79,850_-
40,550 

166,302' 

'685,719 

101,192 
50,665 

' 483,050 
4,600 -· 

639,507. 

- 96,966 

'- 501,930 

501,930 

1,929,13~ 

·VarianCe · 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$_ - - (13-,156) 
(83,160) 

-{26,817)· 
70,850 

'26,550 
_142,302 

116,569 

21,192 
'10,665 
26,900 
' {650) 

.58,107-

(131,260) 

~ (198,070) 
- - (1 00,000) 

(298,070)_ 

(1,128) 



-City of Crystal Lake,JIIinois -
_General Fund-

Schedule- of Revenues ~Budget and Actual ( cont'd) 
: -For the Year Ended Aprii30, 2008 · 

. Other tax;es: _ 
Replacement ~ax 

_ StateLsales tax 
Auto rental tax -. - .. 

· Income tax 
Franchise fe~s-- eable -

-- Telecommunic;;ations tax 
. Hotel tax 

-· Local use tax_ 

. Investment income -~ 

Miscellaneous~ 
Rental income 
Other 

Total revenues 

See independent auditor's report .. -

$ 

$ 

Original 
and Final -

Budget--

120,000 . 
11,0?0,000-

26,000. 
3,280,000 
-400,000-

1,950,000. 
145,000. 
505,300 

17,476,300 --

--425,000 

50,000 
234,487' 

284,487'' 

22,294,826: 

-74 ~ 

Actual.-

$ __ 171,107 
- 10,915,086 

26;807 
3,748,680 

433-,13:4 
- -

--2,022,4 t7 
241,208 . 
556 810 · -_ . . 

:18,115,309 

938,000 

73,919 
. 525,062 

.. 598,981 

--
$ -23,505;547-

-Variance 
_ Positive 

__ (Negative) 

$_ . 51,107 
_(134,914) 

- '807 
-468,680 

--- 33,134 
72,417 

- 96~208 
51,570 

639,009 

513,000 

- 23 919 -· -
-290,575-

- 314,494 

$ 1,210;721 



City of Cl)lstal Lake, Illinois 
. v . ·. , General Fund . . · 

Schedule ofExpendltures ~ Budget and Actual : 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

General government: 
·· Executive department: 

Personnel services 
Contractual services 

Legal and judiciarY department -
-contractual services 

Administration department: 
Personnel services 
.Contractual services 
Supplies 'and materials 

Building department: 
Personnel serVices 

. Contractual-services 
Supplies and materials 

·· Engineering departmemt: -
PersonneJ·services 
Contractual serviees 

. Supplies and materials 

Planning department: 
Personnel services 

. · Contractual services . 
.Supplies and materials • 

(cont'd) 

.. 

$_ 

Original 
and Final 
Budget 

22,800 
208,589 

231,389 

283,950 . 

- 1,583,764 
392,795 
140,010 

2,116,569 

.. 945,754 . 
124,901 
. 29;179 

1,099,834 

1,122,176 
116,4~1· . 
49,704 

1,288,371 

436,916 
174,355 

14,380 

625,651 

-75-

$ 

Actual 

23,280 
191,488 

214768/ 
' 

231,846....-

.1A02,632 
231,716 
137,958 

1 '772,306 / -. 

818A09 
70,788 
25,031 

914,228/-. 

1,032,793 
.143,289 

48,('14 

1,224~796 / 

430,610 
190,562 

8,477 

-629,649/ 

$ 

Variance 
Positive· 

(Negative) . 

(480} 
17,101 

16,621 

52,104 

181,132 
161,079 

2,052 

344,263 

127,345 
Q4,113 

4,148 

185,606 

89,383-
(26,798) 

990 

63,575 

. 6,306 
(1?;207) ·.· 

.5,903 

'(3,99-8) 



-------··- -·-

~City of Crystal Lake, ·Illinois 
. . General .Fund . _ . . 

- Schedule of_Expenditures .;.· _Bu~get and Actual .(cont'd} _-

-_ For theY ear Ended April 30, 2008 

G€m~ral government (cont'd): 
- Information technology: 

Person he I services. ~ 
Contractual services _ 
Supplies and materials 

. ..·· .. · ' ., ' . . . -

Health service~ - contractual se~ices 

-Special projects department: 
,Contractual se_rvices 

_ Supplies and-materials 

Total-general government 

.Public 'safety: 
. _ Po,lice department: 

· - Personnel services . 
· Contractual s~riices -· ·. 
. Supplies and materials -

I '• ·, ' 

Pension .eontrit)utjons- - -

'' 

Fire and police commission: 
-·tontractual-service_s _ 

Supplies and materials -

Total public safety_ 

{epnt'd) 

-$-

Original 
and Final · 
Budget 

'•297,099 
24,183 

140,220 

461,5~02 

-119,500 

: 643,679 
82,722 

726.401 

6,953,167 

6;404;691 
- 1 473 495 

'464.856 '-
' . 

8,283,042 

1,930,263' 

35,835 
460-

36;295-

'10,249,600 

-76-

$ 

·. Actual 

279~891 - $ 
16~396, 

' 132,015 

428,302/ 
' ' 

' 86~749 .:----

.· -509,948 
6,463 

516,411...-- -

6 01'9 055 
' . . 

' 5,954,~02 '- ' 
1,437 ;093' ' 

4,04,456_ 

--

Variance -­
Positive - -

-(Negative) -

17,208' 
7,787 

'8,205' 

33,200' 

32,751 

_133;73,1 
76,259 

.- 209,990 

_934,112 -· 

449,789--
36A02 

400 

'7,796,451 _;..:..:- '486;591 
-------'----'--:-

_t,929,SHf/-

37,0~1 

747 
----'--..,..---

' (1,186) 
460' 

37,021----- ___ (_,_7_26--<:-) ' 

'9,762,988 486,612 ' 



·· .. · .. City of Crystal Lake, Hlinois. 
General Fund 

.Schedule of Expenditures- Budget .and Actual (cont'd). 
. -For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Original Variance 
and Final Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative) 

Highways and streets: 
Street department: 

.. 

Personnel services · $ 1,884,550 $ 1,880;268 $ 4.~82 

Contractual services 764,991 766,002 (1,011) 
Supplies and materials 241,850 ·. 352,930 . (11.1,080) 

2,891,391 . 2;999,200 (107,809) 

S!orm.sewer maintenance department: 
Personnel services- 531,434 532,650 (1,216) 

... 

Contractual services 42,730 50,804. - (8,074) 
Supplies ·and materials 45,070 48,456 ' -(3,386) 

619,234 631~910. (12,676) 

· · Fleet services: 
Personnel services· 544,492 486,596 57,896 

'· Contractual service~ . . 157,470 153,823 -3,647.. 
Supplies and· materials 36;955- 63~290 (26,335) 

738,917 703,709 -35,208 

Total highways and stre·ets· 4,249,542 4,334,819 / . (85,277) 
.. 

Capital outlay: 
Fleet· services department 14,009 . 1,683......- 12,317 

\_ 
Police department . '443,514 406,06/ ' 37,447 

: Street department 91,200 157154--' . 
(65,954) 

. -

Special projects department . 569,000 304,942 ............ 264,058 
.. 

Total capital outlay 1,117,714 . 869,846. 247,868 

Debt service - special projects department: · 
255 ooo/· · Principal · · 255,000 . . ' . 

Interest 168,801 168 801/ 
. . ' ' 

Total debt service 423,801 ·. 423,801 

Tota.l expenditures $ 22,993,824 $ 21,410,509 $ 1,583,315 

See independent auditor's report. 

-77-



Nonmajor Government~! Funds . . 

· SpeCial Revenue Funds' 

Special revenue. funds are used to account for revenues from spe~ific t~xes or other earmarked revenue 
sources which by .law ar¢ designated to finance particular functions oractivities of government and. which 

·:cannot be- diverted to other uses. The nonmajor special revenue funds maintained by the City are as 
. follows: - · · 

RoadNehicle License -To account for revenues received from th~ county_ road and bridge.tax~s·and to. 
_account for revenue from vehicle license fees. . . . . . _ · - . · 

:School Crossing Guard ...:.To accat-!nt for expenditures related to scho9l crossing guards. 
Foreign Fire Insurance :.... To account. for proceeds of foreign fire .insurance tax a11d for expens~s 
a1,1thorized by the Board'of Foreign fire .Insurance. · 

Debt Service Func;fs -· 

Debt seivice funds are used to account for monies accumulated to retire general long-terril debt. The .. 
_ debt service fund$ maintained by the City are as follows: · . · · · · 

Special Service Area Nos. 4:-18- To account for the accumulation- of resources for, and the payment-of; 
·principal.and interest on the Special Service Area -Nos. 4-18 bonds. FinanCing is being prqvided by a 
property tax levy. .. · . · . ._ . · . 
Special Service Area No. 19- To aecount for the aceumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 

· principal and .interest on the Special Service Area No: 19 bond.s. -Financing is beh1g provided by a. 
property tax levy. · .· . • · . . · · . · · ' -. ' - · -
Special Service Area Nos. 21-31 --To account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment 

·of, principal and interest on the Special Service Area Nos. 21-31 bonds. Fina'ricing is being provided by a 
·; property tax levy. · · · · . _ 
·Special Service Al:e~ Nos. 32:-39- to acco1,1nt for the accumulation of resources for, and .the payment· 
of, principal and interest on the Special Service Area Nos. 32-39 bonds. Rnancing is being provided by a 
prqperty tax levy. . · . . ·· _ . . -· . · · -. _ · · · _ - .. ·. -· · · . · 

-spec:iai.Service Area NQ. 42- To actount for the accumulation ofresources·for, and the pa}tment of, 
principal .and interest oh the Special Ser\tice Area N.o. 42 qonds. Financing is being provided by- a 
property tax levy. , · . · . . · _ . - . . · · · · : 
_ Special Service Area No. 149 -To account for the accumulation of. resources for, and the payment of; 
' principal and interest on the Special' Service Area No. 149 bonds. · Financing is being provided t::iy 
. assessments to property owners in the Service Area No.149. . _ · . 
Crystai_Heights Debt se·rvice - To account :for the accumulation of resources to retire principal and 
interest on the 2004 Generalpbligation -Bonds related to Crystal Heights. Financing is being provided by 
a property taxleV}'. · · ·. - ·· · _ .·. . ' . . · · · · _ 
SEECOM Debt Service -To account for the accumulation ofresources to retire-principal and inter~st on 
the 2004 General Obligation. Bonds related to tne SEE COM central qispatch service. - Financing is 
provided by SEE COM member communities. ._ . . . . 

·. 2007 Special Service Area No. 44 7"To account for theaccumulation of resources for, and the payment 
of, principal and. interest on the 2007 Special Ser'Vice Area No. 44 bonds. Financing is being provided by 
a property tax levy on property owners in ttie :Service Area No. 42~ . . _· · . , . · . · . . . 
2006 Special Service Area No.- 45 -To account for the accumulation of resources for, and ttie payment 
Of; principal and interest on the 2006 Special Service Area No. 42 bonds. Financing is bein·g p_rovided by 
a property tax-levy on property oWners in the Service Area No. 42. · - · ·· 

· 2007 Special Seririte Area No. 46 -To account for the accumuiation of resources for, and the payment -
of, principal and interest on the 20Q6 Special Service Area No. 42 bonds. Financing is being provided by 
a property tax levy on·propertyowners in.the Serviee Area ~o. 42.- · · · - · 
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Noomajor Governmental Funds (~o,nt'd}. 

. . 

Capital Projects Funds 

. Capital projects funds. account for the resources used by the City for the acquisition, and or construction of . · 
c~pital facilities. The capital projects fwnds_ maintained by the City are as follows:_ · · 

··Special Service .Area No; 42 - To accountfor the proceed~ of special service. are"' bonds used for 
· capital improvements in ::;pecial service _districts within the- City. . . . · · _ . 

SEECOM - To account for the establishment of _the Southeast Emergency Communications Center 
·.(SEE COM}; a central dispC!tch service for public safety (Police and Fire). . - .. . 
_:Special Assessment'No. 145 -To account for the pr'Oceeds of special assessment' bonds used for . 
capital improvements to the Woodstock Street sanitary:sewer 'and.cov~r lift station. . 
TJ.F. B()tld Const;uction·- To account for tlw T.I.F. related improvements, inCluding Veteran Memorial 
lighting, .downtown parking Improvements,_ Metra station upgrades, and demolition of the Public Works 
garage. · · · · , 

_ ·Crystal Heights Utility Extension - To account for the· extension of utilities to the Cr-Ystal Heights 
subdivision,,-,· . . . ' . , . . . . . 

Main Street TJ.F. Constn.iction -To accou1_1t forthe initial planning and engineering design s~riices of 
· the Main Street TIF, including improvements to the Main Streetand Crystal Lake Ave_ni.Je intersection. 
'Virginia Street. Corridor TIF -to account for the initial planning and engineering design· services of the 

.' .Virginia StreetCorridorTIF; intended to spur a comprehensive revitalization of this area~ ·- : 
Vulcari Lakes TJ.F. District- To atcount for the Initial plannin'g arid engineering.design.services of the 
Vulcan La!<es TIF, intended to spur a comprehensive revitalization of this area. : . __ . . -
·special Service Area No. 44 l)·acy Trail Construction - To account for the proceeds of special service 

_ ;ar~a bdnds used for capital improvements in special service dist~:ict~ within the City. _ · · · 
. · Special Service. Area No. 45 _Bryn Mawr Project - To account for the ·proceeds of speCial service area-

bonds used for capit~l imp-rovements in special setvice districts within the City. . _ 
-SpeCial Seryice _Area No. 46 Ryland_ Main Construction - To account for the prqceeds of special 
~~rvi~ area bonds used for capital impq::>Vements.in special servicedistrictS.within tbe City. ·· 

•'," . 

:-"- ,. 



Cash and investments 
Receivables: 

_Property taxes-
-_ Accrued interest 

__ -Other 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 

Total assets 

Assets 

City of Crystal-Lake~ Illinois 
Combh1ing Balance Sheet -

Nonmajor Governrnental Funds 
April 30, 2008 

-Total 

$ 9,41~,248 

. 1,483,819 
48,828 

300,068 
34,189 

- 13,673 

$ 11 ,296,825 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Lial;:>ilities: __ 
- Accounts payable _ 

Accrued expens~s 
Recapture-fees payable 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue -' property taxes 

Tot_alliabirities 

Fl,lnd bal~mees: 
-Reserved for debt ser.ilce-­
UnreservE3d 

Total fund balances 

- Total liabilities and 
ofund balances 

See independentauditor's report 

-78- . 

$ 103,946 
- 2,495_ 

- 1,678,031 -. 
- 2,256;893 

1,483,819 

5,525,184 

- 806",392 
4,965,249 

5,771,641· 

-$ 11 ,296,825 

-$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Sp~cial Debt 
Revenue -_Service 

2;448,407 $" 2,409,_191 

46;110 545,097 
48,828 

2,304 297,764 
-34,058 . 131 

1_3,673 

2,579;707_ $ 3,265,856 

3,394 $ - 1,695 
2,495 

- -- .. 1,503,906 
~·- 4_08,766 

46,110 545,097 

51,999 2,459,464 

806,392-
.2,527,708 

. 2,527,708 806,392 

2,579,707 $ 3,_265,856--



! ,-

CapitaL 
_Projects 

$4,558,650 . 

. 892;612.~ ... 

$5,451,262 

$ 98,857 . 

174,125 . 
1,848;127 

892,612 . 

. . 3.013,721 

.2,437~541 

. 2.437,541 

$.5.451,262-. . 

-79-



City of Crystal lake, Illinois 
_ Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendi~ures and __ 
Changes in i=unci Balances - Nonmajor GovernmentaJ Funds 

For the Ye_ar Ended -April 30, 2008 - -

Revenues: 
-Charges for services 
Ucenses and permits 
Property taxes 
Other· taxes _ 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Totalrevenues 

Expenditures: 
Currer:tt: _ _ 

General government­
Public safety 

;-Highways and streets ·-
Capital outlay . 
Debt service: -

Pond pal 
Interest and fees 

Tota'l expenditures 

D~ficiency of_ revenue~ under _ 
expenditures before other financing 
sources (uses) - -

Other fi~ancings6urces (uses): 
Bonds issued 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

- Total ·other financing sources- (uses) 
-. . .·' .. 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning of the year 

Fund balances·, end of the year 

See independent_auditor's report. 

$ 

$ 

-80., 

Special 
Total Revenue-

541,731 $ 
220,544 220,544-

1,527,498 448;853 
56A_91 56,491_ 

~16,440 129,504 
327,358 94;060 

2,990,062 -_ 949,452-' 

-625,574 
86,003 -_- 86,003 

153,511 - 153,511 
' 4,638,462 1,552,207 

575,000 - 62;500 
624;954 3,063 

6,703,504 1,85'7,284 

(3, 713,442) (907,832)-

'750,000 ' 
6,413 

(6,368) 

750,045 

-{2,963,397) - - .(907,832) 

8,735,083 3,435~540 --

5,771,686 $ 2,527,708 

Debt 
Service 

;..,.. 

_$ 541,731 

238,113 

26,975 

806;819 

-35,525 

- 86,659-

- 512,500 
621,891 

-1,256,575 

----·---=-_: 449, 756) 

.--(6,368) 

(6~368) 

(456,124) 

1,262,516 

$ 806,392 



-Capital 
_ _Projects -

$ 

.. 
- 159,961-

-233,298 --

1,233,791 

590,049-

-· 2;999,596- - -

-3,589,645 

(2,355~854) -

75Q;OOO 
. 6,413. <--· 

_756,413 

-_. (1,599,441)_ 

4,037,027: 

$ 2,437 ;sse-

- 81 -



City of Crjstal Lake, .Illinois 
Combining Balance Sheet - . 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
· Apri130, 2008 . · · · 

Cash .and investments 
Receivat)les: 

Property tax.es 
Accrued interest 
Other · 

Due from other funds 

Total assets 

Assets. 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deterred ,revenue ~ property taxes·· 

Total liabilities 
- . -

- Fund balances - unreserved 

T9tal liabilities and 
fund balances 

See independent auditor's report. 

Total 

$ 2.448,407-

46,110 
.·_ 48,828 

·. 2,304 
34,058 

$ 2,579,70.7 

$ -3,394 
2,495 

46,110 

51~999 

2,527,708 

$ 2,579,707 

- 82..: 

$ 

$. 

$ 

$ 

Road/ 
·Vehicle­
License 

2,350,417_-

48,828 

. 34,058_ 

2,433,303 

3,394 

- 3,394 

- 2,429,909 

2,433,303 

$' 

$ 

$ 

$ 

School 
Crossing 

Guard 

.-25,194 

46j10 

- .2,304 

·. 73,608 

2,495 
46,110 

48,605 

-25,003. 

- 73,608 



Foreigl) 
Fire: 

... ·Insurance 

72,1796 

$· 

72,196 

$ 72;796 . 

·-~ 



. City of Crystal Lake, ·Illinois .. . .. 
. Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Chariges in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
For the Year Ended April" 30, 2008 

Road/ 
Vehicle 

Total License 

Revenues: 
·Licenses and permits -$ 220,544 $ 220,544' 
Property taxe~ 448,f353 - - 404,028 
Other taxes 56,491 
Interest <129,504 127.273 

.. Miscellaneous 94,060 .. 26.483-

Total revenues ·949,452 778,32;; ·, 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Public safetY 
- - . ,., 

86,003 
Highways and streets 153,511 153,511 ,. 

·Capital outlay 1 ,552,2()7 ' 1,552.207 
Debt service:-

Principal· 62,50() -62~500 
· Interest and fees 3,063 3,063 

Totai-expenditures _ 1,857,284 . -1,771,281 

-Net <:,hanges in fund balance~ (907,832) ., (992,953) 
'. 

Fund· balanees: beginning of the year - -3,435,540 3;422,862-

Fund balances, end of the year $ 2,527,708 $- 2,429,909 

See independent auditor's report. 

--84-

School· 
Crossing 

Guard 4 

$ -
44,825 

942 
21,655 

67,422; 

55,097 

-

.-55,097 

12,325 

-- '12,678 

$ 25,003 



------------- ·----·----------

,Fo~eign, 

Fire 
' ' ' 

.Insurance 

'56,491 -
_-1,289 
45,922-

t~~ 702/ ' .. 

30;906 

.30,906 

72,796 

--
72796 
. ' . 

_- 85-



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois .. 
RoadNehicle License Fund 

Schedule of Revehues, Expendit~res and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
·For theY ear Ended April30, 2008 

· Rever,ues: 
Ucenses and. permits 
Property taxes 
Other taxes - replacement 
Investment income 

·.Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Highways and streets 

. Capital putlay 
· Debt serviCe: 

Principal 
Interest · 

Total expenditures 
·, -. ' . 

Net change in ·fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of the yea~ 

Fund balance: end of the.y~ar. 

. . 

·See independent auditor's report. 

$ 

$ 

Original·· 
and Final 
Budget· ·· Actual 

210,000 -$ 22Q,544 . 
370,000 404,028 . 

9;300 .. -
100,000 127,273 

50,000 26,483. 

739,300 . 778,328 

290,845 .. 153,511 
1,930,875 1552 207 ' . ·' 

62,500 62~500 
.. 3,063 3,063 . 

2,287,283 1,771,281 

(1,547,983) (992,953) 

3,422,862 

$ 2,429,909-

-86-

L..._ _________________________ ,. ___ , ____ ._. 

$ 

·Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

. 10,544 
.. 34,028· 
. (9,300) 
27,273 

(23,517) 

39,028 

137,334 
378,668 

516,002 

. $. 555,030. 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
. School Cro~sing Guard Fund . 

·.Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in· 
. Fund.Balance·~.Budget and Actual · · 
. For the Year EndedAprH 30,2008 

· Reven-ues: 
.. Property taxes' .. 
Investment incom~ 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: _ 
. · Public safety: 

· Personal ser\tices 
_ ' ·Materials and supplies .. ·· 

Total expenditures 

_ Net change in fund t>alance · 

· Fund balance, beginning-of the yea·r · 

·.Fund balance, end ofthe year.· 

. See independent auditor's report 

•$ 

·-

$ 

.Original 
and Final 

. . ' . . . . 

Budget 

44,4~6 . ·. · .. $ 

.378. 
11,848 

56,722 

56,422 
300 

56,722 . 

$ 

-87-

Actual 

44,825 
942 

21 655 ,. J' 

., 

67,422 

55,097 

55,097 

12,325 

12,678. 

25,003 

·variance. 
, Positive 
{Negative) 

$ 329 
564 

9,807. 

10,700 

·1,325 
300-

_1,625 

$ 12,325 
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~ ' . 

: , City· of Crystal Lake, Illinois ·-
<~Foreign Fire Insurance Fund 

Schedule-of Rt;!venue·s, Expenditures and Changes in 
- Fund Balance ~Budget andA~tual 

CitY. of Crystal Lake, Illinois -

Revenues: _ . 
· Foreign fire insur~nce 
Investment income . 
MisCellaneous · 

-Total revenues 

Expenditures-: _ _ _ . _ _ 
Public safetY - materials arid supplies 

- Net change irffu-ndbalance -

Fund balance; beginning of the year 

Fund balance, end of the year 

' '· ( . . ' 

-See independent auditor's report.· 

·Original 
and Final-
--Budget 

$ - 22,506 

22,500 ' 

---

$ " 22,500 

-88-

Actual 

$ 56,491 
1~289 

" 

''45,922. 

103,702 

30,906'-

-72,796 

$ -_ 7~,796. 

-variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 33,991 
-1;289 

- 45,922 

81,202 

(30;906} 
--

$ 
" '-50:296 -'' ' 



Assets 

Cash and investments .. 
Receivables: 

Property taxes . 
Other·· 

Due from othedurids 
· Prepaid items 

Total assets 

.. 

~ City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
. Combining Balance Sheet·~ 

·.·.· NonmajorDebt Service Funds 
April 30, 2008 

. . 

Total 

$ 2,409,191 

545,997 
297,764 

131 
13,673 

$ 3,265,856 

Liabilities an~ Fund Balances 

·· Liabilities: 
Accounts payable . $ 1,695 
Recapture fees payable . · : 1,503,906 
Due to other.funds · 408,766 
Deferred revenue- property taxes 545,097. 

Total liabilities 2,459,464 

Fund balances ~ reserved for dept service 806,392 

Total liabilities ancl 
.fund balances · $ 3 265 856 J . , 

(cont'd) 

. . 

See indepEmderit auditor~s report. 

-89-

Special Special 
Service Service 

Area . Area 
Nos. 4-18 No.19 

$ 498,648 .$ 17,872 

-

$ 498,648 $ 17,872 

$ 1,695 $ 
498,648 14,858 

- '" 
,. 

. 500,343 14,858 

(1 ,695) 3,014 

$ 498,648 $. .. 17;872 



' 
2007 

Speci~l · Special · Special Special Crystal .Special 
Service 

'' 

Ser-Vice . Service·- Service Heights Service 
An~ a Area· ·Area Area- Debt Area 

·. Nos. 2f-31 ... Nos. 32-39 J~o. 42· . No. 149 Service No.-44 

- $_ 116,246 $1,565,502 $ $ $ 70,642 $ 

.. 85;801 -80,217 
(10,'364) 308,128 

131 -
-

$ 11.6,246 .$ 1 ,555; 138 $ $ 308,259 $ ·,,' 156A43 $·- '' 

80,217 

$ - ··$ 
' ' $ $ -$ $ 

112,229 '' '878 071' 
' ' ' 

-100 
31:0,094 

.--
'- 98,672 

85,801 80;217 ·-

112 229 '878 07f ·too 310,094-- 85,801' 178,889 . ' ,, f L '. . . . 

4,017 _677,067" (100) ~ (1,8~5) 70,642 (!;}8,{)72) 

$ 1"16,246 $1,555,138 .$ ' - ,$ 308,259 $ 156A43_ ·$' 80,217 

-90-
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. . . . 

City. of C-rystal· Lake, Illinois· 
__ ·c.ombiriing Balance Sheet·-
Nonmajor .Debt- Service Funds (cont'd) 

· - Aprit30~ 2008. -_- -

·Assets 

- Cash a~d investments · • 
Receivables: 

_ Ptop~rtytaxes 
Other-· 

Du~ fr9m ·qthe't funds _ 
. Prepaid items 

Total asset$ 

liabilities and·f:und Balances . 

Liabilities: 
-Aceounts 'payable 

. Reeapture fees payable 
· bue to other funds 

. . ' 

Deferred revenue - property taxes 

Total-liabilities 

FLmd balances - reserv~d foi'debt service 

-i"otal liabilities and 
fun_d balances ·. 

See independent auditor's report. 

- 9.1 -

2006 ·2007 
- s·pecial Special 
Service __ Service_. 
--Ah;;a ·Area 
No, 45 No.4€) 

$ 435 $ •139,846. 

379,079 

-
13,613 .. 

$ ·'393,187 $ 139,846 

$ ':" $' 

379,079 .-

-·379,019' ·-

14,108 139,846 

-$ - 393,187 $ 139,846 



---------------·--·--··------

. .. City of Crystal Lake~ Illinois _ 
Combining Statement of Revenues, -Expenclitures _and 

Changes in Fund_ Balances (Deficits) ~ Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Special 
Service 
Area 

·Total Nos. 4-18 

Re~enues: 
· Char~es_for services . $ 541,731 $ 

Property taxes 238,113 
·Investment ir,tcorrie (loss) 26,975 

-· Total revenues 806,819 

Expenditures: 
Current ~ general government 

·- Debt service: · · 
35,525 1,695 

Principal :. 512,500 
·Interest aridtees -._ 6~1,891 

Miscellanequs .- 86,659 

Total expen-diturt:!s 1,256,575 . 1,695 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
.. over (under) expenditures before_ 
other financing uses (449,756) (1,695) 

Other financing uses :- transfers out (6,368.) .. 

- Net changes in fund balances (456,124) - (1,695) 

Fund balances, beginning of the year - 1,262,516 

Fund balances (deficits), end ofthe year $ 806,392_ $ (1,695) 

(corit'd) 

See independent auditor's report 

--92-

Spec:ial 
Service 

Area 
No. 19 

$ 
-

3,014-

$ _3,014-



special 
Service 

Area· 

Nos. 21-31 

$ 

·-

.,. 

4,017 

$ 4,017 

Specia.l · _ Special· 
Service · · · Service 

Area -·Area 
_- Nos: 32-39 _ No. 42 ----'----

r.-, 

$ $ 

-

•(6,368) 

- (6,368) 

-677,067 _6,268' 

$ 677~067 $' (100) 

$ 

_$ 

Service 
Area­

No. 149 

110,705 

(12,498) 

--98,207/· 

187,500 
9,188 

_196,688-

(98,481) 

--

: (9a.481) 

96;646 

(1 ,835)-

-93-

$ 

$ 

Crystal· 
. Heights 

oebt 
Service 

140,868 
- 86,659 
.21.904 

- I 

252.4:31) 

- 5,890 

85,000-
45,774 

.. 86,659 .-

SEECQM 
Debt 

Service 

$ 290,158 
'-

2007 
SpeCial­

-Service­

Area­
No._44 

_- $ -__ 

(1 ;622)_:....-

29015aJ'·.-. -- (1,622) 

190,000 
100,158 

,.....-------'----

27,940 

. 50,000 
19,110 

-223,323 -. - . 290,158 
...,...----....:....______;..... 

-97,050 

... --.--

. 29,108 (98,672) 

·:..:. ' , .. 

29,108 (98,672) --

41,534 - -

70;642 $ ,. $ -{98,672) -----



- . - - City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . .-
-Combining Statement ~f Revenues, Expenditures and Changes -

in Fund Balances (Deficits) .:: Nonmajor. Debt Service Funds (Gont'd) 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

2006. 2007 

- - . 
·Revenues:-

Charges for services 
Property taxes 
Investment income (loss) 

Total revenues 

E;x:penditures: 
- Current - general government __ 
_ Debt service: 

Principal· 
- Interest and fees 

·capital outlay_ · . 

Total expenditures _ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
- over (under) ~xpenditures before 

other financing uses 

Other financing uses_.:: transfers out 

·. Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning of the year 

Fund balances, end of the: year --

See independent auditor's report. 

$ 

-94-

Spe~ial._ 
Service 

Area­
No.45 

151,454 -
-5,792 

---305,908 

-305,908 

-(148,662) 

(148,662) 

162,770 

Sp~cial --­
-- S~niice ---

$-

-Area 
No.46 

10,399 

-10,399/ 

141,753 

141,753 

(131 ;354) 

(131,354) 

271;200 

14,1-08 $ - 139,846 



City of:Crystal Lake, lllin~is. · 
Special Senlice Area No.149 Fund 

Schedule ofReven(J~s. Expendituni? and Changes in 
' Fund Bal~nce (Deficit)',;. Budget and Actu<d 

· For the Year.Ended ApriF30, 2008 . · 

Revenues: · 
_ ··Chargesfor $ervices .. ·assessments 

Investment income·(Joss) 

Totaf-revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principql 
· . Interest · 

Total expenditures 
' . " 

N~tchange in fund balance 

Fuhd balance, .beginning of the yeat 
. .. 

Fund deficit, end of the year 

See independent auditor's report. -

Original 
and Fillal 
Budget 

-$:. 160,000 
-2,000 

162,000 ·. 

187,500 
9,188 

196,688. 

$.- . (34,688) 

-95-. 

Actual 

$ 110;705 
{12,498) 

. 98,207 

187,50_0--
9,188 

196,688 

(98,481) 

96,646 

$ (1,S3s)-

$ 

$ 

Variance 
Positive.· 

(Negative) . ·. · 

(49,295) .. 
(14,498) 

.·. (63,793) 



.City of Crystal Lake; Illinois 
Ciystal Heights Debt Service Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures ~nd Changes in 
Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actual· 
For theY ear Ended April 30, 2008 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Property taxes 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures:' · 
Current- general government :.. 

' . contractual serviceS 
D~bt servic;e: 

Principal 
Interest 

. ·Miscellaneous 

.Total expenditures 

Net change inJund balance 

Fund balanee, begirining of the.year 

···Fund. balance! end of the year ·· .. 

See. independent auditor's report. 

Original 
and Final· 
Budget 

$. 135;400 

135.400 

90,000 
43;224 

133,224. 

2,176 

. -96-

$ 

$ 

Actual· 

140,8€)8 
86,659. 
24,904. 

252,431 

·. 5,890 

. 85,000 
45,774 

•8&,659 

223,323 

. 29,108 

41,534 

70,642. ·.·· 

$ 

$ 

Variance 
·Positive 

(Negative) 

5,468 
86,659 
24,904 

117,031 

(5,890) 

5,000 
(2,550) 

(86,659) · .. 

. (90,099) 

. 26,932 



City of Crystal Lake; Illinois 
.. SEE COM Debt Service Fund ·· 

Schedule _of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
· Fund Balance - Budget .arid Actual 

- For the Year Ended April 30, 2008-

Original 
and_~inal 
Budget Actual.· 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative)· 

Revenues ~ charges tor services - $- 289,458 $ - . 290,158~ .·. $ 700. 
--=-----....:.... 

·- Expenditures: 
. . Debt service: 

··Principal 
_ Interest -

Total expenditures 

Net charige~in- fund balance 

Fund balance, JJ.eginning oftt!e year 
.. ,· . 

_Fund balance,.end of the year 

See ind~pendent auditor's report. -

$ 

- 1.95,000 -
94,458 

'289,458 

--97-

$ 

.190,000 
10(),158 

290,158 

$ 

5,000_-· 
-(5,700) ·. 

(700) 
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- -·. City ~f Crystal Lak~, Illinois -

:· 2006 Spedal Setvice Area .No. 45 Debt Service_ Fund 
Schedu-le of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balance -~ Budget and Actual·. 
·.For the Year Ended April 3·0,·2008·_ 

Revehues~ 
Property taxes_ · 
Investment ineome 

Expenditur~s- debt service -jnterest · 

Net·change in fllnd balanc~ · 

Fund balance; beginnin-g of the year 
' ·,' . - -

Fuf1d bal~mce; e_lld of the year 

.-. :, 

. '_,. 

See independent auditor's report. 

$ 

$ 

Original 
and_Final 
Budget Actual 

151;454. $ 151,454 
. 5,792-

·-· 151;454 157,246 

302,908 305,908 

(151 ,454) (148,662) 

162,77() 

$ : 14;108 

-98-

Variance_ 
:Positive 

_· (Negative) 

.. 

. $ .. 

-- 5,792 

5,792 

. (3,000) 

$ 2,792 

L-----------------------------···-·-- ---··· 



Assets 
. ' ,:- : ' 

City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Combining:Balan-ce Slleet -

Nonmajor Capital Projects f:=unds 
April 30, 2008 .-

-Total 

- Special 

S~?rvice 

-Area No. 
-- 42"• SEE COM 

-Cash and investments -· _ $ 4,558,650 $ -- 98,639 . $ 
Receivables - property taxes 

- Total assets 

- . 
Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable . _ 
Recapture fees p-ayable-_-­
Due to oth~r funds -
Deferred revenue - property taxes 

"f:otalliabilities 

Fund balance~ (deficits) - unreserved 
- -

Total liabilities· and fund- balances 

(cont'd) 

_ __ See independent auditor's report -

. -99-

892,612 --

-$ 5,451,262 - $ . 98,639 $ -------

$ 98,857- $ $ 
"174,125 68,160 

"1-,848,082 
892,612 

3,013,676 68;160 

2,437,586 .. 30,479 

$ 5,451,262 $ 98,639" $ ------



·crystal 
Special T.J.F: Heights 

Assessment Bond .. Utility 
No.14o· c6ristructi6n · · Extension · 

$· 115,556 $ 2,804,017 .. $ 't?72,072 
. -. 718,328 

.. 

. $ 115,556 $3 522 345. 
' t. . 

$ 672,072-

$ $ 55,769 $ .. 

·105,965 

718,328 .• 

105,965 .774~097. 

'-
9,591-. 2,748,248. .. 672,072 

$ '115,556 . 
.. 

$3,522,345 . ·. $ 672,072 

Main ·Virginia 
Street : ·' Street 
T.LF. .Corridor 

. Construction TJ.F. 

$ 38,376 $ 837 
43,833 130,451 

$ 82,209 $ ·.· ' 131,288 . 

$· 954 $ 16,879 

-· . -
43,833 ·. 130,451 

44,787 147,330 

37,422. {16,042). . 

$ 82,209 $ .131,288 

-100- .. · 

$· 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Vulcan 
·Lakes 

T.I.F; 
.·District 

1,814,024. 

1,814,024 

(1,814,024) 
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./.'.' 

-CitY of Crystal lake, Uli~ois 
_ Combining Balance- sheet­

Nonmajor Capital PrqjeCts Funds (cont:d) 
April 30, 2008 

SSA44. 
Tracy Trail 

Constn.iction 

SSA45. 
'r:lryA Mawr. _ 

Project 

Assets 

- Cash and- investments $ 327,563 $ '475,421 -, 
-Receivables --property taxes 

,._ 

Totai assets $ -327,563 $ 475,421 

Liabii'itles and Fund_Balances 

Liabiiitie:?: -

SSA46 -
Ryland Main 
Construction- -

$ 26,169 

$- 26,169 -

Accounts payable $ 25,255 $' ~-- $ 
-Recapture fees payable . 
Due to cith~r funds -
Deferred revenue - property taxes 

· Total liabilities -

Fund balances (deficits)- unreser.ied. 

Total_liabilities .:md f!Jnd balances 

',·., '. 

See independent auditor's report. 

- 101 ..: 

--
34,058 

59,313 

268,250 475,421 26,169 

$ 327;563 - -$ ' 475;421 $ __ ..._ __ 26,169 



. . . . : . City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . .· .. · .· 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

-.Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits) R Non major ca·pital Projects Funds 
For the Year Ended April30, 2008 

_Revenues: 
Property taxes , 
rnvestment income (loss) 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

l::xpenditures: · 
Current - contractual services 
Capital outlay: 

Land 
. Public works improvements 

.. Total expenditures 
. - . 

Excess (deficiency)· of revenues· 
over (under) expenditures -
before other-financing s<)urces. 

· Oth~r financing sources: 
Bond::; issued- -

.Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 

Net chang~s in fund balances 

. Fund balances (deficits). beginning of the y~ar·· 

Fund balances (deficits), er:td ofthe year 

·{cont'd) 

See independent auditor's ·report. 

.. $ 

- $ 

- 102:.. ' 

·Special 
Ser-Vice 

Area No. 
Tot~ll _42 

8'40,532 _$ $ 
159,961 
·233,298 

1,233,791 . . 

. 590,049 

. 1 800 000 .. 
'- ' 

(199,596 

.-

:· 3,589,645 --

_, 

(2,355,854) 

·. 750,000 
6,413 . 6,368/ 

756,413 -6,368 

. (1 ,599,441) 6;368 

4,037,027 . 24,111 

2,437,586 $ 30,479 $ 

SEE COM 

-. 

. 45 

45 

45 

. (45) 

-



" •" 

cry-stal Main Virginia .Vulcan 
· Spedal T.lF. Heights· Street .. Street Lakes· 

Assessment Bond Utility· T.I.F. Corridor T.I.F. 
No. 145 ·Construction Extension_.· Construction . T.I.F. bistdcf 

$ $ 694,590 $ $ 29;767 $ 98,782 $ 17,393 
_:119_,430 878 . 2,748" 6 

-·. 17,651 65.,5-12. 

.. 814 020/ 48296} 161o42J 17,399·;·· 
. ' . ' . . ' 

.. : . 

318;15_6 10;874 183,084 .31,423 

- 1,800,000 
'.73;079" 

.. 
10 874 183,684 

· . . 391,235-. 1,831,423 ' . 

-422,785_ 37,422 {16,042) (1 ,814,024) 

-

- ,. 

- .. -

422,785 -37,422 {16,042) . {1,814,024) 

9,591" ,2,325,463 672,07-2 . 

$ 9,591,. '$2,748,248 . · $:672,072 $ 37,422. $ {16,042) $ {1 ,814,024) 

-103:. 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes _ 

. in Fund Balances {Deficits) ;. Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds (cant' d) 
- Forthe YearEnded April 30, 2008 · - -

SSA44 SSA45 SSA46 
Tracy Trail B,ryn Mawr Ryland Main 

Construction _ Project Construction 

. Revenues: 
" 

Property taxes $ $ $ 
_ Investment income (loss) 9/ 1,72 ' 35,174-- (4) 

Miscellaneous - 150,135/ 

Total revenues 151,864/ _.35,174~ (4)/ 

Expenditures: _ 
Current - contractual services •46,.172- - 340-

--··Capital outlay: 
Land 
Public works improvements 587,442 539,075 -

Total expenditures 633,614 ' -- 539,075 340 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
·over (under)_expenditures . 
_before otherfinandng sou'rces (481,750) (503,901)' (344) 

Other financing sources: 
Bonds issued 750,000/ 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources 750,000 

. _ Net c'hanges in fund balances 268,250 (503,901) (344) 
--

Fund balances (deficits), beginning of the year - 979,322-. 26,513 

Fund balances (deficit), end of the year. $ 268,250 $ 475,421 $ 26;169 

See independent auditor's report. 

''- .-104-



<·:. 

.. City of Crystal :Lake, l,llinois 
·T1FBond·ConstruC:tion Fund 

Sched(de pf_R~veriu~s, Expenditures a·nci Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual .. 
For the Year Endt;!d April 30, 2008 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
lnter~st 

:Total revenues 

. Expenditures: 
·-· Current :- tontractual services 
. Capital outlay- public works 

· Total expenditures 

'Net chang¢. in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning of the year 

Fund balance, end of the year: -

See indepen,dent auditor's report. -

Origiqal 
anq Final 
··Budget·· 

'$ .· 645,000-
55,912 

700,912 

251,060· 
2;686',37(3' 

2;Q37,376 

$ (2,236,464) 

-105-

$ 

$-

Actual 

694,590· 
119,430 

814,020 

--
.--

318,156-" 
73',079 

-39t,235" 

422,785 

--

2,325,463 

,2,748;248 

Variance 
·.·.·Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 49,590 
'. -· ... 

63,518 

.113,_108 

- {67, 156) 
2,613,297 

2,546,141 

$ ·2,659,249 



1-'' 

City of Crystal Lake, lll~nois 
Main Street nF Construction_ Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
.. Fund Balance ~-Budget and ActlJal · 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Revenues: 
Property taxes -
Interest -

· Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

~xpenditures - current -
eontractual services 

. -

--Revenues over (under) 
expenditures before other 
financing sourc:es __ 

-Other fin~nc~ng sources -- transfers in 

· Net change in fund balance 

. -

Fund balance, beginning of the-year 

Fund balance, end of the year 

See independent auditor's report. 

Original 
and Final 
Budget 

$ 15,000 $ 

15,000 
--

700,000 

(685,000) 

670,000 

$ - (15,000).-

.$ 

-106-

Actual-

29,767 
878 

17,651 

48_,296. 

. 10,874. 

37.422 ·-

37,422 

37,422 

Variance 
Positive 

"-(Negative) 

•$ 14;767 
878 

17,651 

_.-. 33,296 

'689,126 

722,422--

-(670,000) 

. 52,422 



Revenues:_ 
· :-property taxes _ 

Interest 
Miscellaneous·· 

City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
· · Virginia Street Corridor TIFConstructifin Fund 

Schedule _of ~EWEmues, Expenditi.rres,and Changes iri 
·fund-Balance .(Deficit)~ Budget andActual 

For the Year EndedApril30; 2008 

Original 
and Final 
Budget 

$ ... · 52,000 

Actual. 

$ 98,782 . $ 
. 2,748,· 

... 65,512 
. ., ' -

Varia rice 
Positive 

-(Negative).· 

46,782 
2;748 

65,512 

Total revenues . 52,000 . . . 167,0:42 115,042 

. Expenditures - current -
·. _contractu~! ser-Vices _ 

' I ·_ ",' 

· - Net change in fund balan¢e -· 

Fund balance, beginning of the year 

· Fund deficit,. end of the year 

See independent.auditor's report. 

104,000 183,084 • - (79,084)-

- $ - .· (52,000) . (1S~042) - $ - 35,958 

$ (16_,042) 

- 107--



City of Crystal Lake, lllino.is 
Wate.Works and Sewerage Fund 

Sc"hedul·e of Revenues - Budget and Actual_ 
· For the Year Ended April 30,.2008 

Operating revenues: 
-charges for services: 

Water sales-· · 
· . Sewer sales 

. - -

Penalties 
. Water meter fees 

- --· -. Watedap fees 
-Connection fees 

: Miscellaneous 

-_·-Total operating revenues 

Nonoperating revenue: 
·Gain on sale of capital-assets 
Investment income 
-Rental income 

' ' - ' - \ 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Total revenues 

-See independent auditor's report. 

Orif1inal 
and Final -
Budge~ 

$ 3;040,991 
3;102,437 

145,000 
70,000 

1,500. 
1,443,000 

45,006 

7,847,928 

._- 232 035-
- - . 
'-123,675 

'355 710-'. 

$ 8,203,638 

-108-

...__--------------~-------------

·Actual 

$ 2,908,765--
. 2,964,593 / 

-- 338,262.....-
63;551..-/' 

. •24 642.-/ 
', J . 

924,614/ 
9,586/ 

7,234,013 -

1,598-
222720/ 

. ' , ' 

164,481/ 

388,799 .-

- . $ 7;622,812 

·Variance 
·Positive 

· -__ (Negative) 

$ ·(132,226) 
(137,844) 
193,262 
(6,44~) 

23,142 
-_ (518,386) 

(35,414) 

(613,915) 

1,598 
(9,315) 

40,806 

33,089-

$ (580,826) 



· · ·City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Wah~IWorks and Sewerage Fund 

Schedule of Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation . 
and Nonoperating Expe11ses a Budget and Actual 

· For the YearEnded April.30, 2008 

Operating expenses; excluding depreciation: 
Administration: - . - -

Personal serVices · 
Contractu.al services -_-

' ' ' 

Supplies·_ arid materials 

TQtal administration 

Operations: _ 
- -Water department: 

·. Personarservices . 
Contractual services 
Supplies and materials. 

. Capital outlay 

Total water department 

· Wastewater treafmeht department: 
Personal services -

_ Contractual .services 
_- Supplie~ and materials 

. Total wastewater treatment · 
-. d~partrm;nt 

_Sewer and lifts department; 
Personal s¢r'Vices· • 

· Contractual services 
--Supplies and materials -
Capital __ outlay -

. . ' - .· 

Totai· sew~r and lift~ department 

Total operations-

Total operating expenses, 
· - -excluding depreciation 

Nonopei'C)ting expenses - interest 

_ See•_ indepen~ent auditor's report. 

$ 

Original. 
and Final 
Bu.dget 

424,666 
-144,800 
'45,654 

615,120 

1,282,969 
707,464 
469;525 

1,014.~66 

_3,474,324 

- 933,043 
827,054 
430,402 ' 

2,190;499 

295,935 
112,912 
69,625 

'45,850. 

' 524,322 

-6,189,145 

' . $ '6,804,265 ' 

$ 550,844: 

-109-

_ Actucll. · 

$ '322,S25 
124,728 

19 221'-J, 

466,474 

1,374,952 
694,238' 
582,514 
' 54,925' 

_2~706,629 

955,723 
797,7'84. 
393,847 

2,147,354 

'303;426 
'133~436 
- 70,214' 

31107 
' ' ' 

'538,183 

5,392,166 

.$ 5~858,640 

'' 

$ '•518,080 

Variance 
Positive 

· (Negati~e) · 

$ 102,141 
'20,072 
26;433 

148,646 

-'. (91 ,983) 
13,226 

' (-112;989) 
959,441 

' ' 

767,695 

(22,680) 
29;270 
36,555 

43,145 

(7,491) 
'{20,524) 

' (589) 
.·'14,743-

(13,861) 

796,979-

$ 945,625 

$- 32,764 



Cio/ of Cry~tal Lake, Illinois 
·- .· ~Pens_ion Trust .Funds 

·Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets 
.-April ~o. 2008 · 

·Assets 

cash 
._Investments: _ 

Illinois Funds .Investment Pool 
Money market accounts 

• U.S. governmentand agency securities . 
Insurance contracts 
Mutual funds - bonds 
Mutual funds- stocks 

Interest receivable 

·. · Total assets 

. Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabil_ities: _ 
Accounts payable 

. Due to other f1..1nds 

Total liabilities 

. . . 
Net assets - restri~ted for pension benefits 
·- . ~ . -

Total liabilities and net assets 

. . 

. See independent auditor's report. 

'., .' 

$ 

Police 
Pension 

8,64.5' 

94,245 
419,825 

1Q,687 ,300. 

1,054,369 
8,699,769 

115,276 . 

-- $ 21,079,429 . 

·, 

$ 177 
97 

274 

'21 ,079,155 

$ 21,079,429 ' 

"110-

Firefighters' 
· .-Pension 

$ 210,053 

121,769 
155,644-

7,092,608 
- 1,199,293 . 

-
3,859,745 

. 82,837 

$ 12,721,949 

$ 3,772,._ 
98 

3,870 

12,718,079 . 

$12,72:1,949 

~------------------------------------------------------------------------------ -

·.Total 

$ ... 218 698 
. ' 

216,014 
575,469 

17,779,908 
1,199,293 
1,054,369 

'12,559,514 
. 198,113 

$ 33,801,378 

$ 3,949 
195 

4,144 

33,797,234 

. $ 33,801 ,378 



· Additions: 

City ()f Crystal_ Lake, Illinois -
· Pen$ion TrusfFunds 

_ Combining Statement ~of Changes 'in .Plan Net Assets -
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

.. ~-

Police_ 
Pension-· 

Firefighters' 
Pension _ To~al 

· Contributions: 
· Employer-• 

·--__ Members. 
$ .1;111;64oJ. $ 81.7,496~/ $ 1,929,136 

- 404,840-J .. 337,701 J 742,541 

.. ·. Jnvestmenfi.hcome: · _ _ 

-Net appreCiation (depreciation) 
in fairvalue-ofinvestments · 

_Interest incom~ 
Less in-vestment expen~es 

_Total additions 

. . 
Deductions: 

Pension benefits ahp refunds 
Administrative·· expenses 

• ' J • 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

TotaLnet assets, be_ginning of the yea·r. 
. -

Total net assets, end of the year . 

See independent auditor's report. 

1,516,480. 

{507;797)./ 
1,026,721:./ 

(83,498).· 

·435,426 

-1,951,906 

1,230,880. 
8,617. 

1,239,497 

712,409-

20,366,746 . 

. $-21,079,155 

1·,155,197 . 2,671,677 

.-· 2o;o35J • {487,762) 
.773,242J . 1,799,963 

(42,693) (126~191) 

750,584 1,186,010 .· 

1,905,781 . 3,857,687 

.. 

367,870 . 1,598~750-
6,398 . 15,015 .. 

374,268 1,613,765 

. 1,531~513 . 2,243,922 -

11,186-,566 . . 31;553,312 - . . 

$ 12~718,079 _- $ 33,797,234 . 



City of Crystal Lake~ Illinois. 
Police Pension Fund · 

· Schedule of Ch~nges in Plan 
·.. : Net Assets ~·Budget and Actu.al, 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

E:rr1ployer 
Members 

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fair value. 
of investments · 

Interest income 
Less investment ~xpenses ·· 

·Total .additions 

Deductions: 
Pension benefits and-refunds 
Administrative expenses· 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets .• beginning of the year 

Total net assets, end of the year 

·. · · See independent auditor's report. 

Original· 
·and Final 

Budget 

$ .1,112,411 
416,000 

1,528,411 

962,3oa 
(82,000) 

-880,308 . 

2,408,719 . 

972,024 
10,350 

982,374 

$ 1,426,345 

. ~ 112--

Actual 

$ 1,111,640 
404,840 

'1,516,480 

(507,797) 
1. 026 72-1 

J ' . . 

(83,498) 

435,426 

.. 
1,951,906 

-.1.230,880 
.8,617 

1,239,497·· 

712,409 

- 20,366,7 46 . 

$ 21,079,155 

. Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ ·. (771) 
(11 '160) 

(11 ,931) 

. (507,797) 
64,413 
(1 ,498) 

(444,882) . 

(456,813) 

. (258;856), 
1,733 

·(257,123) 

$ (713,936) 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois · 
·. Firefighters· Pension Fund­
Schedule of Changes in_ Plan 

Net-_Assets- BudgetandActuar 
For the- Year Ended April 30~- 7008 . 

_ Additions_: 
Contributions: _ 

Ernploy.er · 
.Members· 

- Investment income: __ -· _ _ _ 
···Net ap-preciation (depreciation) -
- :in fc:~irvalue of investm_ents 

Jriterest in6orrie 
Less investment expenses · 

. -

-T otai additions 

Deductions: 
- Pension benefits and refunds-
-Administrative expenses 

- -

Total deductions 

Total netassets, begii1niilg of the year 

Total n-et assets, end of the year -• 

. See independent auditor's report. 

$ 

$ 

Original_ 
and Final· 
Budget 

817,949 
331,500-

1,149,449 

538,749 
(34,000} .. 

504,749 

1,654,19'8 

306;636 
5,000 ·. 

-31.1,636 

_1,342,562 

- - 113-

Actuai 

·$ 817~496 

337;701 

1,1.55,197 -

"20,035 
773;242 
(42,693) 

750,584 

1,905,781-

"367,870 
6,398 

·. 374,268 

1,531,513 -

11,186,566 

- $ -12,718,079 

$ 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) . 

(453). 
"6,201 

5,748 

20,035 
234,493 

(8,693) 

245,835_-

251,583 

(61,234) 
(1,398) 

(62,632) 

1_88,951 



City of Crystal Lak~, Illinois . -
Agency Fund - Special Assessment Fund 

CombiniiJg Statement ofChanges in Assets and Liabilities­
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 -

Balance 
May 1. 2007 Additions · Deductions 

· Assets 

Cash $ 102,030 . $ 26,537 •' $ 
·Other receivables 626 (5) . 

$' 102,656 $ 26,537 . $ (5) 

. liabilities 

Recapture fees payable $ (110,397) $ 26,532 $ 
Due to other funds . 213,053 

$ 102,656 $ 26,532 $ 

See independ~nt auditor's ·report .. 

-114-

Balance· 
April 30, 2008 

$ 128~567 . 
.. 621 .. 

$ 1-29,188. 

$ (83,865) 
. 213,053 

$ 129,188 



City of Crystal Lake; Illinois . 
·Capital Assets Used il1 the Operation of Governmental Funds 

·· · · Schedul.e of General Fixed A~ sets ~'By Source 
. · April 30, 2008 

·Assets . 

. Governmental funds capital assets: 
Land· .· 

· :· -Construction in progress - · 
.· Buildings·and improvements . 

· Machinery, equiprnentand vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total governmental funds cap.i!3l assets 

• • . ' I ' 
. . ' . . . . . . 

: Investment in Governmental Funds 
Capital Assets By Source 

. General Funcl 
Special Revenue Funds 
Developer Contributions 

. . ' . . 

. _ Totai governmental funds capital assets -
"I I ' 

-~- ' 

See independent- auditor's report . . 

- 115-

" 

$ 102,443;500 
_1.,309,579 

.· . -24,309;702 
. ,· ' . 

. -··9,905,383. 
40,422,909 

$ 178,391,073. 

$. 132,731,364 
.. 8,804,045 

36;855,664 

. $ 178,391,073. 



· . . · City of Crystal Lake,,lllinois . ·. · · . · 
··Capital Asset~ Us.ed inthe.Operatio·n of Governmental Funds 

· · Schedule By Func~ion an~ Activity 
April 30, 2008 

. Construction Buildings and 
·Land in Progress .Improvements 

General government $ . 1 02,412,500 $ 470,929 $ 10;382,183 
. Pu~lic safety· 229,151 13,538,645 

· ·Highways and streets- 31,000 . 609,499 .. 388,874 

$ 1 02,443,500 . '$ . 1,3.09,579 $ - 24,309,702 

See independent auditor's rep~rt. 

. . '"116-



·Machinery, 
Equipm~nt and 

Vehicles. 

. ' . 

$. 791,470 .. $ 
.• 5,091,621" 

.• 4,022,292 . 

Infrastructure Total 

. 747,977 . $'. 114,805,059 
-. ' _18,859,417 

39,674,932 44,726,597. 

$ 9,905,383 $ 40;422,909 .· $ 178;391,073 

. -117.; 



.. . .City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes By Function·and Activity 
· _Apri130~ 2008 · · 

·.Balance Deletions and · 
May 1, 2001 Additions · Transfers· 

.. 
' 

General government .$ .. 112,893,420 $ 1,972,836 $ 61,197 
. Public safety· 18,438,816 673,327 252,726. 
Highways and streets 43;348,824 .·1,520;464 142,691 

$ 174,681,060· $ 4,166,627 $ 456,614 

. See .independent auditor's report. 

- 118-
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. Balance . 
April 30; _2008 

$ 114,805,059 
- 18,85~.417 

44.726,597' 

$ 178,391,073 ·. 

- -, 
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City (jf Crystal Lake, llli,nois . 
.Oiscrete.ly Presented Component On:it -Crystal Lake Public Library 
Statement of Net Assets and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

April 30, 2008 

Current: 
Cash and investments 
Property tax receivable 
Due from other funds 
·Due from City_ . 

Assets_ 

Capital assets,· net of accumulated depreciation 
., 

Total· assets. 

Liabilities 

Current: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll . . 
Unearned propertY tax revenue · · 
Due to other funds 
Notes payable 

- ·Compensated absences 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent: 
Notes payable . _ ·. 
Compensated abse11ces payable 

· Total nonc~rrent liabilities 

Total iiabilities 

. Fund balance/net a~sets: 
Reserved for -: working cash 

. Unreserved 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt · 
Res.tricted for working cash · 
Unrestricted · 

· Total fund balance/net assets 

Total liabilities and fund balance/net assets 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Governmental Funds 
Gift and General 

Operating ·Memorial 

$ 1,955,222 - $ 60,718 
3,760,533 

1,589 -129 
-· 

$5,717,344- ' $ . 60,847 

$ 63,345 . $ 
... 58,000 

3,76(),533 
-872 

3,882,750 

. $. 4.?2.347-

$ 452,347 

$ 

1,279-

1,279 

3,882,750 . - 1 ;279 

1,834,594 60,847 451-,068 

1-;834,594 60,847 451,068 

$ 5;717,344- . $ 60,847 $ 452,347-



'' -· 

Nonmajor · 
-Funds 

$ 162,012 

912_. 

$' 162,924-

$ 

-244 

'244 

-

'244 

52;189 
110,491 

-

162~680 -

· ____ $ 162,924 

·Total 

$ 2,630",299_ 
3,760,533 

- 1,718 
912 

$ .6~393,462 

$ -63,345' 
'."58,000 

3,760,533 
2,395 

-

-3,884,273 

-

3,884,273 

52,189_ 
.. 

2,457;'000 

2,509,189 

-$ ·: 6,393,462 

. Statement 
Adjustments · . of Net Assets 

$ .$ 2,630,299 
3,760,533 

{1 ,718) 
{677) 235 

6,664,006- 6,664,006 
--

$ 6;661,611 $ 13,055,073 

$ $ 63,345 
- 58,000 

3,760,533 
{2,395) ' 

125,000 125,000_ 
66,672 66,672 

189,277 . 4,073,550 

- 500,000 500,000 
473,051 473,051· 

973,051 973,051 

' 1.162,328 ' 5,046,601_ 

{52,189) 
{2,457,000) -
6,039,006 6,039,006 

52,189 : 52,189 
1,917,277 1,917,277 

5,499;283 8,008,472 

$ 6,661,611 $ 13,055,073 

- 121 -
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. ___ _ City of Crystal Lake, Illinois- . _ . _ 
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Func{s 

to the.Statement-of Net Assets 
Dis.cretely Presented Component Unit -Gry~tallake Pubiic Librar)' _.-

. · . · April 30, 2008 _ . · · · 

Totalfund balan~e -'governmental funds 

',. -

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net, as::;ets ·are different because: 

. . . 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial · 
. ·resources' ~nd; therefore, are nof reported in th~ funds. 

_ . s~nie liabilities reported. in the Statement of Net Assets do not 

require the use ofcurrent financiaLresowces and~ therefore, are 
. not reported as liabilities in- governmental funds. Ttles~ liabilities 

consist of: 
Notes payable 

· Compensated -absences payable 

Net assets of governmental activities 

. ·. See independent auditor's report. 
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$' -2;509,189 

6,664,006 

{625,000) . 
(539,723) 

'$ 8,008,472 



City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
_ -Discretely Presented Component-Unit- Crysfal Lake Publ_ic Library 

Combining Statement of Revenues,' Expenditures and Changes in 
· . Fund Balances -All Governmental Funds -

For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 -

Governmental Funds 
General_ Gift and-

-0Eerating - ·Memorial Ames 

' --

Expenditures/expenses~ culture and recreation $3,757;992 $ 79;217 $ 1,566 

Program .r~yenues: . 
Fines and fees 146,314-
Intergovernmental __ 50,171 --

_ Total program ~evenues 196,485 

Net program expenditures/expenses (3,561 ,507) (79,217) {1 ,566) 

General_ revenues: 
Property taxe!i 3,552,304 
Investment income 124,305 2,471 14,092 
Capital facilities. .. 
Mjscellaneous 40,002 35,877-

Total general- revenues -3,716,611 38,348- 14,092 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Promissory note issued 
Transfers in -- 2,774 60,65~. 

Transfers out - {60,657) 

Total other finan~ing sources (uset>) (57,883) 60,657 

Net changes in fund balances 97,2f1 {40,869) 73,183 
• • • • • • I •" 

Fund balances, beginning of the year - 1,737,373 101,716 377,885 

Fund balances, end cif the year $1,834,594 $ 60,847 $ 451,068 

See independent auditor's report. 



Non major statement 
Funds Total Adjustments of Activities , 

$ 26,168 $ 3,864,943 $ -(441 ,767) $ 3,423,176-

•. 146,314 -146,314-------

50,171 - 50,171:..--- '·:... 

- 196,485 196,485 

(26~ 168) (3,668,458) 44:1~767 (3,226,691) ·_ 

3,552,304 -- 3,552,304 ~-

7,049 - 147,917 147,917/ 

'12,162 -
-_ 

... 12;162. 12,162-'--"' 
75,879_:_ ·-

75,879 

' 19,211 _. 3,788;262 3,788,262 

63,431 -- 63,431 __ 

{2,774,) (63,431) • -{63,431) 

(2,774) ---
.., 

{9,731)- 119,804 441,767 561,571 

172,411 2,389,385 - 5,057,516 7,446,901 -

$ 162,680 $- 2,509,189 $ -5,499,283 $ -8,008,472 

..: 124-



_ - - - _ City of Crystal 'Lake, Illinois _ _ _ 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

Discretely Presented Component Unit -Crystal Lake Public Library 
For the Year Ended April30, 2008 

Amounts reportedfor governmental activities in the statement of activities­
are different because: 

Net change h fund balances - total governmental fund_s 
- '.- ' .. ·' ·_ ' 

Gove~nmental funds report ~apital outlays as expenditures. -However, 

in the statement of activities, the costs of these assets are allocated 
over .their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 

_ expense; This is the amount by which capital additions ($290,965) 
exceeds depreciation ($188,536) in the currentp~riod._ 

__ The repayment of principal of long-term debt is reported as an 
expenditure iil governmental funds but as a reduction of the 
liability outstanding in the statement of activities. 

Some expenses r~port~d in the Statement of Activities do not[equire -• 
ttie use-of current financial resources and, therefore,-are _not reported 

I ' • • 

-as expenditures in governmental funds. These activities consist of: 
__ Increase in compensated absences payable 

' ' ' ,' _- .· -

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See ind~pendent auditor's report 

- 1_25-

$- -119,804 

_1o2A29 

-375,000 

(35,662)-

$ -561,571 

-' 



·City of Crystaf Lake, Illinois 
Discretely Pres~nted.,Compbnent Uhit ~Gtystallake Public Library 

Combining Balance Sheet- Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
·April 30, 20.08 

Capital 
Project Permanent 
Fund Fund 

Public Library 
Repair and Working 

.-.\ 

ToJal. Construction Cash 
.Assets ) . 

Cash and .investments $ 162,012' $ 109 823 . , . . ·. $ 52,189 
Due from other funds 912. 912 

$ 162,924 $ . 1.10,735 $ 52,189 

.··uabi.lities and·Fun_d Balances 

Liabilities --due to other funds $ 244 $ '244 $ 

· ·Fund balances:· 
Reser'Ved for working cash 52;,189 . ·- 52,189 
Unreserved 110A9t .. 110,491 

Total fund balances 162,680 110,491 52,189 

· Totalliabilitiesand 
fund balances · $ 162,9~4 '· $ 110,735 ,$ 52,189 

- See independent ~uditor's report. 

- 126-

L...__ ___________________ , 



_ City of Crysta_l Lake, ·Illinois 
__ -Discretely Pre_s.ented Component Unit - Crysta} Lake Public Library 

. . Co_mbining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and --
Changes in Fund-Balances- Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 -

-Revenues: 
Interest -
Capital facilities 

· Total reyenues 

· Expenditures- current-- culture and 
recreation 

-Excess (defi,ciency) of revenues 
over (under)-expenqitures 

- befor:e other financing uses 

Other financing uses- transfers out . - ., ' . . 

Net changes infund-balances 

_ Fund balances, beginning ofthe year -· 

Fund balances, end of the year . . 

See independent auditor's report. . - -

$ 

$ 
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Total 

7,049 
12,162 

19,21t/' 

_-- 26,168_ 

(6,957) 

(2,774) 

(9,731). 

172,411 

162,680 

_Capital 
Project 
Fund 

Public Library 
Repair and 
Construction 

$ 4,860 -
12,162 

17,022 

26,168 

--
(9, 146) 

-(9, 146) 

119,637 

$ - ·110,491_ 

Permanent 
Fund-

$ 

$ 

Working 
--Cash 

2,-189 

2,189-

2,-189 

(2,774) 

(585) 

52,774 -- -

52,189--



_ _ _ _ - City of Cry~tal Lake _ _ __ 
Crystal Lake Public Library Cornpor~ent Unit -General Operating- Fund' 

- ·· s·chedule of Revenues, Expenditures and-Changes in 
·- .Fund Balance ':' Budget and Actual . 
- For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

-Revenues: -
Property taxes 
Other taxes 

_.Intergovernmental 
-_Fines and forfeitures 

· lnteresf -· - -- -

-Miscell~meous 

Total revenu~s 

Expenditures: 
-. Culture and recreation:_ 

. Personal services-- -
Contractual services -
Supplies and materiais 

Debt service: · 
- Principal 

-Interest _ 
- Capital outlay:-

Building 
Operating equipment -

_ Departrr~ental· equipment 

-Total expenditures -

_ Exces~ (deficiency) of 
-revenues over (under) -
expenditures before other 
financing sources_ (uses) 

-{cont'd) 

$ 

-Original 
-Budget _ 

4,028;q07-
500 -_ 

_118,000 
- 185~000 

100,000 
:Z,100 

4,434,207~ 

2,585,000 
~,495,707 

_ 113;5oo 

-2,794;000 

6,988,207 

(2,554,000) 

-128-

--Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 4,028,607 $3,552,304 
sao 

- 118,000- 50,171 
185,000 .146,314 

- 100,000 124,305 -
2,100. 40,002 

"4,43{207 ---__ 3,913,096 

2,585,000 
' . .·. 2,09~,632-
1,495,707- 428,883 

113,500 _-- 541,850 

375,000-
42,139 

239,865-
-30,f)23 

2,794,000' 

- 6,988,207 3,757,992 

(2,554,000)' 155,104 
-'---...-........:.--

Variance 
- With Fi!lal 

Budget 
Positive 

-(Negative) 

-$ (476,303) 
(500) 

(67,829) 
(38,686) 
-24,305 
37,902 

(521,111) 

485,368 
1,066,824 
(428,'350) 

- -

(375;000) 
(42,139) 

(2.39,865) 
(30,623) 

. "2, 794,000 --

3,230,215 

_· -2,709,104 



• - . · - City of Crystal Lake . · · - . · 
Cry~tal Lake Public Libra.Y Component Unit -General Operating -Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditur~s and Changes in 
· Fund Balance- Budget and Actual (cont'd-)-

FC>r the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive Original 

_Budget _ 
Final 

Budget Actual · ·(Negative) 

·.Other financing sources (uses): 
. Promissory note issued -
· Transfers in 
Transfers- out 

' ~. ' 

_Total other financing 
·sources (uses) 

Net charige in fund 
balance 

Fund balance,-'beginr:ting -of the year_ 

.. Fund balance;'·end of the year 

See independent auditor's report 

$ 500;000 
4,000 

. 504,000 

$ (2,050,000) 

-129;.. 

'$ 500,000 $ $ (500,000) 
4,000 . _2,774 (1,226) 

(60,657) (60,657) 

504,000 (57,883) (561,883) 

$. (2,050,000) 97,221 $ 2,147,221 

1,737,373 . 

$ 1,834,594 . 



. ·. City of Crystal L~ke 
·Crystal Lake· Public Library Component Unit ~Gift and Memorial Fund. 
· · Schedule of Revenu·es, Expenditures and Changes in -. 

Fund Balance ~ Budget arid ACtual 
For the Year .Ended April 30, 2'008 

·Revenues: 
Interest . . ' 

Miscellaneous· 

·.TC)tat·revenues 

Expenditures: 
Culture and recreation: 

Origine~l 
Budget. 

150,000 

150;000 

. . . \ 

Contractual. services 93;000 
. Supplies and materials .6,000 

· Capita.l outlay -departmental equipment _ _.__11_7-=-,3_0_0_ 

· Tot;:~l expenditures 216,300 

$ 

Final 
. Budget 

15o.Ooo· 

150,000 ·.' 

'93 000 
· 6:oc!o 

102,500' 

201,500 

. Net-change in fund balance $ (66,300) $ (5~ ,500)-

• I • ' 

Fund ~alance, beginning of the year. 

Fund balance, end of th~ year 

See independent auditor's report. 

-130-

$ 

V(iriance 
With Final. 

B·udget 
· Positive-

Actual . · (Negative) 

2;47.1 ,, 
35,877 

38,34V 

896. 
-16,906 

'' ·. 61;355 

79,217' 

$ '' 2,471 
(114,123) 

(111,652J 

92,104 
(10,966) 
41,145 

122,283 

. (40,869) $. ' 10,631 ' 

. 101;716 

_$ 60,847 



. City of Crystal Lake 
Crystal Lake Public- Library Component Unit~ Ames _Fund 

Sch_edule o~ Revenues, Expenditu~es and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Af::tual 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2008 

Original 
Budget 

··Final 
Budget Actual · 

Variance. 
With Final 

Budget· 
Positive. 

(Negative) 

· Revenues - interest $ - ., $ 14,092 $ 14,092 

Expenditures: 
-Culture and recreation - contractual 

services-· 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

R.evenues over expenditures 
before other financing uses 

. Other financing uses -
transfers in 

. Net change in fund balance 
. ' . -_ - ,··· ·. ' -

Fund balance, beginning ofthe year 

Fund balan_ce,. end -of the year 

• I •• ,, 

See independent auditor's report. 

·15,200-
_14,800 

30,000 

(30,000)-

15,200 
14,800 

30,000 

(30,000) 

$ . (30,000) $ . (30,000~ 

- 1.31 '". 

1,566 

1,566 

12,526 

60,657 

13,634. 
14,800 

28,434 

- 42,526 

60,657 

73,183 $ . 103,183 . 

377,885 

. '$ 451,068 



City ofCrystai_Lake 
Crystal Lake Public LibrarY Component Unit~ Public Library 

Repair and Construction F~nd (Capital Project Fund) · 
·· Schedule .of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balance ~Budget and J\ctual · · 
··. For the Year Ended.April30; 2008 

- Revenues: 
,Interest 
Capital· facilities 
Rental, income 

' . 
Total revenues. 

Expenditures - culture_ and 
recreation - contraCtual services 

- ;. '-- . 

!\let change in fund·. b;:llance 

- Fund b.alance,· beginning of the year · 

. · Fund _balance, end ofthe year 

·.See independent auditor's' report. 

Original 
Budget 

$ 
30,000 
18;000 

48,000 

148,000 

$ (100,000}· 

-132-
...__ _________________ , __ ·----

Final 
Budget.· 

$ 
30,000 . 
_18,000 

48,000 

. 148,'000 

$ (100,000) 

Actual 

$ 4,8~0 
12,162 

17,022 

26~168 

{9,146) 

119,637 

s~ 11_0,491 

Variance 
With Final-

Budget 
-·Positive 
(Negative) 

$ '4,860 
·. (17,838) 
{18,000) 

'(30,978) 

121,832 

_$ 90,854 

·. __ , 



City of Crystal Lake 
·Crystal Lake_ Public ·.library Component Unit.· Working Cash Fund 

· ··· (Permanent Fund) 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures ·and Chang_es in 

Fund Balance· Budget and·Actual 
· For-the Year Ended April 30,2008 

. ' 

Origin(ll Final. 
f3udget Budget Actual 

Revenues - interest 

Other financing uses - transfers out 

Net change in fund ba_lance. 

Fund ba_lance, beginniog of the year_ 

Fund balance, end of the year 

.·See independent au.ditor's·report. 

$ $ 

(4,000) 

$ (4,000) ·$ 

-133-

2,000 $. 2,189 

(4;000) (2,774} 

{2,000) . . (585)_ 

52,774 

$ 52,189 

Variance 
With Final 

Budget _ 
Positive_ 

(Negative) 

$ 189 

.. 1.226 

.. · $ 1,415 



STATI,STICAL'SECTION , 
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This'·partof the City of Crystal ~ake's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information .as a context for understandingwhat the information in the financial statements, note 
·disclosures,. and r~quired supplementary information says . about the Gity~s overall financial 
health. 

Contents · Page : 

· Financial Trends 134 - 145 . 
These schedules contain trend information· tohelp the reader understand 
how the City's financial performance and wellbei_ng have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity - .. . .. . . . 146 ~ 152 
-These' schedule's contain information to help the reader assess the .. CitY's 
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. · · 

Debt CapacitY . . . 153 - 156 
. .··.-These .. schedules . present information . to help : ttie reader assess -the · 

· affordability of the City's current' levels of 'outstanding debt and the City's 
ab!lity to .issue additional debt in the future. · ··· · 

-Demogra-phic and E~onomic lnfqrmation. .· .· . 157 --:. 158 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the-. 

· reader understand the environment' within which.the City's financial activities 
.take place, and to help_ make comparisons over- time and_ with other 
governments, · · · · · ·· · 

· Operating lnfc>rrraatioti . 159 ~ 164 
. • These schedules t:ontain -information about. the City's operations . and 

resources, to help the· reader understand how the. City's financial- infqrmation ·. 
relates to the services the City- provides and the activities it performs. 

":··. 



. , City of Crystal Lake, Illinois · 
· .. Net Assets By Component 

Last Five Fiscal Years 
· (Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Governmental activities: 
lnv~ted kl capital assets, net of related debt 
R~stricted 
Unrestricted · 

Total .governmental activities 

Business-type aCtivities: . . 
·Jnvestedjn capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

·Total busilles!;-type activiti_es 

Primary government . . _ . 
lnvested·in eapital assets, net of related debt. 
Restricted 
~Unrestricted 

Total. pri,mary goveJnment, 

' . ,·, . -

-Source:' Audited financial statements. 

2008 

.. · $-139,028,556 

. 806,392 
36,364,037 

$ 176,198,985 

-$ 52,187,382 
5,178,987 

$ 57,366,369 

$ 191-~215,938 
8.06,392 

41,543;024 

$'233,565,354. 

. Fiscal Year · 
2007 

$136;717,137 
··.1.262,S16 

35;403,503-

$173,383,156 

$ 52,830,550 
.. :5,185,544 

$ ., 58,016',094 

$ 189,547,687 
'1,262,516 

40,589,047 

$ 231,399,250 

·The City-implemented GASB Statement _34 in the fiscal yea~ ended April 301 2004. 

See independent auditor's r~=mort 
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--

Ended April 3D,. 
2006 ... 2005 . 2004. 

' ; ' 

$ 143,20.7,897. ... $ 140,891,791 $141,765,596 
. 11,179,914 _· • 9,971,068 11,373,072 
20,671,704.. . 19,817,257- - - -17,387,044 

... $ 175,059,515 --. $170;680,116 

$ 46,823;209 
5,221",328 

·$ 52;044,537. 

. - $-190,031,106 
11 '179;914 . 

. 25,893,032 

$ 227,1o4.os2 -

·-

$ 46,395,885 
-6,655,756 

$ 53,051;641 

$ 187,287,676 . 
9,971,068 

26,473;o13 

$223,731,757 _-

--

$170,525,712 

$ -50,6lS,313c 
3,756,297 

$ -54,431,61o 

$ 1.92,440;909 
--11,373,072 -
21,143,341 

$ 224,957,322 -

·-:- 135-



· . City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Change in Net Assets, , 
Last Five Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis ofAccounting) 

Expenses: 
Governmental activities: . 

General and administrative 
Public safety 
Highways a·nd streets 
Culture and recreation 

· Interest on long-tenn debt · 

Total governmental activities expenses 

. ' "' ' 

Business-type activities - .. · 
waterworks and sewerage 

Total bt..isiness·type activities expenses 

· Total expenses 

Program revenues: .. 
Governmental: activities: 

Charges for services: 
·: General and administr~tive 

Public safety 
.. ···Highways and streets 

Operating grants arid contributions: 
Highways and streets 

· Other activities 

·Total governmental activities 
program revenuf;!s 

Business-type· aCtivities: 
Charges for services - waterworks and sewerage 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total business·type activities. 
. program revenues 

$ 

·$ 

•$ 

Fiscal Year 
2008 2007 

8,124,338 $ . 7;410,758 
17,132,484. . 17,180,813 
7,250,516 ' 6,100,201 

299;181 ·. 251,717 
. 741,136 646,250. 

33,547,655 . ·. 31,589,739 

8,905,333 .8.605,569 

8,905,333 8,605,569 

42,452;98.8 -$ 40,195,308 

. 1,344,296 $ 1,41f3,677 
2,565,009 . 2,966,666 

220,544 220,926 

·1,150,479 '1,213,479 
169;777 211,743 

5,450;105 6,031,491 

7,388;909 7,718,993 

7,388;909. . 7,718,993 . 

Total program revenues $ 12,839,014 $ 13,750,484. 

(cant' d) 

. - 136-



Ended Agnt3o, · 
''2006 -"2005 -,.2004 

- ;"; . 

$ 6,840,977- .. ct ...... 7,949,231 $ -5,362,775 
14,010,932 13,592~326 1-10:644,238: 

6,641,246 -- 6 833 764 "5.7.i7,522 
,. J '• ' 

258,943 232,296 _-__ 193,990 _, 

560,334 540,505' 523,231 

-28,312,432 -29-,148,122 23;501 ;756 

7,812,546- 7,774,757 6,827,295 

7,812,546 7,774,757 . 6,827;295 . 
·" 

$ 36,124,978 $ 36,922,879 $ 30:329,051 

$- 1J67,822 _$ 1,12.9,894 $ _809,658 
2,606,313- 2,614,5_86 2,337,109 

851,872 465~495" 515,358 

1;170,289 --1,183,739 _1,331,~28 

• 41,468 148,564 162,36~ -

.. 

.. 6,437,764 - .. 5,542,278 5,156,316 
'. 

6,611:,350 5,720,245 ,5,560,988 
. 497,038 

6,611,350 6,187,283 _5,560,988 

$. 13,049,114 $ 11,729,561 $ 10,717,304 -

-137-



City of Crystal_ Lake, -Illinois 
Change in Net Assets ( cont'd) 

Last Five Fiscal Years 
- (Accrual Basis of Accounting) -

Net(expense) revenu~: · 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total- net .(expense) revenue- __ _ 

General revenues and other changes in net assets: 
Governmental activities: 

TaKes: 
Property 

· -: Replacement 
State sales 
Auto rental_ -
Income 
Franchise fees - cable 
T elecommuriications 
Hotel' 

-'Interest _ 
Miscellaneous. 
Transfers -__ 

Total governmental activities 

_ Business-type activities: 
- Investment earnings -

Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

·Total business-type activities 

Total 

Change hi net assets: 
Governmental activities 

- -_ Business..:typeactivities 

Total change in net assets 

·-

2008 

$ (28,097,550) 
(1,516,424) 

$ (29,613,974) 

- 1 0,364,823 
171,107 

11,471,956 
- 26,807 

"3;748,680 
433,134 

2,022,417 
241,208 

1,794,262 
1,271,781 
. (632,796) 

30,913,379 

-- _· .222,720 
.11,183 

-632,796 

866,699 

$ 31,780,078 

$ 2,815,829 
(649;725) 

.$ '2,166,104 

Fiscal Year 
2007 

$ (25,558,248) 
(886,576) 

-$ (26,444,824) 

9,187,482 
_162,583 

11,680,593 
26,677 

- 3,431,732 
403,659 

1,911,745 
157,955 

1,902,500 
1,633;322 

(6,616,359) 

23,881,889 

215 259 . -

26,515"" 
6;6,16,359 -

-6,858,133 -

$. 30,740,022 

$ (1,676,359) 
5,971,557 

$ 4,295,198 

Source: Audited financial statements. -· - - _ , _ -
The City_ implemented GASB _statement 34 in the fiscal year-ended April30, 2004~ _ --

- - -

See independent auditor's report._ 
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' . Ended Apri130, 
2006 

- - $ (2l,87 4,668) 
. (1',201, 196) 

2005 

. $ (23,605,844) 
(1,587;474) 

2004 

$ (18,345;440) 
- - (1 ,266,307) • 

$ (23,075,864)- .. $ (25, 193,318) . $ (19,611-;747) 

7,875,234 
146,870-

11,,296,923 
'26,619 

-.. 2,806,403 
364 175 .. -

·-. 2,097,640 

$ 

$_ 

-$ 

'152,288 . 
-"1,375,656 -

- 112,259_ 

26,254,067 

. 194 092 . 'I i 

-194,092 

. 26,448,159--

4,379,399 
-. (1 ,007, 104) 

--3 372295 
. ' 1- .. 

- -6;485,545 . 
. 104,106 -

_10,98£1,717 .. 
.28,203 

-·.2,888,037 
346,628 -

1,925,304 
.141,625 
520,949 
330,1_34 

. 23,760,248 

'83,887 
- 1"23,61.8 

207,505 

$. 23,~67,753 

$ 154,404 
(1,379,969). 

-$ (1 ,225,565) 

5,827,463 
95,384 

_- _1:1;017,810 -.­
- 29,971 

2;292,329 
661-,232 

142,765-
- 382,345 

653,642 

21,102,941 

33,114 

33,-114 
' 

-.$ 21,'136,055 

$' 2,757,501 
(1,233,1~3) 

$ 1,524;~08 

..; 139-
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· General Fund: 
Reserved. 
Unreserved 

·. City of Crystal Lake, Illinois . 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 2007 

$ . . 677,431 $ . 611 ,212 
21~744,305 . . ··19,788,129 

2006 

$ -_340,272 
V7,260,266 

-2005 

$ -525,307 
15,419,241 

Total General Fund 

All.other governmenta_l fund~: -
Reserved: 

$22,421,736 $20,399,341 -$17,600,538 $15,944,548 

Debt service 
-Other 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special Revenue Funds 

- Capital ProjecfFunds '_ 

-Total all other 
governmental funds _ 

' . 

" Source: Audited financial statements . 

. See independent auditor's report. 

$ 806,392 
434,922 

16,396,284 . 
-2,437,541 

$ 20,075,139 

-140-

$ 1,262,516 $ 2,695,631 $ 2,226,871 
398,899 '- 213,839 

15,231,274 12;924,791 12,082,978 
. 4,037,027 951,259 2,224,513 

$20,929,716 $ 16,785,520 $ 16,534,362 



- - '\ 

FiscaiYear Ended _April 30, 
2004 . . '2003 .. 2002. 2001 2000 1999. 

$ 2,517',619 . '. $10,277;714 .. $10,220,000 . $ 8,420,000' $ '6 530 000 , ' $ '8,060,000 
t2;701,026 . 11,592·,553 .-· 12,851,531 ' .12,314;598 . 11,144;605 '' 6;315,976 ·. 

. $.15,218,645' -$21,870,267 $23,071,531 $20;734,598 .$17,674,605 . $14,375,976 

$ '2,092,935 $ 4,131,105 $ •3;856,774 $ 3,630,075 $·· 3,30-7,519: $ 3,301,957 
1,977,500_ 700,000 1,040,000 .. 927;500 781,500. 

._ 

1~.77~,954 9,897,314 .· .8,719,679 ' 7 ,66.5,413 6;796,90:3 • 6,904,416' . ' 

22,852 " {86,804) 3,206,714 4,679,309 4,919_,947 5,215,718 

' -. ": .. 

$15,872,241 $14,641,615 ... $16,823,167 $16,902,297 ' $ 15,805,869 . $15,4:22,091 
... ,· 
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City of Crystal Lake, IIHnois 
·changes h1 Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Tem Fiscal Years 
-(Modified Accrual Basis ofAccounting) 

Revenues: ·-
Chames for services _ 
Licenses and permits -
Intergovernmental· 

_.Fines and forfeitures 
Property taxes 

· Other taxes 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Qurrent: 

General government 
·- _Public _safety. - -
Highways cmd _streets 
CulttJre and recreation 

- -Capital outlay 
Debt service: -

Principal 
-Interest and fees 

'-total expenditures 

Re.venues over (under) 
- expenditures before 
-other financing 
sources (uses) 

-. - .· ·, - ' ', 
•• • • ., J 'I . 

_ Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in -- · 

. Transfers out _ 
-• General obligation-bonds . 

SSA bonds issued 

Total other financing 
sourc_es (uses) 

2008 

$ 3,160,600 
-- 860,051 

1,263,765 
501,930 

1 0,364,823 : 
18,171,800' 

1,794,262 
971,674 

' 37,088,905 

7,356,181 
16,060,090 

5,390,757 
-- 299,181 

5,991,202 

830,000-
743,676 

36,671;087 

417,818 

-234,945 
(234,945) 

750,000 

750,000 

1,167~818 - __ N_et changes in fund balances $ __ ..;.__......;..,_ 

- - - ' 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures_ -

Source: Audited financial statements. 

S~e independent auditor's report .. · 

4.84% 

.; 142-

2007 

$ '4,288;313 
1,210,611 
1,652,364 

663;780 
7,709,144 

17_,754,485 
1,902,500 
1,289,021 

36,470,218 

6,696,934' 
15,186,465 

5,035;142 
' 251;717 

'9,192,871 

1,040,000 
559;090 -

- 37,962,219 

{1,492,001) 

3,856,920, 
(3,856,920) 

8,435,000 

8,435,000 

$ 6,942,999 

4.51~o 

- 2006 

$ 2,916,576 
632,204 

1,211,7?7 
432,197 

7,875,234 
_-16,890,918 

1,204;294 
1,357;289 

-32,520,469 

6,826,624 
14,032,258 
.4;335,035 

258,943 ' 
3,938,417 

805,000 
417,044 

- 30,613,321 

1,907,148 

430,906 
(430,906) 

$ 1,907,146 

4.49% 

;wos 

$ 2,383,57t - -
549,297 

1,146,559 _-
677,795 

6;485,545 
16,423,621 -

520,949 
1,171,489 

29,358,826-

-6 003 834 
12:161:148 

4,203,136 
232,296 

6,83'1,460 

-2;700,000 
-493,547 

- 32,625;421 

(3,266,595) 

2,382,798-
(2,382,798) 
4,654,619 

- -

4,654,619 

$ 1,388,024 

9.79% 



·:~: 

.. · . ·. Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 
2004 2003 

$ 2,.312,564 
585,454 

1,494,191 
7f34,107 

5,827,463 
14,239,491 

. · 382,345 

. 713,058 

2002. 

$ 
. 693-,846 

. 2;781;023 
-2,030,966. 

. - 5,247,633 
13 056 092 

'- r . ·-

1A66,420 
.. -. 739,945 

2001 - ··2000 

$· ·. ·. $ 
. 583,363 . 

-2.411,210. 
2,100,f389 
4,675,773 

1_2,713,937 
. 2,191,631 . 

822-;920~ 

-664,921 
2;070,738 
2--137103 

- · .· 4:537:860 
12,288,232 

1,403;766 
884,190 

26,318,673 25;568;061 ·· 26,015,925 ·.· ~5;499,723. · 23,986,a1o-
., '- ., 

s;oo1,352 5,314,595 4,881.7'00 4,398,890 -3,950,772 
··. 1,1,145,716 -. - .. 10,000,453. 9;290,4(30 .8;528,566 7,?27,997 

4,254,149-- ; .3,565;612 3,390,587' 
.. 

·3,506,561 -. 2 999 199 
r ·, ' ., 

193,990 
9,770,958 8;294,127 -4,371,243 2,940,64_5- 3,561,731. 

i,o5s;ooo . _1,125,000 1,105,000 1,170,000 1,080,000 
' 562AS3 651,090 719,132 - 798,640 ··884-,7.04 

. 31,983,618 28,950,877 23,7-58~ 122'. . 21,343,302 ;,. 20,304,403. · . 

-.I 

(5,664,945) (3,382,816) . '2,257,803 4,156,421 3,682,407 

.-
8,471,360. 3,177,495 38;921. 49,489 

.. 10,605 
(8,471 ,360) (3,177,495) (38,921) (49,489}. (10;605) 

-
-

,.. 

$ .{5,664,945) $ (3,382;816) $ 2,257,803 . $ 4,156,421 $_ 3,682,407 

5.06% 6.13% 7.68% 9.22% 9.68% 

--,: 
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... -~--: 

.1'999 

_$ -
604,766 

2,093,458 
.. - 1 850 965 - -

· . t I 

. -

4,694,020 -
10,615,158 
·1,330,868 

663;9_07 

21,853,142 

. 3.950 609 '· . 
. . 7,125,126 
2,734;~02 

-
2,811,828 

844;000·· 
682,518. 

18,148,983 -
' 

3,704,-159 

5,900,000 

--
5,900,000 

$ 9,604,159 

8.41% 



Property tax 
Replacement tax 
State sales tax 

Auto rental tax 
Income 

_- Franchise fees - cable 

·Telecommunications 
Hotel 
Local use 

City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Ge~eral Governmental lax Revenues By Source · 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
. (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2008 
' 

2007 2006 

$ 9,101,110. $ 7,709,144 $ 7,875,234 
'171_,107 142,124. 146,870 

10,915,086 11,168,510 11,296,923 

. 26,807 26,677 26,619 
3,748;680 - 3,431,732 2,806,403 
. 433134. 

. . ' . 
403,659 . .. 364,175 

2,022,417 1,911~745-- '2,097,640 
241,208 .. 1-57,955 . 152,288 
556,870 512,083 

$ . 27,216,419 $ 25,463,629 ' ' $ 2~;766,152. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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2005 

$ 6,485,545 
-104,107 

10,989,717 

.28,203 
2;888;037 

346,628 

1,925,304 
141,625 

$22;909, 166 



- Fiscal Year Ended April -30, ·-
' 2004 2003 . _.2002. 2001 2000 1999. 

$ 5,827,463 
95384 

$ 5,254,389 .· .$. 5,247,633 .... $. 4,675,773 ... _· -$ 4,537,860 - $ 4,694,020 
-- 104,047 ' 68,809 86;223 ' . 90,611 . 89,342 

' 1., . ' 

11,017,810 10,680:299 . 10,356,373 . 9,875;681- ··. 9,630,876 8,0_8-5,390 

. 29,971 
2,292,3~9 

661,232 

. 24.968 
2,471,/:WO. 

- ' - 26,866 
2,604,044. 

29;-133 
. 2,722,900 ' 

142,765 69,316 - . 

23,343 
2,543,402 

·, .. ' 

21,'051 -
2,419,375 .· 

$20,066-;954 $ :te .. 6o3,919 · $ 18,3o3,-725 $17,3B9,71o-. $ 16,e26.o9z:- $15,3o9,178 
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_ _ . . City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Levy Years 

Levy Farm· ·. Residential Commer:cial Industrial 
Year _ ·Proeert~ Proeert~ - Proeert~ · · Proeert~ -

.. 

1998 $ 581,26~ $ 503,76~ ,043 $ 147,260,307 $ 40,004,592 

1999 . 603,327 523,672,422 . . . 180,024,071 41,045,633 

2000 852,010 .. 552,017,420 195,324,625 49,068,381. 

.· 2001. 954,894 592,824,200 206,610,201 52,456,150 

. 2002 969,882 650;506, 995 . 222,449,942 . 56,792,526 

. -
2003 1,271,412 718,258,807 . 235,377,010 62,570,088 

. • f . 

2004 1,285,944 77 4,44 7,288- 251,783,539 _·. 66;396,250 

2005 - 1,262,723 860.46.9,362 266,195,135. 71,554,658 

2006 . -·1,273,866 924,013,250 292,876,714 74,250,686 

20.0J 1,301,267 998,31 3,489 303,911,661 .. 78,105,425 

Source: McHenry County Cierk. ·. 

Note: Property in the City is assessed using a multiplier of 33.3%, therefore the 
estimated actual taxable values are equal to assessed values times 3, 
Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value. 

. ' ~ : 

· See independent auditor's report. -
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. Mineral 
Proeert~ 

$223,244 

150,7:67 

133,_168 

138,095 

146,022 

156,244 

·_.167,884 

684,018 

537,447 

553,_367 



Total. Estimate9. Percentage 
·Total Taxable·. Direct _·Actual of 

Rail . -Assessed Tax Taxable Assessed·· 
. • Pro~ert~ .. Value Rate Value· Value 

. ,. 

$ 354,576-. $ 692,185,024 , $ OA413 -$ 2,076,555,072 33.33% 
--

345,369 745,841,589 OA327 2,237 ~524, 767 33,33% 

357,830 797 '753,434 , 0.4338 2;393,2.60 ,302 33:33% 

371,714 853,355,254 ' 0.43.96 2,560,065, 762 33,33% 
.. 

'· 435;480 931,300,847 - 0.4609 2; 793,902;541 33.33% 

467;883 , 1,018,t01 ~444 - 0.5180 3 054 304 332 ' . t J t 33.33% 

522,927' 1,0-94,603,832 0:6049 3,283,81 1;496 33.33% 
.. .. 

493,168- 1,200,659,064 .. 0.6499 3,601,977;192 33.33% 

509,716 1 ,293,461.,679 0.6962 -3,880,385,037 '33.33% 

779,271 , 1 ,382,964.480 _,_ - 0.7056 4,148,893~440 . 33.33% 
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__ _ _ _ City of Crystal Lake, Illinois , _ 
-· Prop~rtyTaxRates -~Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Last Ten Levy Years 

2()07 . 2006 2005 2004. 

Operating: 
' 

-CitY of Crystal Lake $0,7056 $0.6962 .$ o:_6499 $0.6049 
Crystal Lake Public Library 0.2773 0.2773. 0.277.3. 0.2Tl3 

· McHenry Courity 0.6871 0.7060 0.7278 0.7346 
· District 47 2.5283 2.8974 . 2.6392 2.7506 

District ·155 1.6992 2.1707 . 1.7781 1.8490 

Debt Service: 
McHenry (:;ounty 
District 47 -o.1313- 0.1330 0~ 1355 0.1421 
District 155 · 0.1221' 0:1230 0.1242 0.1290 

.. Other. __ _ ...... 1.2152 0.9678 .. 1.0095 . 

Total Tax Rate: 
} ' ' -

City of Crystal Lake 0.7056 .-· 0.6962 0.6499 0.6049 
··Crystal- Lake Public Library ·. 0.2773 0.2773 0:2773 0.2773 
McHe11ry County 0.6871 0.7060 0.7278 . 0.7346 
District 47 2.6596 . 3.0304. 2.7747 . 2.8927 

.. 

District 155 1'~8213 2.2937 . 1~9023 .1.9780_ 
Other .. - 0.9379 0.9678 1.0095 

Other: 
College District 0.2634 -0.2741 0.2922 0~3033 

·McHenry County Conservation 0.1738 0.1425 . 0.1490 0.1580 
· Crystal Lake Park Pi~trict 0.3431 . 0.3536 . 0.3562'' -o.3714 
·Township (Aigon~uili} 0.0510. 0.0523 0.0531. 0.0551 
-Road ana Bridge (Algonquin) · 0.1124 0.1154 0.1173 0.1217 

Source: McHenry County Clerk. 

See independent auditor's report. 

-148-

2003 

$ 0.5180 
0.2773 
0.7040 
2;8467 
1.9115 

0.0113 
0.1466 
0.1318' 

1.1712 

0.5180 
0.2773 
0.7-153 
2:9933 
2.0433 
1.1712 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 



2002 2001 -2000 1999 ~1998 
'· 

... 

. $ 0.4609_ ' $0.4:396 . . $0.4338- '$ 0.4327 $ OA413 
0~21{3 - 0.2795' 0.2798 

., 

02826 -0.2861 
o:6240 0.5601. 0.5610 _0.5593 "0.5587 

. 2.9721 . 3.0897 . 3.0919 3.1083 2.7279 
1.999T .2.0798" 2.0837 2.0825 2.0743 _· 

0.0485 0.0779 0.0830 0.0889-- 0.0944-
·0.1543 0.1596 ·().16~6 0.1369 ,. 0.2197 
'0.0898 0.0935 0.0947 0.09_57_ 0.0953 

{1984 1.2424 1.2069" ... 1.2218 -1.2126 

0.4609 0.4396 - ' . . 0.4338 0.4327. 0.4413. 
... '' ·.~ .. 

;6,2773 0.2795 0.2798 0.2826 0.2861 
0.6725: 0.6380. 0.6440 0.6482 0.~53-1 
3.1264 3.2493 3.2555' 3.2452 2:94:76" 

. 2-~0895 2.1.733 2.1784 2.1782 2.1696 
1.1984 . 1.2424 -·1;2069 1.2218 1.2126 . 

N/A N/A -- N/A- N/A ·NtA 
N/A N/A N/A _N/A 'N/A 
N/A N/A N/A -· N/A N/A_ 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
N/A N/A~ N/A NIA N/A 
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·Taxpayer 

Bradley Oper: Ltd. Partnership 
Crystal Point LLC 
Skyrldge Partners II LLC 
Cobalt Industrial 
Sunrise Residential Housing 
Tyco Healthcare Group _ 
inlandRyan .LLC . 

Darlington Court Apartments 
Inland Showplace LLC .. 

, Rose SPE 1 LP 
The Fountains · 

- Crystal Lake Commons 
SageProducts, Inc. 
Holiday Inn 

· Home Depot _ 
Knaack Manufacturing •. 
Crystal Lake Plaza 
Crystal Court 

. . 

- . 
City of Crystill _Lake, Illinois 

Principal Property_ Tax Payers 
Current Year and N-ine Years Ago-

Type of Business 

Shopping 
·Shopping··. _ 
Residential Housing 

·· Industrial 
Residential Housing 

. Manufacturing 
Shopping.­
Residential Housing 
Theaterlshoppi~g 
Shopping ·- -

· Residential Housing 
· Shopping _ . 

__ Medical Products 
Hotel 
Shoppirig 
1ooiBoxes 

·.Shopping 
·Shopping 

· Source: M_cHenry County Treasurer. 

Notes: Every effort has been made to seek out and report the largest_taxpayers. However, many 
· of the taxpayers listed contain multiple parcels, ·and it is possible that some parcels and 

their valuations have been overlooked. · - · 

See independent auditor's report ... _ 
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2007 1998 
PerGent.of Percent of 

Total District·- Total.District _ 
'taxable -Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assess~d Assessed. Assessed 
·.Value Rank Value Value Rank Value 

' 

$.10,220,486 1 0.26%.: $ .,. 
10,o81,66Q 2 ·o.24% 4,054,114 4 0.59% 
9-,59~;828 - -3 0~23% 

·.: 

6,730~624 -4 0.16% 
-6;416,847 .·' 5. .0.15% 
·.5,951,217 6 0.14o/~ 

: -5,812,783 . 7 0.14% 
. 4,754,776 .· 8 0.11% '-
4~749,683· 9 

.. 

0.11% 2,666,400 9' .. ·0.39% 
- .4,331,431 10 0~10% 

. '6,098,497 t 0.88% 
. 5,674,286:-' 2 0.82% 

.. 
~ -- 4,204,126 . 3 0.61% .. 3,521,361 5 0;51'% 

.. - 3,477,740 - 6 0.50% 
2,911.,820 7 0.42% .. - 2,859,068 .8 0.41% 

·, 2,383;21 0 . 10 0.34% 

$ 68,645,335 1.64% $ 37,850,622 .. • 5.47%_ 
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,..---------------·- ---·-

Fiscal Year Taxes Extended 

- -

City of Crystal Lake_, Illinois· 
Property Tax _Extensions and Collections 

. Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected .Within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections · Total Collections to Date 

Ended - for the- -Pereentage: In Subsequent - Percentage 
April30, Fiscal Year Amount of Extension .- Years Amount of Extension 

1999~ $. 2,986,573 $2,965,095 - 99.28 '% $ $2,965,095 -- __ 99.28 

2000 3,024,185 -- 2,895,375. 95.74 2,89_5,375 

2001 - 3,196,659 - 2,895,821 90.59 2,895,821 --

2002 3,430,267- 3,426,325 99;89 3,426,325 
--

'2003 3,732,587 3,696,263 99.03' 3,696,263 

" 

2004 4,27:4.118 4,269,999 99.90 4,269,999 
,_. -~ 

2005 c 5,253,795 -5,253,393 -99.99 - 5,253;393 -

2006 '6,596,164 _6,580,448 99.76 6,580,448 

2007- 7,774,180 7,749,837 99.69 -- 7,749,837 

2008 ' 8,8~1,222 8,882,151. - 99.90 8,882,151 --

Note: Above schedule excludes taxes levied and cOllected on special service areas~ There is a tw~ 
year difference between the levy year and the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. - . - . . 

Source:. McHenry Count)' Clerk. 

See independent auditor's report.-
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95.74 

90.59 

99.89 

99.03 

99.90 

99.99-

99.76 

99.69 

99.90 

% 



·-

·City of C..Ystal Lake, IHinois 
Ratios uf Outstanding Debt - By Type 

· 'Last Ten Fiscal Ye~rs 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

Fiscal Year ·General General Total 

Ende_d _ Oblig~ti6n -ssA Obligation Notes ·- -Primary 

APiil30; , .. Bonds: -Bonds Bonds Payable - Government 

1999 $ 11,745.000 .$.· - $ 3,220,000 $ $ .14,965,000 -· 

2000 10,6651000 3,_100,000 13,765,000 

- 2001' 9,49!;i,OOO 2,970,-000 8,468,848 20,933,848 

.2002 8,390,000- · ... 2,835,000 . 14,340,525 25,565;525 

200_3_ 
. -

-7,265,000 2,690,000 15,840,000 25,775,000 

--

2004 - . 5,425,000 785,000 - 2,535,000 15:246,931 - 2~;991,931 

2005 --9 645000 
.I' J_ 540,000 5,575,000 14,5~33;022 30;343,022 

9~100,000 -
.- -. 

13,902,122_ 28,567,122 2006 289,000 . 5,285,000 

.-

2007 . -8,340,000 . 8,435,000 - - 4,975,000 13,865,098 35,6_15,098 

--
: 

2008 7,560,000 9,135,000 4,660,000 12,47 4,889- 33,829,889 

• I • • • • ' • ' ' -

-· Note: Population data can be found at page 157, Demographic and Economic Stati!?tics. 

N/A- Information not available . 

. See independent audit~r:s report. 
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Percentage 

of Personal Per 

Income Capita 

NIA $ 427.57 

1~44 % 377.12 

2.11 550.89 

2.49' 650.52 

2.46 644.38_-

224 . 585.17 

2.83 740.07 

2.75 717.98 .. 

3.42 895.12-. 

3.25 850.25 



-Fiscai-Y ear 
.. Ended 

·· April30, 

1999 $ 

2000 

.. 2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2001 

2008' 

·· City of Crystal Lake~ Illinois 
. R~tios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

·Last Te-n-Fiscal Years 

. Debt Percentage of 
General Payable From Net Estimated Actual 

Obligation _ ~·Enterprise Bonded- Taxable Value 
Debt Revenues Debt of Property 

11,175,000 $ 3,220,000 $ -'7,955,000 1.15 % - . 

-. 

'10,560;000 3,100,000 7,460,000 ·, 1.00 

9,885,000' 2,970,000. 6,915,000 -0.87 

·- 9,270,000 2,835,000 6,435,000 .. 0.75 

8,625,000 2,690,000 5,935,000 0.64 

7;960,000 2,535,000 5,425;000 0.53 

15,220,000 5,575,000 9,645,000 _- 0.88 

14,385,000 '5,285,000 9,100,000 0]6 

13,315,000 4,975,000' 8,340,000 •' 0.64 

't2,220,000 4,660,000 7,560,000 ·0.55 

Note: Population data can be found at page 157, -Demographic and Economic Statjstic5 . 

$ 

. Property value dat~ ean be found at pages 146 and 147, Assessed Value and Actual 
Value of Taxable Property. · .· - - · 

See independent ~uditor's report. 
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Per 
C~pita · 

22729 

204.38 

181,97 

163.74 

148.38 

132.32 

235.24 

228.71 

209.61. 

190.01 



City. of Crystal Lake, .Illinois . . 
Direct and Overlap-ping-Governmental Activities Deb.t 

April 30, 2008 

·· Governmental Unit 

City of Crystal Lake _ 
Special Service Areas 

Overlapping: 
School District Number 47 
School District Number 155 
College District Number 528 · · 

-McH~nry County .. 
. McHenry County Conservation. District 
- Crystal· Lake Park District 

Total others 

· Total overlapping det>t 
! - - • 

Outstanding 
Debt 

$ 7,560,000 
,,9,135,000 

16;695,000 

31 3'70 000 .. 
- ' ' •' ,' 

12,415;094 

153,340,000 ' 
7;363,625 

$ 204,488,719 

. Applicable toth~ City· 
·Percent · · Amount 

100.00 -% .. $ . 7:560,000 
100.00 9, 135,000. 

. ' 63.11 

4'1.26' 
1(~,66. 

' 16.08. 
14J33 

. 75.85 

-·· 16,695,000 . 

'19,797,607 
. '. 

· q,122A68 

'22,43:3,642 . 
5;585,310 

. ' 52 939027 . , ,_ 

s· 69,634,027 

Source:' -McHenry County Clerk, local government entity or romprehensive annual report. 
·. . . ' -~ - ~ 

- -_ Note: Overlapping-governmeritsare those that coincide, atleast in-pt;~rt, with the geographic 
bounda-ries of the City.· The percentage ofoverlapping debt applicable is estimated · 
using taxable assessed property values. Applicable per~ntages were estfmated by - . 
-detE,;miinlng.the·portion of the City's taxable assessed value that is within the bound~ries 
ofthe government and dividing it by the government's total taxable assessed value. . 

·-..: 

·· See independent auditor's report. . 
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City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
Legal Debt Margin Information · .. 
· LastTen FiscaLYears · 

The City is a home rlile municipality. To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for 
home.:.rule municipalities. 

- ' -' _· .. · .·.- --· 

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the lllin()is Constitution governs computation ofthe legal debt margin. 

"The G~neraiAssernbly"may limit by law the amount am:l require referendu~ approval of debt to be 
incurred by home-rule municipalities, payable from .ad valorem pq:>perty tax receipts, only in excess 

··of the following percentages of the_ assessed value of its taxable property ... (2). if its population is 
more than 25,000 and less thari 500,000 an aggregate of one percent...indebtedness which is.· 
outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this ·constitution or wt:tich is thereafter approved 
by referendum ... shall not be included. in the foregoing percentage atriounts:·· . . . . 

See independent auditor's report. 
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· City of Crystal -Lake, Illinois· 
Demographic and E-conc:uriic Statistics: -

La_st Ten Fiscal Years' . 

·fisq:al 
Year · Per Capita _ 

Ended Estimated Personal-
April30,-. . Population Income (5) 

1999' _35,000 0) N/A 
2000 36,500 (1) $ ·. 26,146 

'2001 38,000 {3) 26;146 
.2002 39,300_" (1) 26,146 
2003 40;000 (1) 26,146 
2004 . 41,000 (1) 26,146 . 
2005 ·_ 41,000 (1) 26,146: 

"2006" 39,788 {3) 26,146· 
2007 39,788 (3)- 26,146 
2008' .- 39,788 (3} 26,146 

·sourees: 
( 1 ) City Estimate 
{2) McHenry County 

-. (3) Special Census _ . 
(4) Illinois Department of Employment Security 
{5) u.s. Census 

School· 
Enrol.lment (6) 

$ '12,202-
', 1_2,457' 
_-12,706 
12,853 
13,471 
13,053 
'15,458 

. 16;1"75 
16,01_1 

- 16,215 

'·· .·· ' 

· (6) Elenierit~uy and High· School - obtained from School Districts 

· N/A - Information not available. 

See independent auditor's ·report. 
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Une_rriployment-. 
Rate 

- 3.2%' (1 ). 
2.9% (1) 

·3.6% ' (1} 
. 5.1% (1) 

6.5% (2) 
4.6%- (1) .·' 
5.3% (1) 
4~6% (4) 
4.1%' (4) 
4.9% {4} 
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· City Qf c·rystal Lake, illinois 
, Principal. Employers 

Current Year 

Employer. Employees 

CL Elementary School District 47 
Consolidated High School Distri~t 155 ·. 
Precision ·Twist Drills · . . . . ; · 
Columbia College/Webster University · 
TC Industries · · . · 
McHenry County College 

·· Jewel FoOd Stores· · 
City of Crystal Lake 
Althoff Industries • 
Seven Worldwide · 

Information is not 'readily available for p-revious· years. 
'' ' 

863 
440 
371, 

.363 
350 
305 
300 
285 
270' 
250 

3,797 

Source: 2007111inois Manufacturers and 2007 Illinois Service Directories. 

··See independent auditor's report: 
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%of 
To~al City 

'' 

RanJ< Population 

1' 2.rni;, 
2 1.11% 
3 

... 
'0.93% 

4 0.91% 
5. .0.88% 
6 0.77% 
7 0.75% 

" 

8 0.72% 
9 0.68% 

10 '0~63% 

9.55% 



.General Government. 

Public Safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Hi~hways and Streets: 
Engineering 
Maintenance 

--Sanitation 

.. 
Waterworks and Sewerage . 

Source: City records. 

. · ··City of Crystal ·Lake, IIU'nois 
Full·time Equivalent Employees 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

.. 
2008· 2007 

44 44 

71 71 
55 51 

12 11 
23 23 
10 't2· 

23 28 

238 240 

See independent auditor's report 
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2006 2005 2004 

44 A4 44· .c; 

73 73 .. · .. 75 
47 -47. 39 

. 1t 11 12 
23 23 27 

-12 - 12 13 

·28· 28 28 

238 238 238 



2003 2002 2001 ·. :woo 1999 

44. 44' '44: 44 42 

75 74 72 -" 7~ 70 
39 39 

--
31 31 31'' 

12 1'1 11 11' 10 
27 26 ' 23 27 24 
13 12' 12 12 11 

-' 
36- 32 -30 31- -28-

<·.· 246 2~8 223 22Q ·. 216 

.:.160-. 



Police: 
Physical arrests 
Parking violations 

_Traffic violations 

Fire: 
(\lumber of calls answered 
Inspections 

Highways and Streets: _ 
i 

Street resurfacing (miles) 

Water: 
New connections 
Water main breaks 
Average daily consumption _ 
(millions of gallons) 

Wastewater: 

City of Crystal Lake, Illinois 
_ Operating Indicators- · 
-L,.ast Ten Fiscal Years _ 

2008 2007 

1,717 1, 1_23 
8,978 . 12,412 

--6,631 ----7,933 

5,207 4,991 
600 600 

82.0-- -7.9 

118 195 
29 - -18 

. 4.860 -4.807 

__ Average daily ~ewage treatment 
_ (in gallons) --

' - -
-6,0~2 4,500 

Source: City records. ~-

N/A -Information not_readily available. _--

See i':Jdependent auditor's report. 
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Fiscal Year -
2006 2005 

c 1,782 1,804 
13,803 13,762 
8,255 8,369. 

5,258- 5,567 
N/A -N/A 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 
... ~-

N/A- N/A 



N/A- . N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
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Public safety: 
.Police: 

. Statipns . 
Patrol units 

Fire Stations-

Highways and Streets: 
S~reets (miles) 
Streetlights _ 
Traffic signals 

' '. 
Culture and Recreation: 

Parks acreage 
Parks 
Tennis courts 
Community cellters 

Water: 
· _Water mains (miles) 

.Fire hydrants . 
Maximum daily capacity -
(millions of gallons) 

~ewer: 

Sanitary sewers (miles) 
Sto'rm sewers (miles) 
Maximum daily treatment ·-
(thousands ofgallons) 

Source: City records. 

. . ' ' : . 
See independent-auditor's report. 

City of Ciystal Lake, Illinois 
Capital Asset Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

•2008- .200T 2006 

' -1 1 .1 
31 31 . 31 

3 3 ·3 

:- 163 163 ... 177 
1,996 1,996 1,700 

-29 29 N/A 

.1,393- 1,3Q3 1,393 
44 '44 44 
30 30 . 30 

8 8 8 

175 210 '181 
. 2,859 2,795 2;614 

9.20 8A5 . 9.60 

127 126 185 
62 60 110 

.12,825 19;500 -19,500 
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Fiscal Year 
. 2005 2004 

'1 .· 1 

31 25 
3 3 

. 176.8 175.4 
1,700 1,900 

N/A N/A 
·-

1,393. 1,200 
44 39-
30 30 

8 8 

18t 180 
2,614 2,600 

9.60- 9.60 

185 184 
110 -110 

19,500 16;250 



.Ended.April 30, 
. 2003. .2002 ·2001. . 2000 1999 

t 
.. 
1 1 1 1 

25 .. 25 25·' 25 -. 24 
' 3 3 3 3 3 

175.4 175~0 185.0 .. 184.o: 16KO 
1,900 ·1;884 1,884 .•. 1,_845. 1,762 .. 

N/A N/A .. N/A· · N/A N/A 

1,200 1,200. 1,420 1,108 965 
39 . 39 39 37 33 
30 30 2i: 

.. 
27 27 

8 8 8. 7 7 

180 180 175 . 167 161 
2,600 __ 3,093. --3,005 3,005 2,900 

9.60 .. 9.60 -_-R60 8.60.- 8.60 

184 184- 180 166 160' 
110 ·.110 ' 108- 94 89 

-. 

.- ' . 
16,250 .. 16,250. 16,250 16;250 16,250 
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